AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd@gmail.com

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
1:15 PM Tuesday, April 13th, 2021

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, STAFF AND PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN THIS
MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

THE DISTRICT OFFICE WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.
PUBLIC SHOULD ACCESS VIA ZOOM MEETING OR PHONE.

Z0OOM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.
BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

CALL TO ORDER: 1:15P.M.

ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Ara Najarian, Director
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning
District operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board
now. Please state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations
to 3 minutes. State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the

agenda.

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
Items of District interest which may be placed on later agendas.

County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department
2. CalFire/County Fire Department



Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest

S. CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of February 9th, 2021 Board Meeting (March meeting cancelled)
Monthly Financial Review for February & March 2021

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Report for February & March 2021

Dow

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

7. BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

A. Sanitary Sewer Management Plan Audit and Update (Action Required: Receive staff
report and direct staff to implement updates as needed)

B. Consider providing the Directors to a paperless option for Board meeting agenda packets
(Action Required: Receive staff report and provide direction to staff)

8. COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

9. ADJOURN
Next regularly scheduled meeting is on Tuesday, May 13th, 2021 at 1:00 PM

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after the
posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA during normal business hours.
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, February 9th, 2021
1:00 P.M.

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, STAFF AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATED IN THIS MEETING VIA TELECONTERENCE
AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

BOARD MEETING
1:00 P.M. (Pacific Time) Tuesday, February 9™ 2021

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
to order at 1:00 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building, 100 San
Luis Street, Avila Beach, California.

2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present via Zoom: Pete Kelley

Lynn Helenius

Board Members Present in Person: Howie Kennett
Kristin Berry

Board Members Absent: Ara Najarian

Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kiristi Dibbern, Accounting

Staff Present via Zoom: Tim Cary, Legal Counsel

Carinna Butler, Fluid Resource Management

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - No Public Comments.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports

Sheriff’s Report: Lt. Stuart MacDonald reported 31 calls for service this month compared to 29 calls last year
at this time. There were: 4 disturbances, 1 assault, no burglaries, 1 theft, 1 suspicious circumstance reported, no
phone scams or vandalism. The Sheriff’s proactive efforts include 13 enforcements stops, 10 preventative patrol
activities and 1 Covid-19 Compliance checks. On February 3™ a murder suspect wanted in Bakersfield caused
a domestic disturbance at the San Luis Bay Inn. Thirty-two patrol units were dispatched to handle the situation,
including a helicopter. The suspect and accomplice surrendered without incident.



Cal Fire: Battalion Chief Paul Lee stated that there were 51 calls for service this month, 28 were medically
related. Cal Fire started baseline staffing, a decrease from peak fire season. FD has activated COVID POD’s for
fast tracking vaccine administration. With the current rain received control burns are underway. The Lighthouse
burn will be postponed until October or November of 2021. Firehouse grant applications are being accepted,
grant applications will be approved based on community betterment and vegetation abatement. Squire Canyon,
Cave Landing and The Bob Jones Trail are all on the schedule for vegetation management during April & May
2021.

B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications.

Directors Kelley, Kennett, Helenius and Berry have all completed the Anti-Harassment Training online this
month with Target Solutions. Also the California Special District’s Association SLO Chapter is meeting via
Zoom on February 12, 2021 at 1:00 P.M. Directors who would like to attend please contact Kristi or Brad.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

Director Helenius made a motion to approve the Consent Items. The motion was seconded by Director Berry
and passed with a roll call vote 4-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Kristin Berry
Lynn Helenius
Howie Kennett
NOES: None

ABSENT: Ara Najarian

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Mid-Year Budget Review

GM Hagemann summarized highlights of the Mid-Year Budget stating that the District is in good
financial standing. Tax revenues are up this year and overall, the District is at 55% of expected income
and 57% of expenditures. As noted in the General Manager's Report, the County recently estimated that
FY 2020/21 tax revenue will be $713,000. This is an increase of $13,000 from the approved budget
amount of $700,000. The two biggest income sources, Operating Revenue and County Taxes are slightly
above the 50% benchmark. Staff anticipates year-end expenses will come in at about 95% - 100% of the
budgeted amounts. No action was required on this item.

B. Preliminary Will Serve for Keese Project at 208 Front Street, APN 076-222-025
GM Hagemann summarized the staff report and noted the applicants are requesting a Will Serve for new
construction of 2- single family residential units on a single lot. Proposed unit A is 1,950 sf and includes
4 bedrooms; Unit B is also 1,950 sf and includes 5 bedrooms. The District has water and sewer capacity
to serve the project. Director Helenius made a motion to approve the will serve. It was seconded by
Director Berry and passed with a roll call vote 4-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Pete Kelley



NOES: None
ABSENT: Ara Najarian

C. Annual Review of District By-Laws
Tim Cary, Legal Counsel reviewed the District By-Laws with the Board point by point. The Board agreed to

approve the changes made by Legal Counsel.

Director Berry made a motion to approve the District By-Laws with changes suggested by Legal Counsel, as
well as, delete the reference for use of a “podium” when the public is speaking. It was seconded by Director
Kennett and it passed with a roll call vote 4-0.

AYES: Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Lynn Helenius
Pete Kelley
NOES: None

ABSENT: Ara Najarian

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 P.M.

The next recular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday,
March 9th. 2020 at 1:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at
their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: April 13, 2021

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for February & March

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of February, the District deposited $81,920.15 and incurred $51,293.85 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $17,138.51 in County tax income and $64,126.32 in
monthly water and sewer fees.

During the month of March, the District deposited $133,539.93 and incurred $95,578.28 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $61,565.83 in County Taxes and $71,149.35 in monthly
water and sewer fees.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund and
Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the month of February & March

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $63,147.40 in water and sewer service charges in February.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $978.92.

In March, the District billed $70,134.51 in water and sewer service charges. Customer Rate
Assistance reduced billing charges in the amount of $988.94.

Operation and Maintenance

The February & March statements for FRM (Fluid Resource Management) are attached.



1:12 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

03/03/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 28, 2021
Feb 28, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 60.00
1008 - Petty Cash 88.02
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 1,288,710.49
1050 - LAIF 3,124,540.39
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 4,413,398.90
Total Checking/Savings 4,413,398.90
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 1_32,096.00
Total Accounts Receivable 32,096.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 11,317.42
1270 - Taxes Receivable 23,892.61
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 86,298.11
Total 1250 - Receivables 121,508.14
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance 7,676.00
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 7,676.00
Total Other Current Assets 129,184.14
Total Current Assets 4,574,679.04
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00



1:12 PM

03/03/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

Feb 28,21

4,526.21
-4,526.21

0.00
60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-545,463.32

773,411.94

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40
6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,248,125.98

905,972.32

1,087,410.54
-704,848.55
205,485.61

588,047.60
2,569,415.14

Page 2



1:12 PM

03/03/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr
1652 - Equipment - Other

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 : Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Feb 28, 21

21,136.28
-21,136.28
74.79

74.79

1,263,996.77
-690,947.00

573,049.77
573,124.56

82,207.29
-46,485.99

35,721.30
248,213.98
3,426,474.98
3,426,474.98

24,772.00
24,772.00
8,025,926.02

69,461.88
69,461.88

Page 3



1:12 PM

03/03/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity

3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Feb 28, 21

2,095.00
1,509.41
787.39

4,391.80

4,610.00
4,610.00
9,001.80

78,463.68

131,246.00
7,928.00

139,174.00
217,637.68

85,498.07
7,669,685.16
53,105.11

7,808,288.34

8,025,926.02




1:13 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

03/03/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis February 2021
Feb 21
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue 64,126.32
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee 2,105.09
4030 - County Taxes 17,138.51
Total 4000 - Income Summary 83,369.92
Total Income 83,369.92
Gross Profit 83,369.92
Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex 21.60
5120 - Chase Paymentech 125.62
5140 - Invoice Cloud - 39581
Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees 543.03
5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay 2,856.64
5012 - Holiday Pay 187.32
5014 - Sick Pay 0.00
5016 - Vacation Pay ) 0.00
Total 5210 - Gross Wages 3,043.96
5230 - Payroll Taxes 101.11
5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other 1 800.00
Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp. 800.00
5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi 252.57
Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense 252.57
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc. 104.12
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses 4,301.76

Page 1



1:13 PM

03/03/21
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
February 2021

6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 -
6103 -
6120 -
6140 -

Accounting

Accounting Audit

Dues & Subscriptions
Office Supplies & Postage

6143 - Supplies, Office
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage - Other

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 -
6170 -

Rate Assistance
Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 -
6505 -
6506 -
6507 -
6520 -

Chemicals

Contract Labor O & M
Contract Labor GM

Contract Labor Civil Engineer
Equipment Repair & Maint.

6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 -
6535 -
6540 -
6542 -
6565 -
6585 -
6590 -

Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
Insurance P/L

Lab Tests

Maintenance
Regulatory Compliance
Telephone / Internet
Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

Total Expense

Net Ordinary income

Feb 21

240.00
610.00
14.99

120.70
21.13

141.83

978.92
400.00

2,385.74

3,308.09
20,179.64
2,465.00
6,960.00

1,323.13
224.86

1,547.99

85.00
1,919.00
3,707.00

255.00
631.25
297.30
3,597.90

44,953.17
52,183.70
31,186.22

Page 2



1:13 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

03/03/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis February 2021

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project

8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee...

Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Feb 21

5,867.01
5,867.01
5,867.01
5,867.01
5,867.01
-5,867.01
25,319.21

Page 3



| abed

18°CEL'Y- ¢ oe- "weld oyioed - 0LOI o9y lueg  |z02/90/20 NsodeQg
Gy '969'Y- 8E'8¢E- Twisld duided - 0101 Z48Ul0 1202/50/20 Ysode(
10°859'Y- 000 “wald dyided - 0L0L | I8YI0  1202/90/20 Wsodeq
L0°859'7- 86'6 weld diyioed - 0101 souejsissy aley 202/G0/¢0 ¥sodaQ
G0'899'p- €6'1v6¢- wiald dyioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1.20Z/S0/c0 NsodeQg
zLele'y- 86°89Y- rwiald oyided - 0L0L 12/92/1 - 0Z/62/Z) swoonsay Yed Ayunwwod 1z0Z/#0/20 Nsodeq
Y1v06'c- 000 “wisld dyioed - 0L0L Z YO 1202/t0/20 Nsode(Q
L' ¥06'c- 000 sl oyioed - 0LOL I 18O  120Z/r0/20 WsodeQ
vl v06'¢c- S6'6L "wisld dyided - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey  |Z0Z/¥0/¢0 HsodaQ
60°vZ6'¢c- 81°90¥- "wisid dyioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1Z0Z/0/20 WsodeQ
16" LLG e 00'G6- wald dijided - 0101 Z49Yl0 1202/€0/20 ¥Nsode(
L6ger'e- 000 Wwald oyioed - 0LOL L JaUO  1202/€0/20 ¥sode(Q
L6'Ter'e- ¥v'9C wsld diided - 0101 aoue)lsIssyY @jey |.Z0e/c0/e0 ¥sodeq
Ge'6Yve- 99°'690°L- Wwisld d4ided - 0101 08y lueS  1.z0Z/€0/c0 ¥Hsodeg
696.€°C- or°LoL- wiaad diyided - 0101 Z484Yl0 1202/20/20 ¥sode(Q
€T'8L2'e- 000 “rwisid diyided - 0101 | I8UI0  1202/20/20 ¥soda(Q
€2'8.2'C- 68°6¢ rwisad dyioed - 0L0L eouejsissy 8jey 1202/20/20 ¥sode(Q
ziLglee- 1T°2V9'L- "'usid dyloed - 0LOL 29y IUBS  1202/20/20 Msodeq
G8'GL9- 000 “'weld oyioed - 0101 ZJ49YO 1202/10/20 Nsode(Q
G8'GL9- 000 wsld dyided - 010t L IYIO  1202/L0/20 UsodeQ
G8'GL9- 1444 wsld dyided - 0101 souejsissy a)ey  1202/1.0/20 NsodeQ
veocL- ¥€'0¢.- wald diidoed - 0L0L o8y lueg  1g0z/L0/20 ¥sodeq

Aiejiueg

60°'Gcy- 60°G2Y- siybi ejoL
60°Gct- ov'cee- wald oyioed - 0L0L  U'GZ JR1BM ‘0L T U89 - | # dWI HOVAL VIAY - 0920V §680:d  1.202/S2/20 Hsoda(
69°C61- ov'6LL- Tweld oiioed - 0LOL TG J9IBA ‘0L T U9 - | # dNE HOVIE VIAY - 0920'Y §680:d  1.202/91/20 NsodsQ
6C¢clh- 62°¢cl- wiaid oyioed - 0101 T SIYBIT ‘G 18l ‘0 T ueD - | # HdNI - N AON L2 Ad 0L 1202/80/20 u;wmamn_

sSybI

8€'LG6'G- 8¢'1G6'G- UIWPY / |eJouas) |ej0 |
8€°1G6'G- €Leqz'e- Twald oided - 0LOL  TU'GZT J91BM ‘0L T U89 - | # dINI HOVY34G VIAY - 0920V $680:d  1202/52/20 Hsodeq
G9'/69'C- Go'LLGC- “wiald OYioed - 0L0L  U'GZ J81BAA ‘0L T U89 - | # dNI HOVAL VTIAY - 0920V $680:d  1202/91/20 MWsode(
00°'981- 00'981- weld oyioed - 0L0L  GO° SMBIT ‘Gz J8leM ‘0L T URD - | # HdINI - AN NVI LZ A4 401 1202/80/20 Nsodeqg

ujwpy / |elauas)

aouejeg Junowy uds OWIdN ayeq adA L

120z Azenugag

pund Aq sysodaqg 12/€0/€0

J0LSIJ S92IAIBS AJUNWWo?) yoeag ejIAY



Z dbed

0L VOV LL- LL'GL- 'wsld oyloed - 0101 ZJay0 1goe/viizo ysodeQ
65'68€°LL- 000 “wiald dyided - 0101 L IBYIO  1202/7L/20 WsodeQ
6568E L L- 000 Twiald diided - 0101 souelsissy ajey  120z/rL/20 ¥sodeQ
6568€L - 96°¢c- wsld dyided - 0L0L o9y lues  1.g0z/v1/20 Usodeqg
€9°99¢°} |- 000 'wsid diided - 0L0) Z2J8yl0 120z/EL/20 WsodeQ
€9'99€L L~ 000 TTlsld dyided - 0101 | J8Ul0  1202/EL/e0 Wsode(
€9'99€ L L- 000 wald dyioed - 010l soue)sissy 8jey  1Z0z/c1/20 Wsodaqg
€9°99¢°L |- 88'61- rweld duided - 0101 o9y lueg  1g0z/cl/c0 WsodsQ
GLOLE LI 000 Trwisld dllded - 0L0L Z 1Yo 1202/2Lic0 MsodeQ
GLOLE LL- 000 “rusid oyioed - 0LOL L 8RO  L20eg/Zl/eo usodsQ
GLOLE LL- 000 wald oyloed - 010l aouejsissy ajey  120Z/¢L/20 WsodeQ
GLOLE LL- v 9ce- TTwRld oyided - 0101 09y lues  120z/ZL/c0 usodsQ
LE'060°LL- 89'v.- wieid duided - 0L0L ZJ2Wo 1z0z/LL/eo wsodeQ
€9°GL0°LL- 000 Uwisld diided - 0L0L | I8YI0  1202/LL/20 WsodeqQ
€9'SL0°LL- 9e'Gl “rwald dylded - 0101 souejsissy aley  L¢0g/LL/ec0 usodeQ
66°0€0°L L~ 0v'G6.- Twald oiided - 0101 o8y lueg  120z/L1/20 WsodeQ
6S°GEC0L- 000 rwisld dyided - 0101 Z49Ul0  1202/04/20 wsode(Q
65°GEC'0L- 000 'wald dyided - 0101 L 18Yl0  1202/0L/20 ¥sodaQ
65°GEZ0L- 000 wisld duided - 0LOL souejsissy aley  120z/0L/20 WsodsQ
6S°GEC'0}- 8G'G6S- “rwisld oyided - 0101 o9y Iues  1g02/0L/c0 WsodeQ
L0'0v9'6- v6°'8¢h- wald dylded - 0101 ZBYO 1202/60/20 ¥sodeQ
L0°L12'6" 000 Tweld dyided - L0l L J8YI0  1202/60/20 WsodeQ
20°112°6" gg8'Le “wiaid diided - 0101 aouejsissy 9jey  120¢/60/20 ¥sodeQ
A HANA GL oYL~ rwisld diided - 0L0L 09y lueg  1g02/60/20 NsodaQ
11°98¢€°L- v6'LLL- “wisld diided - 0101 Z18y0 1202/80/20 Msode(Q
€2°80C'L- €8°056 Trusld oiided - 0L0L | I8YO 1202/80/20 ¥sode(
90'651 ‘8- 8C'L wiaid diided - 0101 aouelsissy ojey 1202/80/20 Nsodaq
¥€'991°g- 61°606°C- wsld oyloed - 0101 09y lues  1202/80/20 NsodeQ
GlL'LG2'G- L1'6SY- wiald dyioed - 0101 S1SBM - N NV L2 Ad 401  1202/80/20 NsodaQg
¥0°'86.'Y- 000 “rusld oylded - 0101 ZJoWlo 1202/L0/20 ¥sodeQ
¥0'86. - 000 weld dylded - 0101 | IBYIO  1202/L0/20 NsodeqQ
¥0'86. - 000 rweid oyided - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1202/L0/20 NsodeQ
v0'86.L - Sv'el- wisld diided - 0L0L o9y lueg  1g02/L0/20 WsodeQg
65°GeL'y- 000 “ruald dyided - 0101 24940 1202/90/20 ¥sode(
65°GCL'Y- 000 wsld diided - 0101 | 8O  1202/90/20 ¥sodeq
65'GC.L V- 8C'L TTweld dyided - 0101 soue)sIssy aley  1.202/90/20 Nsode(
aouejeg junowy yds ajeq adA]
1202 Asenigay
pung Aq sjisodaq 12/£0/€0

121SIg S92IAIag fJlUuNWWwo) Yoeag ejIAy



¢ abed

66'€96'8C- 85196~ rwield oyloed - 010l o9y lueg  |Lz0oz/ve/c0 WsodeQ
Lv'666°L2- 60°Gl- TUwisid dyided - 0101 ZJayO 1eoz/ee/co Nsode(
2ev86'L2- 000 wald dyided - 0L0L | I8YIO 120z/ee/e0 Wsodeq
zeve6'Le- 000 ruiald dyided - 0LOL souejsissy djey  1.g0¢/€e/20 Wsodeg
Zev86°L2- 88'6Y- wield dyided - 0101 o8y lueg 120z/€g/20 Wsodeqg
vy ¥€6°L2- 000 wield dylded - 0101 Z1oyl0 1202/22/20 Wsode(
vr've6'Le- 000 "wiald oyloed - 0101 L J8UI0  1202/2Z/20 Ysode(Q
Yrve6'Le- 19 <14 wisld dlloed - 0L0L soue)sissy ajey  Lz02/2z/c0 ¥sodaQ
1G'€96°L¢C- 29°00%- “fwiald dyioed - 0LOL o9y lues 1Z0z/2z/20 ¥sodsQ
66295 L¢c- 000 rwsld dlyioed - 01Ot ZJWO 1202/12/20 NsodeQ
G6'295'L2- 000 "wisid dyloed - 0101 L JOYIO  1202/12/20 ¥sodeq
G6'295'L¢C- .9Cl Twisld dyIded - 0L0| aoue)sissy ajey  1.z0z/12/20 ¥sodeQ
29'6/5'/2- ve'€9- Twsld d4IEd - 0L0L o9y IueS  120e/L2/e0 Wsodeq
ARk 000 'wisld ouided - 0101 Z49Ul0  1202/61/20 ¥sode(
8ceLs'/z- 000 wiaad dyioed - 0101 | 1840 1202/6L/20 WsodeqQ
8celLs'le- 000 wisld oyioed - 0L0L souejsissy ajey  1202/61/20 WsodeQ
geeLs'le- 65°9G¢- wisld diioed - 0LOL o9y lues  120z/61/20 NsodaQ
69'65¢'.L¢- 0929 wisid diyioed - 0L0L ZJey0 1202/8L720 NsodeQ
6ceee’le- 000 “wisid dyloed - 0LOL | 8O 1202/8L/20 ¥sodaQ
6C'€Te LC- v¥'9C “wisld diyided - 010) souejsissy 9jey  1202/81/20 Hsode(Q
eLeve'Le- 1£'6ee'g- “wiRid dyided - 0101 o9y lues  1g0e/8l/c0 sodeg
Zr'vL0'6L- €g'eel- Twisld dyided - 0101 248y0  1202/L1/20 ¥sodeQ
65708881~ 000 'weld oyoed - 0L0L L I8YO 1202/LL/20 Wsodeq
65°088'QL- GL6l TwRld oyided - 0101 souejsissy ajey |¢0¢/LL/2c0 ¥sode(Q
v.'668'8L- 08°'G6- wald diylded - 0101 o9y lUeS  Lz0z/LL/20 ¥sodeqg
¥6'€08'gL- 86'89Y wiald dIoed - 0L0L " 0Z/62/Z) dMed wwo) - Ajgjesedss payooq swoonsay 0001S  1202/91/20 Hsodeg
c6cLE'6l- GO'vPZL )L- wisld dylded - 0101 ZJ9Ul0  1202/91/20 W¥sode(Q
L8'8PG L)L~ 000 wisid diyioed - 0L0L | JoUl0  1.202/9L/20 ¥sodag
18°8VG'LL- 000 “rlisid dyloed - 0LOL douejsissy ajey  1202/91/¢0 Usods(Q
18'8VG'LL- 65 9vS 1L- wald oyided - 0L01L o9y lueg  1Z0Z/91/20 WsodaQ
82°200°9L- 86'89Y- sl dyided - 0101 12/92/) - 02/62/T| Swoosisey Yed Ayunwwod  1z0zZ/91/20 Hsodeq
0€°€eS'Gh- Gi'295'e- “Twiald duided - 0101 XV1 @3yNo3s YN - 0920V $680:d  1202/9L/20 ¥sodeQ
G8'0/6°LL- 000 “Twisdd dided - 0L0L Z49YO 1202/GL/20 ¥sodeq
G806} 1~ 000 “weld dyided - 0101 ) 18O 1202/G4/20 ¥sodeQ
G8'0L6'L1- 0908 wiald d4ided - 0101 aoue)sissy a)ey  L.Z0Z/GL/20 Msodeq
Gy'160CL- G.'98G- lisid dijloed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0e/SL/20 ¥sodeQ
aosuejeg Jjunowy ydg oW\ ajeq adA}
120z frenigaly
pun4 Aq sjisodaq 12/€0/€0

101181 S92IAISS AJIUNWWO) Yoeag eIy



p obed

Y8 vSv'y- 000 'wisid dijided - 0101 | J9YIO  1202/€0/20 UsodaQg
v8 St - 66°ch wald oylioed - 0LOL souejsissy ajey 1202/€0/20 Wsode(Q
£8'861 v~ 68186~ "wisld dljioed - 0101 ooy JoleM  1202/€0/20 ¥sode(
v6'€Lg'e- 000 wsld Jiided - 0L0L Z8Yl0  1202/20/20 ¥sods(Q
v6'ELG'e- 000 "'Waid oyloed - 0LOL | JoUI0  1202/20/20 Usode(Q
v6'€LG'e- 80°LS 'wsld oyioed - 0101 eouelsissy ajey  1202/20/20 Ysode(Q
20'g95'¢e- e vv6'c- “Uweld oioed - 0101 o9y 19lBM  120Z/20/20 ¥sodeq
8.°029- 00°0 weld ouioed - 0101 ¢J9yI0  120e/L0/c0 Nsode(
84°029- 000 weld olioed - 0L0L L J8YI0  1202/10/20 WsodeQ
81°029- €¥'8S wsld oyioed - 0101 souejsissy sjey  1g0z/L0/20 WsodeQ
L2649 12'6.9- "wald oyioed - 0LOL o9y JS¥eM  1.202/1L0/20 ¥sodeQ

12)epn

60°G0L2- 60501 °C- 9}SEM PlIOS [BloL
60°G0L"¢- 60°50L¢- uield oyioed - 0L0L MS 984 8siyouel4 suonosuuo) a)sepy  1202/52/20 isodsQ

9)seM pljos

€6°ehv'oc- €6°Eryoc- Aejues [ejo|
£6'chb'oe- SLeob- "Twisld oyioed - 0L0L SO0 rav IONVIvE L€'908 $  1202/82/20 ¥sodeQ
8.°0v0'9¢- 000 wsid dljided - 0101 Z48Ul0 120e/Lzie0 Wsodeg
82°0¥0'0¢- 000 wald oljioed - 0L0OL L 180 1202/.2/20 WsodeQ
8.°0¥0'9¢e- 000 "Wwisid oyioed - 0LOL aouelsissy aley 1202//2/20 WsodaQ
8.°0¥0'0¢- g6cle- 'wisld oyioed - 0LOL o9y lueg 1g0e/Lz/e0 usodeg
08°L28'Ge- 00°0 weld dyioed - 0L0L Z9Y0 1202/9z2/20 ¥sodsQ
08°L28'Ge- 000 “Tweld oiioed - 0L0L | 18O  1202/92/20 ¥sode(Q
08°L28'Ge- Go'ee weld djioed - 0101 aouejsissy aley  1202/92/20 ¥sodeQ
Gt 198°Ge- 08°29¢- “'wield dyioed - 0LOL 09y lueg 1g02/92/20 lsodeq
Go'e6h Ge- 86'v19'v- wald dijioed - 0101 XYL Q3™UNIIS ¥UND - 0920V §680:d  1202/52/20 NsodeQ
19'8/8'0¢- ve'zey- “wisid oiioed - 0101 Z19Yl0 1202/52/20 WsodeQ
€L Ghv'0¢e- 000 "wald oljioed - 0LOL L 18Ul0  1202/G2/20 Wsode(
€L'Shv'oe- 9661 wald diidoed - 0101 souelsissy aley  ¢0¢/Se/c0 usodeQ
69691 0¢- 86'86G"L- "wald oljloed - 0LOL 09y lueg  1202/S2/20 WsodaQ
127998'8C- 81’19 "'Wwiald dijioed - 0L0L Z424l0 Lzoeg/re/eo wsodsQ
68°226'8¢- 000 wisid dyided - 0101 | I8YO 1202/r2/20 NsodeQ
68°.26'8¢- 0L'9¢ wald ojioed - 0101 Qoue)sissy ajey  1.202/v2/2c0 NsodeQ

aouejeq’ unowy yds LIIVETTT] ajeq adA)

1202 Areniqag

pund Aq sjisodaqg 12/€0/€0

JoLIISIQ S92IAISG AJlUNWWOY Ydeag BlIAY



G abed

19°980°LL- 000 wield oljioed - 0LOL ZJ49Yl0 1202/LL/20 usodeQg
19'980°LL- 000 rwisld ouioed - 0101 L JBYO 120Z/L1/20 ¥soda(
L9°980°L1- €9°¢l rwisld dyided - 0LOL soue)sissy @jey  Lz0Z/LL/20 MHsodaQ
0€'00L°LL- S TANS TV A rwisld oyided - 0L0L o9y J8j)eM  LZ0Z/LL/20 ¥sodeq
y0'2e8'vL- 000 wald oiyioed - 0101 ZJ9YO 1202/01/20 ¥sodeQ
v0'LEQ'VL- 000 wisld dljioed - 0101 |l IBYIO  1202/0L/20 NsodeqQ
v0'L£8'VL- 000 rueld oyided - 0101 souelsissy dley  1202/0L/20 Usodag
0 LE8'VL- LEVIO- Twald duided - 0L0L 09y Jelep  1202/0L/20 ¥sodeq
L9291 000 weld dyided - 0L0L ZPYO 1z02/60/20 MsodeQ
29291 'vL- 000 "wisld dyided - 0101 | 19O 1202/60/20 ¥sodeQ
L9291 vL- 09'ce Twild diided - 0101 souejsissy 8jey  1202/60/20 ¥sodaQ
L2961 V|- ¥8°290°C- rwiald dyided - 0L0L o9y JB¥eM  1202/60/20 ¥sodsQ
5 A TANA 000 'wsid oiioed - 0101 ZJayO 1202/80/20 MNsode(
eb'8zLeL- ¥8°056 rwisld dyided - 0LOL | 18YI0  1202/80/20 WsodeQ
LT6L0'EL- 0c'LL rweid oiioed - 0L0L ooue)sissy ajey  |Z02/80/¢0 ¥sodeQ
L¥'060°€L- 06°'LE£S'9- 'wisld diided - 0101 o9y Jojep  L202/80/20 ¥sodaQ
15°'885'0- €' 99- “wald oyloed - 0LOL T SYBIT ‘Gz Jelepn (0L T ueD - L # HdWI - IW AON L2 A4 401 1202/80/20 Usodeq
y1°26v'9- 000 “rwald dyloed - 0L0L Z18Ul0  1202/L0/20 ¥sode(
vl zev'o- 000 'weld dyided - 0L0L | J8YO 1202/L0/20 ¥sodeq
ANA A 000 "wsld dyided - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1202/L0/20 Wsodeqg
AN A 96°LiL- wiald oyided - 0101 o9y JeleM  1202/20/20 Msodeq
81°08¢'90- 000 Tweld diided - 0L0L ZJ9Yl0  1202/90/20 ¥soda(Q
81°08¢'0- 000 wield diioed - 0101 L 1oyl0  1202/90/20 ¥sode(Q
8L°08¢'9- 0c'LL rweld oiided - 0L0L souejsissy ajey 1202/90/20 Wsode(
8€°16E'0- 90°¢6- "rwisid dyided - 0LOL o9y Jelep  LZ0Z/90/20 ¥sodaQ
2e'662'9- 000 “'weld oyioed - 0101 2480 1202/50/20 Hsode(
2E'662'9- 000 rwsld ayided - 0101 L 18O  1202/50/20 ¥soda(Q
2e'662'0- l0'ClL wisld oyided - 0L0L souejsissy ajey  1202/G0/20 ¥sode(
€eLLe9- 0l 'v6e- TTwiRid diidoed - 0L0L o9y Je)ep  1Z02/50/20 MsodeQ
€2°L10'9- S oee- “wsid diided - 0101 L2/92/) - 02/62/T) swoonsay Yed Apunwwo)d |z0g/v0/20 NsodeQ
69°089°G- GE'8E8- rwisld dylded - 0101 12/92/\ - 02/62/Z\ uonebll| uenp ueg  1Lz0zZ/70/20 Wsodeg
e Zre'v- 000 Twisld ofjided - 0L0L ZJ9Ul0  1202/70/20 ¥soda(Q
e Y8 v- 000 wisld dlided - 0101 L JayO 1202/v0/20 MNsode(Q
vezre'y- 2o've rwisld dyided - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1202/v0/20 Usoda(Q
9€'998't- ¢S LI “wisid dylded - 0LOL 09y Jelep  L202/v0/20 MsodsQ
v8 v - 00°0 "wsid dyloed - 0101 Z49YlI0 1202/€0/20 usodaQ
aosuejeg unowy Hids Ows ajeq adA)
120z Aenuqay
pun4 Aq sjisodaq 12/€0/€0

101381 S921A19S AJUNWWO) yoeag elIAy



g abed

98'98t’L¢- 000 wald dyioed - 0101 L JoyO 1202¢/61/20 usodeQ
98'98v'LE- 000 rwiald dyided - 0L0L ooue)sissy eley 1Z02/61/20 ¥sodaQ
98'98t'L¢- veLLE- wiald dylded - 0LOL o9y JeleM  1.202/61/20 Wsode(Q
¢G'GLLLE- 000 sl dyioed - 0LOL Z18WOo 120z/8L/20 ¥usodeg
cS'GLLLE- 000 'wald dyloed - 010l L 19O  1202/8L/20 ¥sodeq
ZS'SLLLE- 66°cY Twisld dyided - 010l Qouelsissy 8jey  120¢/8l/c0 UsodsQ
LG'6Le Le- L9eveoL- wisld duioed - 0101 09y J9)eM  LZ0Z/8L/20 ¥sodeq
06°6.6'0¢- 000 'wsld oyioed - 0L0L ZJ9Ul0  1202/L1/20 ¥sodeQ
06°5.6°0¢- 000 wisld duided - 0L0L L I8YI0  1202/LL/20 WsodeqQ
06°'S.6°0¢- 6.°¢ce Twisld dyioed - 0101 oouejsissy ajey  202/LL/20 WsodeQ
69'800°L2- 18'L€C- walid dyided - 0101 o9y Jolep\  L20g/LL/20 ¥sode(Q
88°0.L°0¢- 5 9ge ""wiald OIoed - 0L0L T 02/62/C) dHed wwo) - Ajgjesedss peyooq swoonsay 0001S  1202/9L/20 Nsodag
ZrLoLie- Gge'ges “wald oiloed - 0L0L  TeBl| led uenr ueg - Ajsjesedas pexooq swoonsay 000TS  1202/91/20 NsodsQ
LL°GV6'LC- 000 “wiald dyided - 0101 ZPWO 120z/91/20 wsodeQ
LL°GV6'LT- 000 rwald dyided - 0101 L J9YI0  1202/9L/20 Wsode(
LL°Gv6° L2 000 weld diided - 0L0L souelsissy aley  120z/91/20 ¥sodeQ
LL°GY6'LT- AN A A4 Twield diided - 0LOL 09y JoleM  1202/9L/20 sodeQ
gL'ecl'6l- G 9ce- wiald dyded - 0L0L 12/92/| - 0Z/62/Z) swoonsay yed Ayunwwod 1z0z/91/c0 Nsodeqg
19°98€°61- GE'8EY- wieid oiided - 0101 L2/92/1 - 02/6¢/2) uonebl| uenr ueg  1L20¢/91/20 ¥sodeQ
9z'8vS'8lL- c0'.68- Twald oyioed - 0LOL  TT'GTT 81BN ‘0L T USD - | # dINI HOVAE VTIAY - 09201V 6680:4  1202/91/20 MsodaQ
v 189 LL- 000 wisld duided - 0L0L ZY0O 1202/SL/20 usodeQ
v2'169'L1- 000 wisid dylded - 0LOL | YO  1202/GL/20 NsodsQ
YT LG9 LL- £8'88 'wiald oiided - 010l souelsissy a)ey  1202/GL/20 HsodeQ
L0°0vL L)L v1°29¢- Tusld oyided - 0101 09y 19)ep\  1.202/GL/20 Nsode(
€E LIV LL- 000 “uRid duided - 0101 Z49y0 1zozwl/zo ysodeQ
€C LIV LL- 000 Twisld diided - 0101 L JI8UYl0  1202/rLie0 Wsode(Q
€€ LIV LL- 000 Tueld dyided - 0101 souelsissy aley 1.¢0g/v1/20 WsodaQ
€LV LL- €6°1LG- rwsld dyided - 0LOL o9y JeleM  L20Z/rL/20 Hsodeq
ov'Gev'LL- 000 Trwld oyided - 0101 Z49Y0 120Z/€L/20 WsodaQ
ov'Ger'LL- 000 wald dyloed - 0101 L Y0 1L202/el/c0 WsodeQ
ov'Gev'Li- 000 rwisld dyided - 0101 souejsissy ajey 1L20zg/cL/20 ¥sode(Q
ov'Gey'LL- €0°09- wisld duided - 0LOL ooy Jelep  LZ0z/eL/20 HsodsQ
LE°G9E L)L~ 000 wisld diided - 0101 Z18Ul0 120z/gl/eo nsodeQ
LE°69¢E"L)- 000 wisid oyided - 0101 | BP0  1202/21/20 ¥sodeg
1€°69€°LL- 000 “weld duided - 0LOL souelsissy 8jey  120z/zZ1/20 ¥sodeqQ
L€°6G9€'LL- 0L'8.¢- wald dyoed - 0L0L o9y Jojep  120Z/2L/20 ¥sodeq
aosuejeg junowy Nds OWdN ajeq adA}]
120Z Auenigag
pun4 Aq syisodag 12/£0/€0

JoUISIg S821AI9G AjUnwwoy) yoeag elIAY



L obed

S1°026°1L8-

5102618 Tvliol
99'v66'9¢- 99'¥66'9¢- 18leM [Bjot
99'v66'0¢- 9L'c0b- TRl olytoed - OLOL $OO rav 30NV1vE L£'908 $ 1202/82/20 ¥sodeq
0S°165'9¢- 000 weld dyided - L0} ZJ9Ylo 1zoe/le/co ysodeq
05°16G'9¢- 000 rusld oyided - 010} L 18O  1202/L2/20 usodeQ
05°165°9¢- 000 “rwsld dyided - 0101 souejsissy 8jey  120¢/.2/20 ¥sodaQ
05°16G°9¢- 66°LLC- weld oiioed - 0101 o9y J8)BM  1202/.2/20 WsodeQ
LG'eLe'9¢e- 000 'wisid oyioed - 0LOL ZJ84yl0 1202/92/20 ¥sode(Q
lG'eLe'9¢e- 000 wisld diloed - 0101 | JoUl0  1202/92/20 ¥sode(
LG'ele'0¢e- 98°8¢ wisld ouioed - 0LOL souejsissy ajey  1202/92/20 Wsode(Q
L0°20v'9¢- L¥'SGh- “liald dyioed - 0LOL 09y Jelep  1202/92/20 WsodaQ
09°9¥6°'GE- G029l L- wield oyloed - 0LOL  'GZ 8B M ‘0L T U89 - | # dINI HOV3E VIAY - 0920V 66804  1202/62/20 usodeQ
GG'v8.'ve- 000 Twslid dyided - 010} ZJ9Yi0 1202/S2/20 ¥sodeq
GG V8L pe- 000 TTwald diided - L0} L 18y 1202/S2/20 WsodsQ
GS'v8. ve- 0ve Twiald oyided - 0LOL souelsissy ajey 1g0z/5¢/e0 Hsodeq
1,6°808've- Zy'soL’L- Twsld oyioed - 0LOL o9y Jalep  LZ02/S2/20 ¥sode(
GlL'e0L'ce- 000 "wald oyed - L0t 240 120zZ/ve/z0 Wsode(
glL'eol'ee- 000 wield ouided - 0L0L |l 8O 1202/42/20 ¥sodeq
GlL'e0.L'ce- éae6’le sl oyioed - 0101 gouelsIssy 8jey 1.g0z/be/e0 MsodeQg
L0°SeL'ee- LG oL L- "wiald oiioed - 0101 o9y Jelep  L20g/ve/e0 ¥WsodaQ
95'886'2¢e- 000 rwsld oyided - 0LOL Z48Ul0 1202/€2/20 Wsode(
96'88G'¢ce- 000 wsld dyioed - 0101 L JoUl0  1202/€2/20 usode(
9G'88G°C¢e- 000 Trwsld dyloed - 0101 souejsissy ajey  120zZ/€2/20 ¥sodeQ
95'88G°Z¢- €0°09- TTueid dylded - 0101 09y Jelep  1202/£2/20 Msode(
€6°825°C¢- 000 ueld oloed - 0101 ZJoylo 120z/ez/eo ysodeQ
€5°825°C¢- 000 wsld olioed - 0L0L L B8YIO 1202/22/20 WsodeqQ
£6'82s'ce- 08wy Twisld dyed - L0l oouelsIssy ey 1.202/2z/c0 ¥sodeQg
€€'€L5°Ce- 12°GE0'L- Twsld dyioed - 0101 o9y Jojep M 1202/2Z/z0 Nsodeq
ZL'ges’Le- 000 “wisld diided - 001 ZJ49Yl0 1202/12/20 ¥sodeQ
zlL'ges'Le- 00°0 Tlisdd dyded - 0LOL L JaYyl0 120Z/12/20 ¥sodaQ
zLees’Le- A Ak wisld ouloed - 0L0L souejsissy ajey  202/12/20 ¥sode(Q
¥6'085°L€- 80'v9- “wisld olioed - 0LOL o9y Jolep\  1202/12/20 ¥sode(Q
98'08Y'LE- 000 'uwlald diioed - 0LOL Z1eul0  1202/61/20 Wsods(Q

asuejeg unowy yds oW\ ayeq adA}
120Z Aeniqag
pun4 Aq s)isodag 12/€0/€0

J91)SIg S82IAIag AJUNWIWOY) Yyoeag BlIAY



| abegq

99°'L.8 99°L/8 syybi (elo1
99'1.8 ¥2719¢ - 0659 2-90969/96.6 #00e SjybI 1S ol 3%9d 143 1202/22/20 yoayn
26'608 SE'1L01 - 0659 0-Z9€55 12666 # 190e sjybit Auojo) 389d 143 1202/10/20 piellie}
16'80V 15°80F - 0659 £-7869.60690 # 1908 S)UBI| umo 399d 143 1202/10/20 v_momco

st

TL6PS'S ZL6Y5'S UiWpY / [BJ9UAY) [EJOL
TL6PS'S 00002 S)ISGOM - 0419 suljwesss gsSogy Ajyiuow wawAhoydaq |eybig 143 1202/82/20 pisi=llio]
ZL6ve's 89'82 AsUM Pd 0O S¥3d - 952G L2/8TIZ - 9L/ WSUY  WieIsAS Juswaliey seafoldwg olgnd 143 1202/52/Z0 %99y
yo'Lze's yo'vLL Anger1 $43ad - 0622 L2/82/2 - OL/Z ISy wWISAS Jusweuney sesholdwz oygnd 143 1202/52/20 piillie)
or'ovL's v9'ce RsUY Pd 00 SH3d - 9528 L2/GL/Z - Lz isHy]  welsAg Juswaunay saakoldwz olgnd 143 1202/52/20 o8yD
9.°ChL'S 98°60¢ Ager) s¥3d - 0522 LZ/SLIZ - Lz sy wielsAg juswaunay seakoidwz ognd 143 1202/82/20 pieillie]
06'906't c1'ie 's0d @ seyddng 80yj0 - 0¥19 21013 SdN Yl 1.202/52/20 A8y
L2°G88'% S67LT 18Wsuf f suoyde|a] - G859 LZSEE008600157Z8 “# 100V wnyosdg 143 1.202/52/20 pelllie]
Z8°0.9't 00°€l 8O0 ‘solddng - £p1.9 sdweyjs 80IAIRG [BISOd ‘SN L202/veI20 X994
78259t 8L°1LS 80yO ‘seNddns - £¥19 so|deyg 1202172120 bisicilig]
£0'909't Zr'sy yosjuswAhed eseyn - 071§ $83} 90 JueyDIBW yosjuowied 1202/£2/20 1YY
z9°488'Y oLzl SalIINN - 0659 IS sin ueg Q0L 399d 143 1202/22/20 pitilie]
ZGSLE'Y v2el yosuawAed aseyd - 0ZLS $98} 02 JUBY2IOW yosjuswied 1202/22/20 pieillie}
8L°19¢'Y 0059 souBUBUIRK - ZHGO ised usapzaig 143 1202/81/20 %08y
82'96Z'Y SZ'¥l yosyuawAed sseyd - 0ZLSg $99} 90 JuBYOIBW yosjuswAed 1202/91/20 ptllie]
£6°282'F &) 80I10 ‘saNddng - £¢L9 uozewy 1202/91/20 piel=llo}
6092 00°50€'L WD logeT 10enuo) - 9059 Joqen yoehuo) Jsbuepy |e1sus SoleI00ssy @ uuewsbey 168Z LZ0Z/91/20 preizllle)
60°126C o0'LL yosjuawAed eseyy - 0Z1S $98} 00 jJuByIISW yosjusiuded 120Z/01/20 petile]
60°096'Z 8¥°GE 200 ‘sallddng - €119 uozewy 1Z0Z/0L/20 39340
19'%726'C 00°0Y Y julepy g tday “dib3 - $zg9 siiedad seindwioo sieindwo) 991 8D 143 1.202/01/20 %o8YD
19¥88'Z 18°G6E PNO[D @D10AU| - OFLG S99} Jueydial pnojY Sd10AU| PNOjOBdI0AU| 1.202/60/20 pieiilie]
08'884'C 00019 3pny Buunoody - £019 LZ/42/1 Hoday sJs||ohuo) sjels d11 ‘umoug 9 xepa 9682 1.202/60/20 pieiEllio)
08'848°L ooove Bununoooy - Z01L9 L2/02/1 8¥9T AUl Buidasypjoog ajbuz PAIN £682 1202/60/20 ¥o8yo
08'8£9°1 0062 BOUBUBJUIBI - ZPGO ™ "AU| SHQ3(Q PUE PUES ‘SaAEST Jo dn Ues|D J0UBIXT "00 Buues|) suipseon 2682 1202/60/20 A09YD
08°¢L9'L 00591 aoueuduIBl - ZG9 (120Z uer) 012z "Au| @ouBUBjUIBY BOWO ‘0D Buiues) sulyseon 268¢ 1L202/60/20 %09Y0
08'shi'L 09'le Xswy - 011§ xawy jJunoosy(] ssaidxg uesuawy 1202/50/20 bicllie]
0T L2y') 007l 80O ‘salddng - €719 aolAIBg [e)S0d "S'N 1202/50/20 peizllie]
ozeLy't 6671 suopduosgng % seng - 0Z19 woeoaqopy 143 1202/50/20 piei-lle}
12'86¢'L cr'eT yosjuswied eseyd - 0L $99} 00 JUBLOIBW Yoajusuwied 143 L202/E£0/20 petllie]
8L°v1E'L 00°09L°L WO 10QeT JoBAUOYD - 90Ga "L AUl J8BRUBY [B1BUSS) |LZ0Z ‘YIS UBr - U3/ uer sajeossy B uuewaben 68982 1202/£0/20 paille}
8.v12 8Ll yoajuawAed aseyd - 0ZLS $83) 00 JUBRYOIDW yoajuawied 143 1202/20/20 petlle}
007002 00°002 S)ISGOM - 0419 aujjwesns qsOav Alyuow wewAholdaq jeubig 143 LZ02Z/10/20 3oayd

uiwpy / |eJauaxs)

aoueleg junouwy HNo2dYy owap awepN wnN aleq adX)

Lzoz Areniqagy

SJUNOIIY/M pun4 Aq s)o9YyH L2/E0/E0

JOMISIQ SB2IAISS AJIUNWILWOY Yoray ejIAY



Z @begq

G8'€6Z°LS 68°€62'LS IvioL

70116 LrOLL'6 12jep (e10)
70LL'6 65ZS1 SollN - 0659 'pY Buipueened /141 389d 143 L202/22/20 plecllte}
26°.56'8 00019'2 '3 |IAIQ Jogen JoRHUeD - Z0S9 waysAg Jerepn JoenuoD S9jeIoossy 3 uuewsbe 1682 1202/91/20 pieclle}
26°245'9 Z6TY0's IAl '® O JOgeT J9BIIUOD - 5059 66£0Z4 "Auj 121N 'sdO 0Z0Z uer "ou| uswebeuep 83iN0ssY PIN|4 0682 1202/60/20 pieEllie)
00°G0E°L 00°50¢"L "3 IAID J0geT JIBAJUOD - 059 weIsAs Jsjepn JogeT] Joeu0D s8]ejoossy @ uuewabep 6882 L202/£0/20 pracllte]

lajepp

00'292'GE 00'29.'€ Kejueg 2101
00'29.'6e 8626 - 0659 Z-8EZZEYBELY #1090 UoRe)S Y 3%9d 143 1202/22/20 el
29'699'6¢ STPoL'T senliN - 0659 dwnd g uei4 ues g pig Ip0d 143 1202/22/20 ptllie]
2£°60G'eE 00'048 "3 D Jogen 10ejuo) - 1069 wolshg AIEjUBS JOJOBIUOD s9jeI00SSY B uuewabey 1682 1202/94/20 A0y
1£'6€9'2¢ 68'85 Jowsluy / suoyds|a} - G859 JoUISIU| G880 X # Jooe 181V 143 1202/91/20 paillie]
25°9.6'2¢ 05'€2 12uIBlu| / suoydsie] - 6859 0Z.1-vEZ S08 12198} Z8L916Z.2.8T # 1008 131vY 143 1L202/%1/20 pietille}
20°£65°2¢ 00°202'S s)sa| qeT - 0pS9 LZ2/S/T 991G Juswalelg "0u| ‘[eonfjeuy 1se0D Buoleqy S682 1202/60/20 proile]
z0°9v8'8z 0068 (904) @se=19 B 10 184 - 6269 09526 ‘Au| weiboid o4 "au} ‘dnoig) soejiepn ¥68¢ 1202/60/20 pootilie]
2019282 10°298'S ""0I6) 92B)leM dLMM - PS1Z8 12626 "Au| uBisaq Bupesulbul 41 MM "2u) ‘dnoi) 8oe|eAn ¥682 120Z/60/20 pielile}
L0¥68°ZZ 69'8v2'L s{eolwsy) - €069 L20Z'¥'C 28581 LIdE "Au| 'ou| ‘alioed Bejuusig 1682 120Z/60/20 pieclltel
ZeGr9'Le 92°¢60'L s|eolwayd - £059 LZ'8ZL LEPILL 1d] "AY| "3u| ‘otoed Bejuusig 1682 120Z/60/20 pleclle}
90°'265'02 gLeze'l juiepy g “dey "dinb3 - zz259 yealg uld Jesys Z# pes 995 Z820ZM "ou| Juswebeuely 80inosay pinj4 0682 1L202/60/20 plellTe}
£6'822'61 GZ'1€9 soueldwo) Aojenbay - 5959 soueldwo) ‘Beay alepdn dNSS 25861 "ou| ‘Juswebeuely 804n0say pinj4 0682 1202/60/20 picllie]
89'/65'81 ZL9EL'SL W 2 O JogeT JoR)u0D - 069 66£0Z4 ‘AUl Aieyueg 'sdo 0zoz ver "ou| ‘juswsbeuely 82inosay pin|4 0682 1202/60/20 %9342
96°097'C 00612 '3 |IAID JogeT 19B/UOD - J0SO wajsAg Aejueg JoqeT 1oejuog $9)ej00ssy B uuewabey 6882 120Z/£0/20 bicllle}
96°582'L 96'vEL SN - 0659 Jajsdwing pA Z ZSEV0LE-0ZLY J9quINN 100y aolAleg Aiejlueg Alunod yinog 143 1202/20/20 P2y
00161} ¥1°996 s[eolwsyd - £069 LZ/LZ/L 20SPLL 1d8 6L88LZE A "ou| ‘oyloed Bejuuaig 888T 1202/10/20 preiTe)
98'v81 98'¥81 Uy ey g tdey “dib3 - 4269 LE/LE/L 08£92L 100y aiempieH 20y sseUlly 1882 1202/L0/20 oayd

fepyueg

mo:m_mm unowy UnovdY owsp aweN wnp ayeq edA|

1Z0Z Asenigey

SJUNOIDY/M pund Aq s)o0yH 12/E0/E0

191181 SO9IAI9G AIUNWIWOY) Yoeag BlIAY



A .._o "

FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

2385 Precision Drive

| a9, Arroyo Grande, CA 93420
& www.frm-ops.com

CA Lic #937346

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax #

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Transaction

805.597.7171

Statement

2/28/21

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Amount Due

Amount Enc.

$36,810.03

Amount

Balance

02/28/21

02/19/21

06/24/20
08/07/20

02/24/21

02/24/21

01/31/21

02/25/21

02/25/21

02/25/21
CURRENT

36,810.03

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
INV #F20516. Orig. Amount $20,179.64.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW170041 Add Services water-
INV #A20450. Orig. Amount $21.28.

W219552 First Street Lift Station Pumps, S-
INV #W19552. Orig. Amount $549.50.
PMT #2743.

W19701 Air Scrubber Replacement Electrica-
INV #W197041. Orig. Amount $1,448.50.

W19873 Chem Tank Light and Switch Replace-
INV #W19873. Orig. Amount $235.50.

W20048 Potable Tank Flowmeter-
INV #W20048. Orig. Amount $8,088.45.

W20176 SCADA Issues-
INV #W20176. Orig. Amount $1,238.18.

W20197 Leak at 231 San Luis Parkway-
INV #W20197. Orig. Amount $329.18.

W20218 Water Meter Relocations-

INV #W20218. Orig. Amount $4,610.94.
1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE DUE

61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

20,179.64

21.28

6.50
-6.50

1,448.50

235.50

8,088.45

1,238.18

329.18

4,610.94
OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

20,179.64

20,200.92

20,207.42
20,200.92

21,649.42

21,884.92

29,973.37

31,211.55

31,540.73

36,151.67

Amount Due

$36,810.03

Page 1




FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
2385 Precision Drive

Arroyo Grande, CA 93420

www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Statement

Date

2/28/21

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Transaction

W20231 High Tank Level Alarm-
02/25/21 |INV #W202341. Orig. Amount $329.18.

W20252 DAQConnect Fail-
02/25/24 |INV #W20252. Orig. Amount $329.18.

1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

31-60 DAYS PAST
DUE

61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

CURRENT

36,810.03

Amount Due Amount Enc.
$36,810.03
Amount Balance
329.18 36,480.85
329.18 36,810.03

OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

Amount Due

$36,810.03

Page 2



12:26 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

04/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2021
Mar 31, 21 B
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1008 - Petty Cash 82.83
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 572,269.53
1050 - LAIF 3,874@40.39
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 4,446,892.75
Total Checking/Savings 4,446,892.75
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable _5?,322.45
Total Accounts Receivable 52,322.45
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 11,317.42
1270 - Taxes Receivable 23,892.61
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 87,374.82
Total 1250 - Receivables 122,584.85
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance 5,757.00
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 5,757.00
Total Other Current Assets 128,341 .25
Total Current Assets 4,627,557.05
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00
1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost 4,526.21
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep. -4,526.21
Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad... 0.00

Page 1



12:26 PM

04/07/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

1620 * Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr
1652 - Equipment - Other

Total 1652 - Equipment

Mar 31, 21

60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-545,463.32

773,411.94

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40

6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,248,125.98

905,972.32

1,087,410.54
-704,848.55
205,485.61

588,047.60
2,569,415.14

21,136.28
-21,136.28
74.79

74.79

Page 2



12:26 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

04/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2021

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2250 - PERS Liability

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

Ma_r 31, 21
1,263,996.77
-690,947.00
573,049.77
573,124.56

82,207.29
-46,485.99

35,721.30
248,213.98
3,426,474.98
3,426,474.98

24,772.00
24,772.00
8,078,804.03

69,461.88
69,461.88

2,095.00
1,509.41
787.39
454.64

4,846.44

Page 3



12:26 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

04/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2021
Iylar 31, 21
2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held 4,610.00
Total 2300 - Deposits Held 4,610.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 9,456.44
Total Current Liabilities 78,918.32
Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability 131,246.00
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,928.00
Total Long Term Liabilities - 139,174.00
Total Liabilities 218,092.32
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity 85,498.07
3900 - Retained Earnings 7,669,835.26
Net Income ) 105,378_._38
Total Equity 7,860,711.71
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8,078,804.03

Page 4



12:28 PM

04/07/21
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss
March 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 : Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4020 - Contract Services-Ambulance
4030 - County Taxes
4050 - Harbor Charges
4052 - Front Street Lighting
4053 - WWTP O&M

Total 4050 - Harbor Charges
Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex '
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kiristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

Maf 31

71,149.35
1,400.39
1,089.31

61,565.83

234.45
19,92.00

20,226.45

~ 155,431.33

155,431.33
155,431.33

18.90
140.40
371.57

530.87

3,543.47
0.00
03.66
0.00

3,637.13
64.34

800.00
800.00

227.32
227.32

Page 1



12:28 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

04/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis March 2021

5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 : Administrative Overheads
6102 - Accounting
6120 - Dues & Subscriptions
6135 - Legal
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6145 - Public Notices
6150 - Rate Assistance
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 - Chemicals

6505 - Contract LaborO & M

6506 - Contract Labor GM

6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer

6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. - Other

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6530 - Generator Maintenance
6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6580 - Solids Handling

6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Mar 21
117.12

4,845.91

1,710.00
1,254.99
6,239.00

308.38
1206.26

514.64

417.04
088.94
200.00

11,324.61

6,300.38
20,179.64
6,815.00
6,235.00

7,674.26
299.62
8,417.63

16,391.51

1,565.68
1,919.00
3,277.70
255.00
63.46
71.90
4,536.00
668.44
3,765.03

72,043.74
88,745.13
66,686.20



12:28 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

04/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis March 2021

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee...

Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Water
8272 - W-2 Water Systm Valve/ Meter

Total 8270 - Capital Purchases in Prog Wat...
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Mar 21

9,798.00
9,798.00
9,798.00

 4,610.94
4,610.94
14,408.94
 14,408.94

-14,408.94
52,277.26

Page 3



| afieq

18'061'9- 000 Tisiweld duided - 0LOL ¢ BYo 1202/90/€0 Msodag
18°0Sl'9- 000 TrisiwLld oyided - 0LOL LJoYlI0  1Z02/90/c0 MsodaQ
218°0G61°9- 1921 isjwald oiioed - 0LOL souejsissy ajey  1202/90/€0  Msode(
¥S€9L'o- 89'0ZL- rlelwald olded - 010L o9y luBS  1Z0Z/90/€0 MsodaQ
98'9¢0°9- 000 rlajwald oyioed - 0L0l ZJYl0  1202/50/€0 Wsodag
98'9¢0°9- 000 IslwBld J4Ided - 0LOL LJOYO  120Z/50/c0 ¥sodeq
08'9¢0'0- 000 IsluRId JyIded - OLOL aduelsissy ajey 1202/50/€0 WsodeQ
98'9€0'9- 16909~ “aslWRId didoed - 0LOL o9y lues  1Z0zZ/S0/€0 ¥sods(
S6'6Cv'G- esel- isiwsld oyioed - 0L0L 24840  1202/70/c0 Nsodag
eV oLY'S- 000 Telweld oyloed - 0101 LBYO  1202/70/0  UsodeQ
eV oLv's- 000 TuelwRld diloed - 001 aouejsissy iy  1LZ0e/0/e0  Hsode(
evoLv's- oL'eLL'e risiwald oioed - gLOI o9y IueS  1Z0Z/¥0/€0 YsodaQ
€LEVOL- 000 isiwald oljioed - 0LO) ZJWo  120z/e0/e0  isodag
€LEVI'L- 000 lelwlald olioed - 010} L BYI0  1202/€0/€0 usodeQ
€LEYIL- 6S°ch risiWsld dloed - 010l douelsissy ajey  L20z/c0/e0  Nisode(Q
2E989°L- 61°698- rlslweld oyloed - 0104 o9y lueg  1Z0z/c0/e0  MsodaQ
chiLe- 000 Islweld dyided - 0LOL Z4UYl0  120Z/20/c0 ¥sodaQ
eLLle- 000 Tlslweld oiided - 0101 L BYIO  1Z202/20/€0 usodaQ
I AR 8L'6 “Uisiwsid diioed - 0101 B0UE]SISSY dley 1202/20/c0 WsodaQ
LE'9¢8- 9€°.€9- leluald duioed - 0L0L o9y ueg  1Z0z/20/¢0 ¥MsodeQ
G6'881L- 9LvLL Isluiald oioed - QL0L ZBYO  1202/10/€0 NsodsQg
L2 €0E- 000 risiweid oyioed - 0LOL L J8yO0  1202/10/€0 ¥sodaq
LL'€0g- 18Vl Tisiweld ouioed - 0101 aouelsissy aley  1202/L0/€0  Nsode(
8c'8le- gc'8le- Tislwald ouided - 0101 o9y ues  1zZ0Z/10/€0 ¥sode(Q

Aiejueg

L9 PPS°L- LOPYS L- sjybi jejoL
LIS |- bl 2SL- “IslWald dlioed - 0LOL T SIYBIT ‘GZT JeleM ‘0L T UBD - | # JINI HOVIAL VIAY - 0920°Y G680:4  1202/6Z/€0 Hsodeq
0G°/82- 08'9¢e- “IslWRld JYioed - 0LOL " SIYBIT ‘GZT USMeM ‘0L T UeD - | # JINI HOYID YIAY - 0920°Y 6680:4  1202/GL/€0  Wsodeq
04'08G- 0.°08G- rlslweld Jiioed - 0LOL GO' SYUBIT ‘G2 JoYeM ‘0L " USD - | # HdINI - IW 934 12 A4 401 1202/80/€0 H_mmamo

S|ybI

v.'9€6°22- v.'9e6°C2- ulipy / [elsusg jejol
v2°9¢6'¢Ce- 966501~ aalwald oyloed - 0LOL T SO ‘GZT JeleM ‘0L U9 - | # dNI HOVIE VTIAY - 09.0'Y G680'd  1202/62/€0  WisodeQ
oL'2e€CL- 00°09- “lsjwsld olioed - 0LOL [onuepy j|olueg 09 $ used pd  120Z/61/€0  NsodeQ
oL°L.2°CL- $9°291- “rislwald aljioed - 0L0L uouueH sawer ge'/G ¢ [SNUBN [BlUe@ 9Z'S0L $UseD Pd  L20Z/6L/€0  Hsoda(
aryiLCcL- Le'sie'e- “rielwald ooed - 0L0L T SWBIT 'Sz JsieM ‘0L T USD - | # NI HOVAE VTIAY - 09/0°Y 6680:'d  1202/SL/€0  Wisodeq
G1'66.°G- 1£'680°}- rsiwald duided - 0L01 S90IAJ9G JOBJIUOD SOUBINQUY TS 1LZ0Z/60/E0  Hsodag
¥8°60.°L- ¥8°60L'2- lsiwald oyoed - 0LOL GO’ SWBIT 'SZ° 18)eM ‘0L " USD - L #¥dWI-IW §34 LZ A4 401 1202/80/€0 Wsodeq

ulwpy / [eJauac

sduejeyg unowy yjdg ITETTT ajeq adAL

L20Z YdIiey

pung Aq s)isodaq 12Z/20/%0

JOUISIQ S921AIBS ANUNWIWOY yoeag BlIAY



Z abed

gs'L8lL'6e- 000 TUdelwald dyided - 0L0L L 18410 1202/51/e0  usodaQ
G5 L8L'6¢e- (WAVAY risiWeld oiided - gLoL aouelsissy ajey  1202/SL/€0  sodag
9/°g12'6¢2- LOVLLT- rlslald oljioed - 0L0L o9y lueg  1z0z/SL/E0  MsodeQ
69'¥0S'92- 000 rlslweld Jiioed - 0LOL ZYIO  Leoz/ivlieo  wsodeqQ
69'v06'0¢2- 000 rislweld Jyioed - 0LOL LYo  L2oZ/vl/ie0  WsodsQg
69'05'9¢- 000 rislwald olloed - 0101 Jouelsissy ajey  LzozZ/vL/e0  Msoda(
69'05'0¢- 8€°66- Trislwald Jiyioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1Z0Z/vL/e0  WsodeQ
&S oe- 000 llsiwald olioed - 0L0l ZYo  Lzoz/rl/eo  Wsodeq
Le'Svy'9e- 000 rlalwaid oyioed - 0LoL LBYO  1202/7L/E0  NsodeQg
Le'ehyoe- 000 lslweld oyoed - QLoL aouelsissy ajley  120Z/vL/e0  isoda(
Le'Sry oc- 8€£'65- lslWsid duided - 0104 o9y lueg  1z0e/vL/e0  NsodeQ
£6'68€'0¢- 000 riglWsid oioed - 0L0L ZI8Ylo  Lzoez/el/ic0  wsodeq
€6'68€°9¢2- 000 lslWald oloed - 0L0L LBYO  120z/el/e0  usodaQ
£6°68€°0¢2- 000 risiweld dulded - 0101 souejsissy ajey  120Z/cL/€0  ysodeg
£6°'68€'0¢- 88°61- risiweld oiided - 0L0L o9y lues  1g0z/€l/e0  NsodeQ
S09¢g‘9C- 08'v81- risiweld olioed - 0LOL ZUIo  Lzoz/el/eo  wsodeQ
GZ'LS1'0¢2- 000 Ulslwlld Jiioed - 0LOL LBYO  L2oz/el/co  Nsodsg
TANR e A 000 TrlelwRld dided - 0L0L aouejsissy aley  1202/ZL/e0  Wsode(Q
GZ'LSl'9z- FAV AR N Trisiwald Jijioed - 0101 ooy luegs  1zZ0z/Zl/e0  Hsoda(Q
€2°6€8'GC- 10°0- Trislwiald dioed - 0101 15891 $ 6€29L # X0 INH eINH @3lid 'g LO" + [Py 1202/LL/€0 ¥usodeQ
2T'6£8'Ge- bL°GL- rislwsid ouided - 0LoL ZWyo  120z/LL/e0  ¥sodeQ
LL'y9L'Se- 000 TiRlwsld Jyioed - 0L0L LBYO  1202/L1/e0  NsodsQg
LL'v9L'Ge- Zl'ec Tislwsld Jyioed - 0L0L souejsissy aley  120Z/LL/g0  Hsoda(
€2°€6.°Ge- z9ElL6'e- lalWsld oiioed - 0LOL o9y lueg  1g0z/LL/e0  usode(
19'6.8°L2- 000 “rlelWald aloed - 0L0L ZJ8Ylo  12oz/oL/e0  Wsodag
19'6.8°12- 000 “rislweld ouyoed - 0LOL L BYO  120Z/0L/e0  Wsodag
19°6.8°12- 000 “risiWeld ouyoed - 0LoL aouelsissy ajey  120z/0L/e0  Nsodag
19'6.8°L2- 61'90¢g- rislweid dided - 0L0L Joy lues  1g0z/0L/e0  usodaQ
reLsie- 8G'- rlslWeld oided - 0LoL ZJyo  12oz/e0/e0  Wsodag
¥8'89¢°L¢- 000 lelwald ayloed - 0LOL L BYO  1202/60/€0 HsodaQ
¥8'895'\¢- S6'6l lslweld oyided - 0LOL aouejsissy aley  1z0z/60/€0  Msoda(Q
6.'885'\2- S06LE Y- Tisluiald oyloed - 0101 09y lueg  1z0Z/60/€0 MsodaQ
v2.'69Z'LL- 9/'9€6°0}- Trisluald olioed - 0101 s)IseM - AN 934 12 A4 401 1202/80/20 Msodag
86°2€€'0- 000 relweld Jiioed - 0LOL ZJ4Y0  1202/80/€0 NsodeQ
86'2€€'0- 000 “rislwald ouided - 0LOL L JBYI0  1202/80/€0 Wsode(
86'CEE'0- L9°¢l uslwsld duoed - 0L0L souejsissy aley  1.z0Z/80/€0  ¥sods(
GO'GPE'D- IANAA risiWeid oiided - 0101 09y lUBS  1202/80/€0 ¥soda(
£€6222'0- 000 islWsid oided - 0L0L TJ4UYI0  1202/L0/€0 ¥sodeQ
£62¢2°0- 000 rislWeld Juived - 0L0L L BYO  1202/20/€0 NsodaQg
£€6'222'9- 000 risiweld ouided - 0101 aouelsissy dley  1202/L0/€0  NisodaQ
£6'222'9- 90°¢s- “risiweld Jiioed - 0L0L o9y lueg  1z0z/L0/€0 usode(Q
aouejeg unowy yidsg owa ajeq adA)
L202Z yoiey
pun4 Aq s)isodaq L2Z/L0/v0

30LISIQ S921AIG AJlUNWWIOY Yyoeag BjIAY



¢ abey

12°20.'65- L6°6E TislwRld Jyioed - 0L0L adue)sIssy djey 1202/0e/€0 Nsodag
81°CYL'6S" LL62l- Trislwald Jlided - 0101 o9y lues  1Z0z/0e/c0  Nsods(Q
L7'210'65- 0CvE0'GL- riglWsld Jyided - 0L0L XV.L Q34N03S HHND - 0920'V $680:4  1202/62/c0  Nsodaq
12'8L6'EY- 000 rielWald duded - 0101 ZBYo  12oz/ee/c0  Wsodeq
lZ2'8.6°ct- 000 lelWeld ouioed - 0L0L LJOYIO  1202/62/c0 ¥sodsQ
L2'8L6'El- 62’8l lslsid Jiloed - 0LOL souejsissy 8ley  120e/6e/c0  Hsode(
05'966°€h- €G'6.G- lelwald oloed - 0LOL ooy IueS  1Z0¢/62/c0 MsodaQ
LB 9LV eV vce Telwlsld diided - 0LOL [ALES) LZ0eg/veic0  wsodaQg
lgogrer- 000 “rlsiweld olloed - 0104 LJoWo  1202/vz/e0  Wsodeg
Lz ozy'ey- 00'vv lslweld oljiced - 0L0L aouelsissy ajey  120z/ve/e0  isodeQ
LT vav'el- 20'9..- islWeid oijioed - 0L0L o9y lues  1z0z/pe/e0  usodeQ
61°889°Cy- LEPEL- islweld oiided - 0L0L ZJUI0  1202/2Z/c0  Wisodag
z9'€eSS ¢r- 000 rlslweld oijioed - 0LOL L1BYO  LZoz/ez/co  wsodeQg
29'€5S¢r- ¥'9¢ rlslwald oiioed - 0l0L aouejsissy 8jey  1z0Z/gz/c0 Msode(Q
9z'085°C- FASWAR o Trislwsld Jided - 0101 o9y lues  120z/zz/e0  ysodaQ
69291 Y- 000 TrlaiWiald JlI0ed - 0L0L ZYo Lzoz/le/eo  wsodeq
6929l ¢t 000 rilWRid duided - 0L0L L BYO  120Z/12/e0  NsodeQg
69°29L¢r- 000 islWsld dyided - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  1z0z/Lg/e0 ¥WsodaQ
69291 Cr- PE€9- isiwsid oiioed - 0101 o9y lUBS  1202/12/€0 ¥sodeQ
GE'660°Ch- 000 lslweld olided - 0L0L ZTJ4OYl0  1202/02/c0  Wsode(
G€660°Ch- 000 riolald oided - 0L0L LYo  120Z/02/c0 HsodeQg
SE'660°2h- 000 “lslWeld ouyoed - 0LOL souelsissy aley  1202/0Z/c0  ¥soda(
SE'660Ch- 000 isiweld Jiioed - 0101 29y lUES  1Z02/02/c0 Msodag
SE'660Ch- 000 “rislweld diided - 0L0) ZJ4Yl0  120z/61/€0  WsodaQ
GE'660'cH- 00’0 TrlslWsld diIded - 0101 L JBWO  1202/6L/€0  MsodsQ
GE'660'21- 000 rlalweld dijided - 0L0L aouelsissy sjey  1Z0Z/6L/€0  NisodeQ
GE'660°CY- 02’26 TrlslwRld Jiioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1zZ0Z/6L/€0 Msode(Q
G1'200°2t- 98'EY- rlslwald Jiioed - 0101 ZJBYo  Lzoz/gel/eo0  WsodeQ
62'€96' L1~ 000 “rlsjwsld Jided - 0L0L LU0 L20oz/8L/e0  WsodeqQ
62°€96'L1- 7S¢ rislwald duoed - 0LOL aouejsissy 8jey  |z0Z/8L/c0  ¥sodeQ
€8°.86'LY- 0S'L¥e'L- rislwisld ouided - QLOL o9y lueg  1z0z/8L/€0 ¥sode(
€CovL've- 000 rislwald Juioed - 0L0L ZJ4Yo  120Z/2L/€0 ¥sodeq
€C° V. 've- 000 risiweid diidoed - 0104 L YO  1202/L1/£0 Wsodeg
c€eovL've- 8¢'L igllald Jijided - 0LOL aouejsissy ajey  1202//1/€0 Wsode(
L9'€GL PE- £9°098- lsiWald ooed - 0LOL o9y lues  1g0e/LL/Ig0  Hsode(
¥6°268‘ce- [A A4 isiweld oiided - 0101 Zylo  1202/91/€0  Nisodag
9€°668'ce- 000 rlalweid oijioed - 0L0L L B8YO  1202/91/€0 WsodeQ
9€°'668°¢ce- 9e'qlL rislwald olloed - 0L0L aoue)sissy ajey  120z/91/€0 WisodsQ
L ol6'ee- 68'900'L- islweld duoed - 0L0L o9y lues  1Z0zZ/9L/c0  ysodag
£8°€06'Ce- 2€20.L - rislweld olided - 0L0L XYL Q34NO3S HUND - 0920'V §680:4  1202/SL/€0  Nsodeg
16710282 70086 rislweld oiided - 0LOL Z2PYo  L2oz/sl/e0  isodaeq
aouejeg junowy ydsg oW ajeq adA)
1202 Yyoaiepn
pung Aq syisodaqg 12/L0/70

1UISIA S921AI9S AJlUnWWo?) Yoesg BlIAY



¢ oabed

20'0S¢e'S- 96°L L1~ lefwald duloed - L0l 09y 19l 1202/L0/€0 Wsodag
90'8ge's- 000 Trlelwsld duided - 0LOL [ALEe) 1202/90/€0 WsodeQ
90°8¢Z'G- 00°0 lIalwald Juided - 0LoL L BYO  1202/90/c0 ¥sodeQ
90'8€Z G- 28Tl lWeld oiided - 0101 souelsissy aley  1202/90/c0  Wisode(
88°0SZ'G- €eogl- Trislald Jyioed - 0L0L o9y sl 1Z02/90/€0  ¥sodeQ
SOYLLG- 000 Trisiweid d4ioed - 0LOL Z48ylo  1202/50/0 Wsodag
SovLLG- 000 “risiweid Jiioed - 0101 L BYO  1202/50/€0 NsodaQ
SOPLLG- 000 islwald dyoed - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1z0Z/50/€0  usoda(
SOYLL'G- 29'06.- slWsld dided - 040l o9y Is)epM  L202/50/€0  Wisode(
£0'vZe'y- 000 siWeld dljloed - 010l ZWOo  Leoz/ro/eo  wsodeQ
£0'vee'v- 000 TrIslWBld didEed - 010} LJBWIO  120z/v0/e0  Wsodeg
€0'vee'r- 000 Trisiwsld J1I0ed - 0101 aouejsissy sjey  1g0Z/P0/e0  Msode(Q
e0'vee' - 98°9G.°L- Trislwsid Jlded - 0101 o9y o)l LZ0Z/P0/0  usodaQ
L1 196°e- 19°G- “Uisjwsid dlloed - 0101 pajisodap sjunowe o) soueleq 0] LZ0Z/€0/c0  WsodeQ
0S°19S°2- 8079~ Trislwald dyioed - 0L0L suodai (g |3 uo jou ‘pajisodap SA0D BlIAY YO puZ  L20Z/c0/e0  ¥sode@
Zy Leve- 000 TISlWRId diided - 0101 ZYOo  1eoeg/eo/co  usodsQg
v L6vC- 000 rIsiWBld Jyided - OLOoL L BUYIO  1202/€0/c0 ¥sodeQ
AL A G8'98 Trielald Jiioed - 0L0L souejsissy dley  1202/c0/e0  WsodeQ
12¥85°C- v’ eeP’ |- Trislweld aljoed - 0101 o9y 1ojleM  120Z/c0/e0  Wsode(
18°0G1°L- 000 rasiweld dyided - 0LOL ZJ8Ylo  1202/20/c0 ysodeg
18°0GL L~ 000 slweld dyded - 0lol L1BYI0  1202/20/€0 IsodeQ
18°0GL }- 8202 siWBId doed - 0LOL aouelsissy 9y 120¢/20/€0  usoda(
65 LLL L- G0'8€L- Trisiweld Jiided - 0101 o9y IB)eM  1202/20/€0  WsodeQ
ya'ech- 000 rislwLid oided - 0101 U0 120zZ/Lo/c0  ksodaqQ
yS'EEY- 000 TrislwRid oiloed - 0101 L B0 120Z/10/€0 Msoda(Q
YSEEY- or'ec Tsiwsid dued - 010l aouejsissy 9y 120g/L0/e0  WsodaQ
¥6'SS- ¥6°SG- Tslwsld duded - 0101 09y 1M L20Z/L0/E0  Nsodeq

12JeM

6€°00%L- 6€°00¥'L- 9}SEM PlIOS [e10L
6£°00VL- 6€°00% L- “risleid oiioed - 0LOL MS 99 8siyouel suoiosuuo) sisep  1Z0zZ/bZ/e0  IisodeQg

9)SBM PlIoS

LL'¥61°09- L.'¥61'09- Alejueg [eyo |
LL¥61'09- 000 TrisiwBld dijlded - 0LOL ZRUYI0  120oz/le/e0  Msodaq
L2V¥61°09- 000 Trisiwaid olloed - 0L0L LU0 1202/LE/€0  WsodsQ
L1'¥61'09- 000 rlsjwiaid dljioed - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  120z/LE/€0  WsodeQ
L2'v61'09- 08°66- islwiaid olloed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0zZ/Le/c0  Wsodag
16'860°09- 04'96¢- rislwisid olioed - 0101 ZYO  1202/0e/€0  WsodsQ
L2°20L'6G" 000 IRlWsld oyioed - 0101 |l BYIO  1202/0€/€0 Usode(

asuejegy junowy nds oway aleq adA}

1202 yaiepw

pun4 Aq s)isodaq 1Z/L0/¥0

19U3SI] SO2IAIRS AJUNWLWIOD Ydeag elIAY



G 9abed

29'9ze've- 000 lelWwaid ouioed - 0L0L ZJ4PYI0  1202/5L/€0  WsodsQ
29922 ve- 000 rislwsld duided - 0101 LYo  1202/51/20 WsodeQ
299ee've- (X AVAS isiWeid dlided - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1Z0zZ/SL/E0  ¥sodag
S8'€LT VT oA TslwBld duded - 010} o9y Jelep  L20e/SL/e0  Wisodeg
05°620°02- 000 rlsiwald ooed - 0L0L Z48ylo  L2oZ/riie0  WsodeQ
0S°620°02- 000 Trisjweld duioed - 010} LJIBYI0  LZ0z/vL/e0  Wisodag
05°620‘0e- 000 “risiweld duloed - 0101 souejsissy ajey  L20zg/vL/c0  WisodeQ
0S°G20°02- 16°201L- lslweld oljoed - 0L0L o9y JolepM  1LZ0Z/rL/e0  Msoda(
65 216'61- 000 rlsiweld olioed - 0LoL ZUi0  1ZoZ/ivl/ieo  WsodeqQ
65°/1661- 000 rislweld Jiided - 0LOL LJBYI0  1L20zZ/vL/e0  wsodaQ
65°L16'6L- 000 “rislweld olided - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  |20g/vl/e0  Wisode(Q
65°L1L6'6L- 16°201- Tislwald ouioed - 0L0L o9y IO¥leM  120Z/vL/e0  Wsods(
89'608'61- 000 rislweld oyloed - 0LOL Z4yo  1zoz/iel/eo  ysodaq
89'608'61- 000 ridlwsid oyioed - 0LOL LYo  120z/el/e0  MsodeQ
89608'61- 000 rislweld Juoed - 0L0L souejsissy aley  120Z/ch/e0  Msoda(Q
89'608'61- €0°09- islWsld olided - 0L0l ooy JoleMm  L20z/eL/e0  kisodeq
GO'6V.L°61L- 000 lalWald oided - 0L0L ZJ4Yo  12oz/el/e0  Wsodsg
SO6¥.L°61- 000 rlslwsld oyoed - 0L0L LBYIO  1202/2L/e0  WsodaQ
GO6v.L'61- 000 risiweld olioed - 0L01 aouejsissy ajey  1Z0Z/gL/e0  ¥sodeQ
SO67L6L- 99°'04¢- TriSlWRid Oljided - 0101 o9y Jolep  1202/2L/e0  wsodeQ
66'8.E'61- viGc- rislweld Jlioed - 0L0L Le/veiz - 2z/) uoebi| 1S uoi4  |Z0zZ/LL/E0  WsodeQ
GZ'ese'6l- 000 islweld Jiided - 0LOL Z24Ul0  L20zZ/LL/e0  Wsodeq
STAS e ] 000 Trisiweld oyioed - 0L0L LYo  120Z/LL/E0  Nsode(
GZ'eSe'6lL- 08'vv risiwsld oiided - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  120Z/L1/€0  Wsodag
G0'86E'61L- (B:FA7AY rislWald oyioed - QL0L o9y JeleM  L20Z/LL/c0  WsodeQ
vessliel- 000 ridlwisld duioed - 0L0L ZJ8Yylo  120z/0L/c0  Wsodeq
veesil'cl- 000 rlaiweid olided - 0L0L L YO  1202/0L/€0 ¥sodaQ
vessLel- 000 lalweld oioed - 0L0L aouelsissy djey  L202/0L/€0  Nsode(
AT TR £8'9v¢- lolwald ouoed - 0L0L o9y JoleM  L202/01/€0  Wsode(
L7'808°CL- 00’0 risiWald ouoed - 0L0L ZJ8Yl0  1202/60/c0  ¥sodag
L' 808°CL- 000 risiweld oljided - gLoL L BYO  120z/60/0 Nsodaqg
LP'808°CL- 20've isiWeid oljided - 0L0L aouelsissy dley  1202/60/€0 Nisoda(
1 AFAR A 2’695t islweld Jlioed - 0LoL o9y BlBM  1202/60/€0  Wsodaq
LL29z's- 25'€8.°C- TislWeld Jiided - 0LOL GO" SWOIT ‘G2 Jo1eM ‘0L " USD - | #UdINI - AN 834 L2 A4 4D1  1202/80/€0  ¥isodaq
61°608'G- 000 Trislwsld Jiioed - 0101 ZBYO  1202/80/c0 MsodsQg
61'606'G- 000 Trisiwald dlded - 0L0L L BYO  1202/80/€0 ¥sodeQ
61°60G'S- 28'cL “rislwsld diided - 0LoL aouejsissy ajey  1202/80/€0 NisodaQ
L0'22S'G- 66°LLL- rlelWiald duded - 0L0L o9y J8leM  1202/30/€0  NsodeQ
20'05¢°S- 000 rielwsld oyioed - 0LoL ZJ8U0  1202/L0/€0 ¥sodeQ
200s¢e's- 00'0 rlalWaid diided - 0L0L L BYO  1202/.0/0 Wsodeg
20°0S€e‘G- 000 “rislwald olioed - 0L0L aoue)sissy 9l 1202/,0/€0 Wsode(
aoueeq junowy nds aleq adA)
1202 ysliey
pung Aq sjisodaq 12120170

JoUISIq S92IAIRS AJlunWWo Yyoeag BlIAY



g abed

£6°66C LY 0’8y TISiWRld diI0ed - OL0L 9VUB)SISSY Iy 120Z/0€/€0 ¥sodeQ
1S 1ve'Ly- (N Al Islwald ouioed - 0101 09y JaleM  120zZ/0g/e0  Wsodaq
98'001 ‘Ot~ 65'68.°¢- “ielwald yioed - 0L0L T SIY6I ‘Gg 18l M ‘0L T UBD - | # AINI HOV3E VIAY - 0920'Y §680:'d  1202/62/0 ¥soda(
LZSLeTYr- 000 “ridlWLld dyded - 0101 ZJylo  Leoz/ezieo  wsodaQ
VXA A 06°'G¢ rislWald Jiided - 0101 L BYI0  120e/62/c0  Hsodaq
LV WWETY- €6l rislwaid siided - 0101 souesissy aley  120¢/62/€0  Wsodag
0L°9seer- 6L'€LL- risiald oioed - 0L0L o9y JBleM  120Z/62/€0  usodaQ
LEZ8S Lp- 000 risiwdid JiIoed - 0L0L ZJeyi0  120Z/v2/c0  ysodaq
LE°Z8G LY 000 Ulslweld diided - 0LOL L WO  1Z0Z/be/e0  usodag
€285 Ly- Ze'v6 Trisliwsld Jii0ed - 0LOL souelsissy ajey  L20z/vz/e0  NWsodeQ
€9°9/9'LY- 25822\ Trlglwield olided - 0LOL o9y JeleM  LZ0Z/rz/e0  Wsodaq
LL'6YE'Op- 000 TrisiBId Jljloed - 0LOL 2O  leoe/ee/eo  WwsodsQ
LL'6vE 0P~ 000 risfwald oiioed - 0L0L L BYO  1202/2e/e0  NsodeQ
LL'6vE 0p- 66'cr Ielwald diided - 0101 aouejsissy 9ley  1202/2g/e0  WsodaQg
0L'e6€0p- G1°100°}- rIelwald dlided - 0101 o9y JoleM  L20Z/ez/e0  usodaQ
G6'L6E 6E- 000 islWald alioed - 0101 ZJWo  1zoz/lg/eo  usodeg
G6'LB6E'6E- 000 islwald dyloed - 0101 LBYIO  L20z/Lz/e0  Wsodeq
G6'16E6E- 000 IsiwRId Juioed - 010} aouejsissy oy  120Z/Lg/e0  Hsode(
G6'L6E'6E- 80'¥9- risllsld ouoed - 0LOL o9y JoleM  L2oz/le/eo  usodeg
197/2¢e°6¢- 000 ISRl JiI0ed - 0LOL ZJ8Ylo  1202/02/c0  ¥sodeq
18'/z¢e'6¢- 000 “risiwald diided - 0L0L L BYIO  1202/02/c0 usodeQ
19°/ZE'6¢E" 000 Trislweld dlded - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  1LZ0z/0Z/€0  W1sodeQ
19 /2e'6e- écle- ISRl JHided - 0L0L ooy IB)eM  1202/02/c0  usodag
$9'00€'6¢- 000 Trislwald Jiioed - 0101 Z1yo  120Z/6l/e0  hisodagQ
G9'00€‘6¢E- 000 Trislwaid dloed - 0101 LIoUI0  120Z/61/€0 WsodaQ
S9'00¢'6¢€- 000 “rielwsld diided - 010l aouelsissy oley  Lg0g/6L/e0  WsodeQ
S9'00€'6€E- L09LL- Islweid dHided - 0101 o9y 1BleM  L20Z/6L/e0  UsodeQ
r9'v8l 6¢- 000 rislweid olioed - 0101 ZPWo 1L2oz/gl/eo  usodsQg
Y918l 6¢- 000 “siwBld oioed - 0101 LJBUIO  120z/8L/e0  Wsode(
Y98l 6e- LWy ve IslwBd Jyioed - 010} souejsissy 9y  L20g/8l/e0  ¥sodag
S0'6LZ'6E- 19'890°C L~ SlWRId duded - 0101 o9y Jelep  L20Z/8L/c0  WsodaQ
vy oSL'Le- 000 Trisluald doed - 0101 WO  1202/21/€0  Wsodeg
¥ 051 Le- 000 rISiWRld Jyioed - 0L0L L BUYO  1202/L1L/E0  Wsodag
124V WEA oz’ Trislwald JIided - 0101 souelsissy aley  1202/.1/€0  WisodeQ
R WA £€8'01E- TrisiWRid Jijided - 0101 o9y BB L202/LL/IE0  Wisoda(
18'068°9¢- 000 “rislweld dyided - L0l ZWo  120z/9L/e0  hisode(
18'068'9¢- 000 Uisiwsld oyided - 010l LYo 1L2oz/9l/eo  Nsodeqg
18°058'92- €oEl “risiwsid Jlioed - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey  L202/9L/€0 Nisoda(Q
v¥ ¥98'9¢- ZS 6LV L- rislwalid dlided - 0L0L 09y J9)leM  L20Z/91/€0  WsodsQ
26'v8e'se- rOveL L~ "TIelWRId dIoed - 0LOL T SIYOIT 'GZ" JekeM 0L T U9D - | # dWI HOY3E YIIAY - 0920'V §6680:4  L20Z/SL/c0  usode(
88°00C'v¢- v.'s¢ IRlWBId JUIdEd - 0101 V2/veie - £2/| uoleblu| 1S Juoi4 ‘Ajpjesedas HOV pexood LzZ/LL/E  LZ0Z/SL/E0  Hsodeq
aouejeg junowy Hids ayeq adA)
1202 yaiely
pung Aq sjisodaq 12/L0/%0

1OLISI S92IAIS AJlUNWIWOY) Yyoeaq ejIAY



. abey

€6'6£5'€EL- €6°'6€S°CEL- Tviol
ey Ly TV Eoy Ly I9)EM [BJOL
reov'Ly- 000 islweld oided - 0LOL ZYo  Lzoz/le/eo  WsodeQg
reoy'Ly- 000 rislwald Joed - 0L01 L BYO  120Z/1e/€0  HsodeQ
VeIV Ly- 000 isiwald oyoed - 0L0L aouelsissy ajey  1g0g/Le/€0  WisodeqQ
Zreov'Ly- 68°¢9l- islald Jiided - 0L0L o9y oM LZ0Z/LE/E0  usodeQ
€5°66¢'L1- 000 islRid diided - 0L0L Z8YI0  120z/0g/e0  Wsodaq
€6°66C'Li- 000 risiweld Jiided - 0LOL LJBYI0  1202/0g/e0  MsodaQ
aouejeq unouwy yds R - OW3N ajeq  edK 1
1202 Ydie
pun4 Aq sjisodaq 12/L0170

19LISI S921AI9G AJlUNWWOY Yoeagq B|IAY



| abeq

0968 09'6.8 sbI 2101
0968 29°29¢ 0659 £-90959296/ #1008 SybI7 1S U0l 339d 143 L202/82/£0 3o8yn
86°20S T L0V 0659 £-869260690 # 109e SIybIT umo) I89d 143 1202/50/£0 peE=1Ty)
9/°00L 92°001 0659 0-29£551 2666 # 10oe siybi Auojop 389d 143 1202/50/£0 v_mo;o

sybn

ov'vLY'ZL VT ZA A ulwpYy / [eJeusg [ejo]
oV viv'ZL 00°S¥S ndudsqgng g sang - 0219 {emauay diysiequiely Zz- 120Z ABIN  UONEBIDOSSY Jlep [BiNY elwoNied 9262 LZ0Z/LE/E0 plak:llle)
ov'626°LL 0052 aouBUBUIBY - ZFG9  SHQaQ pue pues ‘saaeaT Jo dn uesjD Jousixg ‘00 Buues|p suipseod  vzez  L2Z0Z/LEEO %08U0
Ov'v06°1L 1 00°G9L soueUBUIBY - ZPS9 (1202 9@4) 0zZ2e "Au| sdueUSIUIBI SO 0D Buues|p supseod  ¥Z6Z  L202/LE/E0 pak=1ile)
OV’ 6ELLL 052¥2'2 WD Jogen 10equo) - 9059 WO 1202 ‘UILZ - Uip) JeiN ZELL "AU| sojepossy g uuewsbeq  €z6Z  1LZ0Z/0E/E0 pratlile}
06°L6¥'6 FANY yosjuswihed asey) - 0ZLS $09} 00 JueydIaL yosjusuwiAed LZ0Z/6Z/€0 pral-lite}
69°08V'6 £0'8¢ 20O ‘selddng - €19 so|dels 1202/62/£0 %o8yD
99°2r¥'6 G6'6 8oy ‘selddng - 19 so|dels 1202/62/€0 %o8y)d
11°2eV'6 56112 Jowely| / auoydsje) - G859 LLGEE00860015¥28 #1909y wnJoadg 143 1202/62/£0 o8y
9/°212'6 00'S69 pduosqng g seng - 0219 68 JaquinN Jawolsng Z1Z9 ‘Au| 'ouf ‘selbojoulyos ] anjeal)  g2Z6¢  LZ0Z/SZ/E0 %o8yo
9/°225'8 Sy'egl saljlN - 0669 1S SN ues Q01 399d 143 1202/52/80 %8y
Le'ove's 00922 [ebe - ge19 smeT Ag D77 euwled g |91sod ‘@0ld 0262 LZ0ZME/E0 pel=1iTp)
LE$90'8 00°'sov'z WO Joge 10esuod - 9069  “HUOD LZOZ ‘UISL YdB - UIZ 484 9ELL "Au| sejeloossy p uuewsbeH /162 1Z0Z/vE/E0 pial-10%0)
LE'66G'S €165 yosjuswAhed aseys - 0Z1S $99} 00 Jueyoiew yosjuewAed 143 1202/£Z/€0 %o8yD
81°0PS'S £6°€lL 200 ‘selddns - €¥19 ss|dejs 1202/61/€0 %o8Yy9
GZ'928'S SV LL yosjuawdhed aseyd - 0Z1S S80) 99 JueydsIow yosjuswied 143 1202/8L/€0 o8y
8715 0069 aoueuUSIUIBY - ZPS9 1sed uspzaig 143  120Z/8L/€0 pletlile)
Z9'6v1'S SEvYL 2010 ‘salddng - gp1L9 so|dejg LZ0Z/LLIE0 %o8yg
1¥'S0E'S PO LLY SOOION 21ldNd - §¥1L9 1800 uonoalg 18piooay /WRID 0D OIS vI6Z  L20Z/9L/En piellie]
£¥'888'v 00°08p Bununooay - 2019 LZIZLIE 0LLE AU Buidearyoog oiful BYIN 016 1L20Z/9L/CO praklie}
Y'80v'y 80°251 Buiddiys % abejsod - zyLg QNN JAWOISND LZ/PE/g 81eq Uny 91Z9 "Auj ‘ouf ‘selbojouyos] sAjeRI) 6062  L20Z/91L/E0 %98uD
ge'lse'y 9ge'0l yosuswAed aseyd - 0715 $99} 09 JUBYISW yosjuswAed 1202/SL/€0 ¥o8y)H
66°0V2'y ¥6'01 yosjuswiAed aseys - 0Z1S $99} 00 Jueydsaw yoajuswAed 143 1202/0L/E0 3¥98uD
G0°0€2'Y 0zt Buiddiys g abeysod - zv19 g + 4 Jense| upny 80IAISG [8)S0d "S'N 1202/0L/E0 pal=1iTg)
$8'82C'v 000V “uley g “dey “dib3 - $zg9 suiedal seindwos siendwo) 23] 1) 143 1L202/0L/£0 pL=1ITo)
Ge'88L'y 9%'€9 saliddng BunetsdQ - 0559 SWa)sAg ssauisng soluoe) 1202/60/€0 %08y
6EGEL'Y 15°LLE pNoID 8210AU| - OV LS S99} JUBYOIBW PNO|D SI0AU| PNo|D@10AUY| 143 1202/60/€0 %o8y)
Z8'esL'e 0681 Xowy - OLLS xowy JuNoosIg ssaidx ueouawy 143 120Z/S0/E0 o8y
Z6'vel'e 66'v1 nduosgns g sang - 0219 woo"agopy 143 1202/50/€0 %08y
£6'6LLC 05°20L'2 WO Joge] 10equoD - 90G9 e 10eNU0D LZ02/L2/Z - V20TV LIZ EELL TAUl sejelossy g uuewabeH G067 1202/70/€0 paklie}
SPLL9°L GeolL yosjuswihed asey) - 0Z1LS $884 09 Jueyolaw yosjuswiied 143 1202/€0/€0 %o8yD
807209t 1£91 yosjuswAhed aseyy - 0215 $99} 00 Jueyosow yosjuswAed 143 1202/€0/£0 ¥98yD
L2°06G‘L oL'0SL Buiddiys = ebeysod - ZyL9 QNN JBWOISND | Z/8¢/L 91eqQ uny OGL9 AUl "ouj ‘seibojouyoe] aAneal)  Z06Z  LZ0Z/SO/E0 piek:liTe}
L9'0bP'L 000z Bununoody - ZoL9 L2/0L/Z 2292 "AU| Buideayyoog oibul BYIIN 6682  1Z02/S0/E0 3o9YD
19°024 00015 Buyunoody - Z0L9 L2vZie 0692 "Aul Buideaxyood o|bu3 BYIN 6682  1L20Z/E0/E0 plak:lle}
19°0Le 00°002 8)sgaM - 019 auljwesls ASOQY Alyjuow weawAoideq [e3biq 143 1202/20/£0 plel-lTie]
19°01 19°01 yosjuswAied eseyd - 0Z1S $99} 00 JuByIISW yosjuswAed 143 1202/10/£0 %o8y)H

UIUpY / [el3Ud5)

aouejeg unowy unosoy owapy awen wnpN ajeq adAy

1202 Yyolew

SUNOJIY/M pun4 Aq s}o9YyH 12/L0/¥0

1913S1Q S92IAI9G AJIUNWIWOY Yorag BlIAY



Z abey

82'¥¥9'09 817909 Aiejuesg |ejo)
8L ¥¥9'09 €068 |ig Jamas @ I8l - 0821 SO0 rav IONVIvE 00 ANTFWLSNrAyY JONYIVE rav  12oz/Le/co 3}99YQ
G/'GGS09 9Z°'¢60°} s|edlwayd - €059 L2/SZ/E L9ELEL 149 AUl "ou| ‘oyioed Gejuuaag Gz6¢  120Z/LE/E0 3994D
6v'29v'6S 00°0%2°L 1D JogeT] Joenuod - /069 wajsAg Auejueg JoqeT Joenuo) $e)eI008sY B uuewsbeH €2¢6C  1202/08/c0 3o8yo
N AAANA 15581 Jousey| / duoydsia] - G869 S 706 91¥6-G6S S08 # 1008 181V 143 1202/08/€0 3o8YD
Z26°9€G'2G 1€901 saInN - 0689 Z-8€2ZEYBELY #1008 Uone)S Y I99d 143 1zoeiszieo jo8yD
GG 0eP LS €186 s|esjwayy - £0S9 LZ/8LIE £2V6Z) Idg "Au| "ou| ‘oljioed Bejuusig 1262  1202/ST/E0 Bo8yo
Z8°L¥1'9S 1¥'662' sanInN - 0659 dwnd "1g ueiq ueg @ pig 399d 143 120e/se/eo 39949
GE'2SL'PS 00°240'% [ebe7 - 619 juswased aul Jemes joulsig JogieH D77 ewled @ [91s0d ‘80ld 0262  1L202/ve/e0 3oay)
G€°'620'05 00° /¥ [ebe7 - gg19 198[01d AW dLMM  LZ/8/E 2LLL8L "AU| 077 ewled g [91S0d ‘8alid 0262  L202/ve/e0 3o9yD
GE'8C9'6¥ £6°690'} s[esjwaLy) - £089 LZ/LLIE GE642) \dT AU "ou| ‘oyioed Bejuusig 6162  1202/¥e/c0 o8yn
Z¥'895'sy 00°08%'} Buypuey splos - 0859 LZ/6/S 610S9 AU ou|l'speads  8L6Z  1202/¥2/E0 pel:llie)
2¥'880°'LY 0009L'} 1D JogeT 10esjuoy - /059 wesAg 1ueg JogeT Joenuo) $9]e100s8Y g UuewabeH 162  120Z/72/S0 piel:-lilg)
Zv'826'sy G8'8S 1oulsiu| / suoydsie] - 689 Joulolu| G880 X # Jooe 191V 143 120z/22/50 el
156986l 05'¢€2 1swislu| / suoydsie] - 6869 02/ 1-¥£Z S08 18198 2819162.2/8¢ #1008 121V 143 120z/9Lic0 pcilie]
209¥8'Sy 00'86.'6 " 90R(lBEM dLMM - PSPES  LZ/0L/E 16228 "Aul ubisaq Buussulbul 41 MM 'ouj ‘dnois) soellBAM, 9162 L20Z/9L/E0 094D
20°8+0'9€ 12656 “"Bjulely JOJeIBuUlD) - 0EGY THBNEND J0JRlaUdD) d1 MM L2/S/E 925 AUl "OUj ‘9SNoYIaMod sin ues GL6Z  1202/91/€0 3o9Yyo
08'880°'GE L#'909 “auIely JoJeJaURD) - 0EG9  “TBNY Jojelsusn) uonels U Lg/S/E SZGY AUl "OU| ‘@snoysemod siInjues  GLeZ  LZ0Z/9L/E0 pilcllie)
6E°28Y ¢ GG ivl'E e g "dey "dinb3 - gzGgg  wnp Jewoisny LZ/6/€ Z00°GLL9¥000LS ‘AUl NG @ adid NOOWY BUBI BIUBS €162 1Z202/91/S0 Hoayo
¥8'¥€2'0¢ €206V Ul g rdey 'dinb3 . ZzG9  *"UMOOW BuIT JIeRNO 1L.Z/8/E ASDY Juswslels joulsIg JogleH sin ueg Jod ZL6Z  120Z/9L/g0 p Vo)
19'¥¥Z'0g €786 s[edlwayd - €059 VE/P/E 950921 Idg AU "ou| ‘oyioed Bejuusag LL6Z  L20Z/9L/E0 3oay)
89'192'6¢ L6 “lepy g “dey "dinb3 - zzs9 LZ/PE/C Uo ||led @0ineS wely ULIBlY LIB)SON 1BBID 8062  1202/91/€0 3o8y)
¥ 0L1'62 01°112'€ s)se] ge - 0¥S9 1202/2/€ 681G Juswalels "oul ‘lesifjeuy 1seo) suoleqy 2062 L202/H0/S0 39849
v1'268'G¢ 81°'62¢ e R "dey "dinb3 - gggo lle4 108UU0D O YA 2520ZM  “ou| Juswsbeuely 82in0say pint4 9062  1202/¥0/€0 19940
95°€96'62 81'62¢ ey ® "dey dinb3g . zzg9 wiely [pae quel ybi Lgz0gm  ~oul ‘uswabeue sainosey pinjd 9062  120Z/t0/E0 piecilie)
8€'¥£2'Ge 81'8€2'l “le|y g "dey "dinb3 . 2259 sanss| vAvOS 92102M  "ou] ‘Juswebeuepy 80inossy pin|4 9062  L202/70/€0 39940
02'966'cZ 0581 el B "dey "dinb3 - zg59 Jusweoe|doy 18qaruos Iy LOZ6LM  "Ouj ‘Juswabeue 801nosay pingd 9062  L20Z/¥0/E0 %99Yy9
01'i¥S'22 ZL9EL'SlL T O Jdogeioenuo - GOS9 915024 ‘Au| Auejueg 'sdO Lz0z ge4  ou] ‘Juewabeue)y 92unosay pinj4 9062  1202/¥0/€0 398y9
86°0L¥ 2 00°SEP 1D Jogen Joenuod - £0G9 weysAg temeg Joge] joenuo) $9)e100ssy 3 uuewsbeH G062  1202/¥0/20 3oayn
86'G/6'9 00'82S'I Buspuey spijos - 0859 12/91/2 $6819 "AU| Ul ‘'speads 062 1202/£0/€0 pecllie]
86'L¥¥'S 008251 Bunpuey spijos - 08s9 LZ/L/Z L0879 # A Ul ‘speads  $06Z  LZ0Z/0/E0 p i)
86'616'C 00'¥EE’} [efe1 - Gg19 juswase] aul emes Jouisiq JogeH 071 euwed %@ [9)s0d ‘8oud L06Z  1LZ20Z/S0/C0 329Yyd
86'685'¢C 00°Ghi [ebe . 6e19 18l0id AN d1MM 077 euwed % [9)sod ‘@oud L06Z  120Z/€0/€0 pRETe)
86°0.V'C 81°821°1L s[eolwayd - £0S9 L2/61/2 290221 |d€ "AU| 'ou| 'ogioed Bejuuesg 0062  1202/€0/S0 p il o)
0z'ere'l 19°120°1L s{eolway) - €059 Le/11/2 280021 149 "AU| ‘ou| ‘oyioed Bejuuesg 0062  1202/€0/€0 pellie)
£5°02¢ 96'vEl SailN - 06G9  J9IsdwiNg PA Z LSEVOLE-0Z L Jequny 190y aoinueg Arejues Aunod yinog 143 1202/20/50 petllig)
15681 15681 Joulsiul / suoydslsl - G859 S 06 9L16-G65 G08 # Jooe 181V 143 1202/10/€0 pREg)

Aiejueg

aouejeg junowry Juno22Yy OWIdN aweN wnN ajeq adAL

L20T youew

SJUNO22Y/M pun4 Aq s)oayo LZ/L0/P0

12U)SIQg S3DIAISE AJIUNWIWO Yoeag BlIAY



¢ abeyd

82°'8.5°G6 82'8.5'S6 Iv.10L

05°€85°12Z 05'€85'12 Jolep lejoL
05°¢8S'1Le €068 lig Jomes R JoJeM - 0821 SO rav IONVYIVE 0D INIWLSNray IONYIVE ravy 1z0z/Le/co pRET i)
Lyvev'le 00048 10 JogeT Joesuo) - 2069 walsAg Jejepn Joge 10eue) $9]e100ssY B uuewsbeH €262  1Z0Z/0€/€0 3oayo
L¥'¥29'0e 81041 salnN - 0659 ‘PY Buipue eae) £1LZL 399d 143 1202/52/0 ¥oayo
62 ¥St'02 00'G0¢"t '[9 JogeT] Joenuo) - £0S9 walsAg Jajepn Joge 10enuo) $8]BI00SsY 3 uuewsbey LL6Z  1202/¥2/S0 p o)
6Z'6¥1'61 ¥6°019'Y “uiSAg JBlBM Z-M - 2228 ) UOHEIS) U) UONEOOISY JSION Jelep 8120ZM  Oul ‘Juswabeuely aoinosey pinjg 9062  1202/0/€0 p 1Y o)
Ge'8es'vl 81'62¢ ~seday wawdinb3 - 0zg9 Aemyted Lgz 18 Yo7 L610ZM  oul ‘Juswabeuep 82.n0say pinid 906¢  LZ02/P0/E0 30840
21602'v1 S¥'880'8 Jleday juswdinb3 - pzgg J9jo| MO|4 YuB] BjgEHOd 8F00ZM Ul ‘Juswabeuely 82inosay pin|4 9062  1202/¥0/E0 3o8Y)
2.021'9 05°see uley g "dey dibg - pzgg  sueday youms b juel [eowwBYD LOZ6LAN  'OU| ‘luswabeuely 82inosay pin|4 9062  1202/¥0/€0 398y
22'688'S 8¢ 12 sjesiwayy - €069 s[egnusy) 0SH0ZY  oul ‘Juswseuey 82in0ssy pinj4 906z  1202/v0/€0 994D
¥6'£98'S Z6'2¥0's " Q JogeT 10enuo - G059 916024 ‘AUl JSleM SO 1202 984 "Ou| Juswabeuely 8ainosey pinjg 906  1202/t0/€0 398yD
20°128 002’ 19 Joge 10eluo) - 2059 welsAg Ja1epn Joge Joejuo) sejelnossy g uuewsbey G062  L202/¥0/E0 3}oayo
2096 06'1L $904 1§ SHuLad - GGG9 29SLELO AUL Lg/G/C TTIMSS UifesH juswuoliaug jo 1deq €062  1LZ0Z/0/E0 piecllig]
zL've ZVve “ulep g "dey "dib3 - $2G9 e 8y} e pajelsu] JsloN Jetepn Joj Buiddiys OT1'eu0e0ld 8682  1202/S0/€0 pieclle]

19)e A

aouejeg junowy Juno22Yy owan aweN wnN ajeq adAL

L20T Yose|

SJUNO23Y/M pung Aq s)o9YyH 12/20/¥0

1UISI S991AI88 ANUNWWOY YIeaq ejIny



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

2385 Precision Drive
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420
www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax #

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Transaction

Statement

3/31/21

805.597.7171

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Amount Due

Amount Enc.

$27,911.31

Amount

Balance

03/31/21

02/28/21

02/28/21

06/24/20
08/07/20

03/31/21

03/26/21

03/25/21

03/25/21

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
INV #F20633. Orig. Amount $20,179.64.

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-
INV #A20533. Orig. Amount $169.85.

348F110041 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-
INV #A20534. Orig. Amount $9.72,

W219552 First Street Lift Station Pumps, S-
INV #W19552. Orig. Amount $549.50.
PMT #2743.

W20146 Pipe Repair for Service Line-
INV #W201486. Orig. Amount $4,598.84.

W20394 Storm Event-
INV #W20394. Orig. Amount $2,013.86.

W20432 Booster Station Hose Bib Replaceme-
INV #W20432. Orig. Amount $320.58.

W20438 Burglar Alarm Callout-
INV #W20438. Orig. Amount $373.16.

CURRENT

27,731.74

W20441 Storm Water Discharge Complaint-
1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

DUE

31-60 DAYS PAST  61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

20,179.64

169.85

9.72

6.50
-6.50

4,598.84

2,013.86

320.58

373.16

OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

20,179.64

20,349.49

20,359.21

20,365.71
20,359.21

24,958.05

26,971.91

27,292.49

27,665.65

Amount Due

$27,911.31

Page 1




FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

2385 Precision Drive
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420
www.{rm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Statement

Date
3/31/21

California Certified Small Business #1120142

Amount Due Amount Enc.

Transaction

$27,911.31

Amount Balance

03/31/21 |INV #W20441. Orig. Amount $245.66.

61-90 DAYS PAST
DUE

31-60 DAYS PAST
[3]¥]3

1-30 DAYS PAST
DUE

CURRENT

27,731.74

245.66 27,911.31

OVER 90 DAYS
PAST DUE

Amount Due

$27,911.31

Page 2




AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage@
DATE: April 13, 2021

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Advisory Committee

The Zone 3 Advisory Committee most recently met on Thursday March 18", The agenda packet for the
March 18" meeting is included with staff report and among other topics, includes an analysis of the
2020 cloud seeding program. As of this writing Lopez Lake is at an elevation of 479 feet, is at 39% of
capacity and has approximately 19,200 acre feet of water in storage. For the season, the lake received
approximately 10.65 inches rainfall, which is about 53% of normal for the season.

The highest priority for the Zone 3 Contractors and County staff is completing the contract
amendment/update. County staff circulated a Notice of Intent to prepare the CEQA documentation for
the contract update and is now preparing the Initial Study and draft CEQA document. The draft CEQA
document is scheduled to be circulated for public comment in early spring.

Unfortunately, the Department of Water Resources sent out a Memo on March 23, 2021, advising that
they were decreasing the 2021 State Water Project Allocation from 10% to 5%. The County Flood
Control District has advised the State Water Contractors that they have enough water in storage from
previous years at San Luis Reservoir that they will be able to meet all State Water Sub Contractor
demands for 2021. This is encouraging for this year, but magnifies the importance for at least an
average rainfall year next year.

Sewer Line Easement through Harbor District Parking Lot

Staff is happy to report that at the March 23, 2021, Port San Luis Harbor District meeting, the
Commissioners approved the sewer line easement. CSD staff is now moving forward with completing
the design and bid documents and hope to have the project out for bid this summer with construction in

the fall.

FY 2021/22 Budget Preparation

Staff will be meeting with the Finance Committee on April 8" to review the Preliminary FY 2021/22
budget. With input from the Committee, staff will prepare a draft FY 2021/22 budget for the Board’s
review and comment at the May 13, Board meeting. With the Board’s input, staff will prepare a ﬁnal
draft of the budget and schedule a hearing to consider adoption of the FY 2021/22 budget at the June gt

Board meeting.




ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

AGENDA

Thursday, March 18, 2021 6:30 P.M.
Due to COVID-19 Meeting Protocols
we will hold the meeting via Goto Meeting or via Phone

Phone line: +1 (872) 240-3412
Access Code: 931-623-109

OR
Webinar: hitps://global.gotomeeting.com/join/931623109

|. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Il. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is also an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items that

are not on the Agenda

IIl. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
A. Jan 21, 2021 Regular Meeting — Attachment 1

IV. OPERATIONS REPORT

A. Water Plant Operations, Reservoir Storage, Downstream Releases - Verbal Update

B. Projected Reservoir Levels — Attachment 2
C. January & February Monthly Operations Report — Attachment 3

V. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. 2™ Quarter FY 2020/2021 Budget Status - Attachment 4

B. Cloud Seeding Update — Attachment 5
C. Contract Changes Update — Verbal Update
D. Voluntary Reductions - Verbal Update

VI. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE
A. Bi-Monthly Update — Attachment 6

VIl. ACTION ITEMS (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)
VIil. ACTION ITEMS (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

A. Fiscal Year 2021/22 Budget Endorsement
B. Estimated Surplus Water in WY 20/21 — See Attachment 7

IX. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

X. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Next Regular Meeting is Tentatively Scheduled for
May 20, 2021 at 6:30 PM

10f25



Attachment 1
SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL

AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
THURSDAY January 21, 20221

Call to Order and Roll Call -- The Zone 3 Advisory Committee Meeting was called to
order at 6:30 PM via GoTo Meeting due to the Covid-19 pandemic by Chairperson,
Karen Bright. County Public Works Utilities Division Senior Engineer and Secretary to
the Advisory Committee, Jill Ogren, called roll. Quorum was present. Members in
attendance were:

o Kristen Barneich, City of Arroyo Grande

e Karen Bright, City of Grover Beach

e Shirley Gibson, Oceano CSD

e Marcia Guthrie, City of Pismo Beach

e Brad Hagemann, County Services Area 12

e Brian Talley, Agriculture Member

¢ Ron Reilly, Member At Large

Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the
Committee on items that are not on the Agenda. No public comment.

Approval of Meeting Minutes (Attachment 1)
A. November 19, 2020 — Member Barneich motioned approval of the minutes
and Member Gibson seconded. Member Bright requested roll call for approval.

Motion passed.

Operations Report

A. Water Plant Operations, Reservoir Storage, Downstream Releases — Jenny
Williamson, Administrative Assistant at the Lopez Water Treatment Plant, indicated:
Lopez Lake elevation was 479.54 feet; storage was 19,475 acre-feet (AF), which is
39% capacity; rainfall to date, since July 1, 2020, was 2.36 inches; plant production
was 3.7 million gallons per day (MGD); downstream release was 3.2 MGD; and State

Water was at 0.6 MGD.

Question was raised regarding the Lopez Lake elevation and current rainfall as to if
the Low Reservoir Responée Plan (LRRP) would be initiated. TAC has recommended
a “wait and see” approach to monitor where the lake elevation is at the end of the rain
season before deciding on moving forward with initiating the LRRP or to prioritize
moving forward with the contract changes.

B. Projected Reservoir Levels — Review of the Lopez Reservoir Projections Chart
(Attachment 2 of the Agenda Packet). Currently the projection is showing storage
falling close to the 17,000 AF mark by August unless Zone 3 receives more rain than
what current projections show in the coming months.

Downstream releases would have been at 1.9 MGD at this time of year, but due to the
Zone 1/1A AG Creek project, downstream releases were lowered from September to

20f25



October. Since that time additional water for downstream releases has been provided
(3.2 MGD). Additionally, until more rain is received downstream releases will not
change between now and the end of the water year on March 318, unless less water
is required by Ag. 1.9 MGD is the minimum that can be released.

C. November and December Monthly Operations Report — Review of the monthly
operations reports with the committee (Attachment 3 of the Agenda Packet). Oceano
has used all their entitlement water and currently using their surplus water, all other
agencies are still utilizing their entitlement water.

No public comment was given.

. Information Iltems

A. Proposed FY 21/22 Budget — Review of the proposed budget (Attachment 4 of
the Agenda Packet) by Sherri Weiss and Lynette O'Neill. Proposed budget will be
mailed to the contracting agencies’ Finance Directors, TAC members and City/General
Managers. An in-depth review with agency Finance Staff and Technical Staff will be
held before final review by the Zone 3 Advisory Committee, scheduled for March 18,

2021.

It was noted that the City of Pismo Beach had no cost amount listed under the category
for Lopez Dam Bonds and Admin. Fees on page 14 of the proposal, a question was
asked if Pismo had no responsibility in costs. Sheri Weiss, interim Zone 3 Finance
Analyst, will look into the manner and send information to the Advisory

Committee.

Request was made by the Advisory Committee for legends for the charts in the
proposal booklet be sent for better clarification.

B. Cloudseeding Update — On November 17, 2020, the Board of Supervisors
approved the Zone 3 Cloudseeding Program for FY 20-21 as well as utilizing the City
of Arroyo Grande’s water tank site as location to install ground seeding equipment.
Program began December 1, 2020 and continue through April 15, 2021. This year was
a ground-based program only and we have seeded one time on December 27/28%
with 28 flares. Estimated cost for FY 20/21 is $180,000. There are currently three
ground seeding site options for use, one being the recently acquired ground site for
Arroyo Grande and two sites managed by Santa Barbara County at Berros Peak and

Mt. Lospe.

There are currently two storm systems anticipated over the coming week for seeding,
one system expected tomorrow and another the following week pending conditions.

Consultant will be releasing an analysis report covering the first-year program (19-20)
and estimated increase in runoff and precipitation due to cloud seeding. Report will be
brought to the committee. Year three of the program has been budgeted for in the 21-
22 budget. Discussion in June will take place on whether the cloudseeding program

should continue.

C. Contract Changes Update — A brief update was provided on the status of the
contract changes. Draft CEQA document expected by March 2021 with a public review

30f25



period starting in Apri/lMay 2021. After public review, contract changes will be
submitted to the governing board review for approval in June/July 2021. Contract
expected to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for final approval in September
2021.

D. Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) Expenditure History — A request was made
at the last Advisory Committee meeting for further details on how much was spent and
what the money was spent on for the HCP. In response, a FY timeline starting in
1994/95 was provided (Attachment 5 of the Agenda Packet) breaking down what funds
were spent and where.

Due to the substantial amount of money spent on the HCP, the Advisory Committee
is requesting benchmarks, or a schedule be put together to monitor the project’s
expenses and other future ongoing projects. Currently the HCP is still in draft form
with the latest being a 2004 draft. Over the last couple of years work on the HCP was
slow as the contract changes had been the focus. Efforts have ramped up with the
initiation of the In-stream Studies.

No public comment was given.

VI. Capital Projects Update
Bi-Monthly Update - Jill Ogren introduced David Spiegel as her replacement upon
retiing on March 4%. Updates were provided on the various capital projects
(Attachment 6 of the Agenda Packet).
A request was made for a status report on the Cathodic Protection project. TAC had
recommended a specific funding option and direction to follow. Currently Desiree
Bravo is working on this project and putting together a Request For Proposal (RFP).
Terminal Reservoir was discussed regarding when to expect a plan on when or if the
reservoir will be retrofitted. Currently an RFP for a consultant is being developed to

perform the seismic alternative study and the geotechnical testing. The project could
take up to 2 years.

No Public comment was given.

VIl. Action Items (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)

No Action ltems discussed.

VIIl. Action Items (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

IX. Future Agenda Items
Cloudseeding, Contract Changes, and regular updates on the HCP

X. Committee Member Comments

Meeting Adjourned at 8:25 PM

4 0f 25



Respectfully Submitted,

Jenny Williamson
County of San Luis Obispo Public Works Department

5o0f 25



SCi09

000

00T

Qo'v

00’9

008

0001

007t

00'vT

'§2'T A payjdiynus st mojyul ay3 Youi T dA0GeE S| 3FeJaAe aY3 41 ‘T°0 AQ MU

paipaad ay1 AdiInw jim [3pow 33 Youl T mojaq S syiuow aa1y3 snoinald ayl Joy |ejules Ajlep a9esae 3y | ‘uoseas Aules 3y} SuLNP SWICISUIRS ey} MOJJUI SS3] BSNED ||IM UIR)
INOYUM SYIUOW J314E SWI0ISUIRL 1511 B L '|SPOLU Y3 QU] PRI0JIEY 3. SUCIHPUOD UNISIOW JUEPIDIUY "elep 93801 pue U0NLYIdIda.d [EJLOISIY JO J0 PBsEq S| MOl PRAIPaId ‘€
'SaLaAIBP Alyjuow 33esane 6TOZ I9Q -0TOZ Uef uo paseq si adesn |ediBiuniy 7

*a8esn [edidiunw pue ‘s3sanbal 3sedjas Wea1suMop TZ-0T ‘IIBjuies pa1dipaid uo paseq moju) “wod 1ayleamagdueSuo| waiy jjejuiel pa3aipald uo paseq s| uonaafoid adesms ‘T

21eq
d ~ 2 & < <« = = < = =< = @ g L L £ v AN =
= = - - - - = a = = = = ) - ) [y — = = [y
N N N N N () [ N N N [») ~N N [ (W) N ) (2] N [\
(=] o o [=] [=] o o o (o] Q o o (=] o (o] [=) (=] o (=] (=]
Y] N N N N (2] [ N N [ nN N [ [ N N N [ [ N
s [y et s et et - [t S S o o 53 ) a S S [S) S o
=Sl & - S| L —— O ; " v S —= .e_l -F 0
. . » . n - L i |
3 _ (44 a—‘ 00¢ O0¢ 006G 000 OOC v7:0 00'cy _
n i | Nm O : i .
o co | o
i - | 1 | . 3
i | . H 8 | _ | ¢ ! il
e — 1t e _ i - 0005
d i il | i il
_ i I [ | _ ! _ i _ :
i ! ) I i _ . _ , | | .
_ " ! i _ i | | i _ 144 i
H 1 )
| i 3 _ t ! : ! i | [
i i ] 1 H
...... _— e g i i —_—_— - __ — )= ——+ 00001
3 t 1 ' ! I L
: i ) !
J ! !
1
i

000sT

s

0000¢

(4v) 98ea018

0oosz

——| 0000€

ujey oK) uoaalolg adelolg

1 . P n.,»: bl ot ).} My st bt ‘2. ¥ e : ||._...I.|_|--.It - 000SE
I | m i I A D T [
| | 4
| | ! 39810]S |BNIIY e | co_umu_n_uw‘_auuuu_vw._m.l . co_umu_n_ua&_mzﬁil 1
“ _ _ M _ "

U0N23(0.d ITLI01S s | 4V 000°0C == ==

0000t

NOILO3(0Yd 3OVHOLS HIOAY3SIY Z3dO1

7 Wuawiyoeny




1 foadvy

SCioL

wpupy  :Aq pajuned 1aoday

onpLg (] Aq pasajuz ving [207 ' Aibnuqa,y Avpuopy
000 ) (3993 2108} 93e[1dg |
75°€65T 85°90€ (T234/199) 2108 ()T ) 258A[Y WkANSUMOQ
A 18°9 l1gpurey
N £ 5 Y%¥ OF ind % vL86L (193] 2108 00Z6b 18 |(0y) aTeinlg
“auour sty 33esn s,5puelD OACLY WOL PIIOBIGNS Sem I 9F'] PUE YIUOW STy1 95esn Iajem 5,0uE3d() 01 pappe = " "
S 35210 uokue)) 01 PAIAALRP AV 98°1 JO [2I01 V 'INO LM BUPY $,9PURID 0A0LTY ElA 18917 U0KuE)) 0} Jajem payddns ouesagy (| 61t (o) aouasapiq SEost 129) LE'2TS Ie Ty) WOHEADIT YT
e 03 183X | Yuop sIg L suonesad( weq zado|
IFHUIWUOYY
193 alde
|[eyutes 10§ juasaid o) Aing pue ‘sstsatjap zadorT 10§ uasard o) Judy ‘wjem 23815 10§ uassad o) Lienuer st e 0} 183X, 0£L'8 St PIRIA 3jeS "193] 210D (96 “£f 10 SuO[[ed (58 ‘STE = 100J 2108 U ']23J 2138 UY AUE SIUIAN] IION
Biwues 0 ZivRom 8401 05900
(2 02, e 0. AN 2. ko oz, dog w®. Bny 0.1 0%, une w N 0z, 1y 12, oep 02,200 02, Ao 8. 30 ot deg o top o2, unr o0z, sdy

oz 4sn

e ey

|

aBas) sogep swp sy oy Aenuer

ofiEa[) asyepp 2N|AING HUOWORARUTF Zadon Jwasdud O} jlady

80°TLET 131EM RIS PIOIS YOI SILL LYLOEL | 1aiepm 1e1S PAUOIS YIUOR IseT \—
ETLIY orrL  |%by 65°01 IV°E9 L |%yy | 6esor wz [lwecee | 1ovizy |weeve | 9626z [%9'98 | sotzee o8 |weL [#81gc | oueis | oocsin | oo'cost | ogsy | IBIOL
9b'y %L'E 9t %L'§ 9%’y {1141 O[T UES
SE01 %9 €19 %P9 £1°9 96  M%eor | everl %00 000  |%E9% | ErEll 000 |%L'] TP | 00'svT | 000 0086 | StT 71 VSO
£9'921 %0°0 00'0 %00 00'0 ST Hl%9es | 8TIT6 |%SY 8T'6Z  |%0'00L | 0068 3762 %601 | SU'L6 § 00°LpST | 00659 | 0055 | 768 Yoeag owstq
6069 %SEL | 607199 %00 000 |%9°T8 | 60°199 000 %98 | o069 | 00006 | 00001 | oo'sic | oos | UdEad IOAOID
8t'SS %00 1 oeoo %00 | 000 0 %8'06 | 89995 [%I'Z8 | 89€97 [%0001| 00'€oE f|%cLl | sv'ss |%o0 000 | 00%29 | o01ze | oo1T1 | gog dsD ouedg
ik %18 | €1'T$61 |%0°0 000 1%Ts8 | €1z861 000 |%0s |zvisifootovz | oo'l11 | 00’116 | o6zz | SPUBLD OAOLY
Wuol SIL | sausae Jsanbay a3eio)g | souaalp __nm._,,__.v__ow sssnbayfl % adesn % ades) % 23es(} a3es(} % | °8esn | 1em patejoac
saLRAlRq dMS BTy 3o o, s3esn) uradueyn| dms 10 % a3esn) |enuy jelo], snjding 1uawiauy snjding wowepyu  JA148|IRAY | pojsonboy | 491BM A030e01B07)
TRIEM ISI0L juasalg 0) Atenuef WUOW ST 25314 01 Judy IUOA] SIY [, eiol | smdmg | snpding | pug
SILIIAI(] 1EA\ EIS SALIdALR( 193e AN Z3doT

120T ‘Arenue(
Hoday] suonerdd( A[JIUON - 103loid zado] - ¢ auoz

10LSI(] 19JB AN PUB [013U0)) POO]] AUNno)) odsiqQ ST ues

€ Juswydeny




S¢jog

I Jo J23vg uuipy  :4q pauad rodsy oanig q  :4q pa.suz viog 1207 '€ Y20py ‘Svpsaupay
i . AV 1LE 014V [T€ oy passulpe sem jsanbay 1318 snpding sQSIO Pue 4 509 01 000 o (132} a1oe) adeqpdg
AV §59 oy paisnipe sem p ¥ 1oiepm snjding sowstd “GSOO 01 Javem snydins su Jo Jyos pejuesd owsly |0z Aengay uj (g
TTEOLT 4601 CWUA\—uu.w AR OONVV Ummv_ox weasumed]
*AV 09 01 AV ST Wwoy) Y[ 12quialdag uo jsanbay A13ale(] 39EM 21EIS [ENUUE 15Y) PasiAal ASIO (2 156 LE'0 II8jurey
3 m 5 Ya6'6E 1A % 1£961 (133 2198 OTHY 18 [Ny) 93m10)5
“JIUOUS STY} a38SN $,9pURID OACLIY WAL pajdengns sem J¥ 96°( Pu8 (uow 51y 3gesn Ia1em 5,0UB0() 0] pappe iy " .
SEAL 15310 UOKUBD) O} P3JRALIP IV 9671 JO [BI0} ¥ 'I00 WIN) BUPH S3PULID) OAOLIY BIA 15310 U0AUR)) 01 Jatem parjddns ouesaqy (1 Do (2ay) 20wo13p1Q LE6LY (3203 LE'TES 18 1INg) HONEA3|T 2Ye']
RNB 03 4B | YIuop SIq L suoygesdQ we(q zadoy
isjudunuoy
J23) 2108
‘Tiejutel 1o} Juassad o) Ajn[ pue ‘sauar[ap zado Joj jussald o1 [udy ‘I1a1eam 23e)g Joj Juasaid o3 Alenuef st 218 011894, OFL'8 51 P[AIA 3JeS 193y 210N0 Q96 ‘E 10 SUO[EF (S8 ‘STE = 100] AIIE AUQ) '}99J JIIE Uf AIE SILIAIR( DION
Bymwe B £iveD S Ba B asda0 [T
iz.ast [* A w2.9% 02, AN (-2 oz, deg oz. By oz, 107 02, unr oz. & o2, v " A \zounp 02,200 e 2o o0z.d 2, By oz ozunr oz Aew ,-«, wy
—_— '
z
of
vi
§
9
L
afesy) JmeA MM JSERIY 03 Aienue; abusp} 1oy snjdingajueapiul zedo Juesesg o) |udy
0£'9Zv1 131BM RIS PAIOIS JIUOA ST SO'ILET | 131m 2101S Pa20Ig Yiuop 15e] _
vS'LOY 00TPT |%L'6 L8767 7TSS 89 |%gs | sl vt J|ve908 | Le6oor [%ior | I8'SLy [%2'i6 | 95e€ty [|%p'sT | s8'281 [%Lr [ 1611z ] o0'LiLs | o0c811 | 00c08s | ogsy | IEIOL
79'9 %6 80'11 %S 799 0z1 O[Sl Ues
98'01 %221 6221 %b'9 919 96 fl%Tsr | €181t |%00 000 |%z8r | £ra1l Jlwoo 000 |%6'] oLt | 005k 000 00°86 ST 21 VSD
9E'pE| %00 00'0 %00 000 s |lesor | porssol |woiz | voreot |%0001 | o0zes |[wzzz | oever |%oo 000 | ooLevl | 00509 | 0o'sse | zes Yaeag owslq
££'09 Yoz os | erize w00 000 |%zoe | zvizr f|l%o0 000 |%S'L ££'09 | 00006 | 00001 | 00'31¢ | oog | UO€IY I9A0IL)
68 %00 | o000 %00 000 0 %ET6 | LUSIO |%Iv8 | L1ZIE |%0°001 | 00'€0E f|%I'€l | 6b8p [%00 000 | 00¥Lo | 60'1LE | 00'1TI | €0€ {sD oueasy
38°9Y [ %y'L8 | 10°660T |%0°0 000 |%L16 | 10°660Z f|%00 0’0 |%F9 | 88'9r1 | 00'10bT | 00111 | 00116 | 06zz | PURID OAOLIY
WU SIGL | somvarpaq Jsanbay sfeiolg | sepmalsqg _wap__w:ow sanbay || % a3esn % ades() % adesy % adesn % | 98esn | ojep pole[aa(
saLLBAIR dms JEmnry jo o adesn uraduey)| dmsS w0 | %8s | [enuuy |Bof snjding Juswsp Uy snding wowapyuy | A9BUBAY | pasonbay | 4EM 1630843U0D)
IEM [BI0L Juasaxg o3 Axenueg QIO L 1ussalg 0} [udy YIUO SIGL 1m0l smdmg | snqdimg | pug
SALIBAIPR( 1B NBIS SALDAIR( 1NeA ZadoT _

1207 ‘Axeniqoq
Hoday suonerad( ATJIUOIN - 103l01d zadoT - € U077

101SI(J 19JBA\ PUR [O13U0)) POO[] Aunoy) odsiqQ S ueg




Attachment 4

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
Department of Public Works

John Dicdati, Interim Director

COUNTY
*=SANLUIS

OBISPO

March 18, 2021

MEMORANDUM

TO: Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee

Jenny Morgan, Accountant lil
Sherri Weiss, Admin. Services Manager

FROM:

SUBJECT: Flood Control Zone 3, Second Quarter Budget Status, Fiscal Year 2020-21

Recommendation

The item to be received and filed.

Summary

Attached please find a comparison of the budget to actual expenses for the second quarter of
fiscal year 2020-21. The $6.3M budget is broken into three categories: Routine Operations &
Maintenance, Non-Routine Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Outlay. At the end of the
second quarter, 34% of the total annual budget has been expended.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q2 Available Expended
6,366,952 2,156,741 4,210,211 34%

Routine O&M: This category has a budget of $4.1M dollars. At the end of the second quarter,
47% of the annual budget has been expended, resulting in approximately $2.2M available for
the remainder of the year. Expenses in this category are on target with budgeted levels.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q2 Available Expended
4,150,223 1,964,828 2,185,395 47%

N 'C:)un_ty-oi san Luis Obispb_Department?f'#MC Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229

pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov

9 of 25




Non-Routine O&M: This category has a budget of approximately $1.7M. At the end of the
second quarter, 7% of the annual budget has been expended, resulting in an available balance
of roughly $1.6M for the remainder of the year. Most of the items in this category have had
budget carried forward from the prior year in order to continue work on them.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q2 Available Expended
1,688,057 115,457 1,572,600 7%

Capital Outlay: This category has a budget of almost $580,000. At the end of the second
quarter, expenses were 13% of the annual budget, resulting in approximately $502,000
available for the remainder of the year. Unspent budget from the prior year has been carried
forward for several projects and accounts for the majority of this category's budget.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q2 Available Expended
578,672 76,456 502,216 13%

Other Agency Involvement/Impact

The agencies involved are: City of Arroyo Grande, City of Grover Beach, City of Pismo Beach,
Oceano Community Services District, and County Service Area 12. Subcontractors of CSA 12
include Port San Luis Harbor District and Avila Beach Community Services District.

Financial Consideration

Revised billings for FY 2019-20 were mailed along with the 2" installment of the FY 2020-21
billings that were due jJanuary 1, 2021. All agencies are current on their payments.

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229

wd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov
P 10 ol’ 25



Zone 3 Budget Status

2nd Quarter FY20/21
Routine Operation and Maintenance
4,500,000 ——— =
4,250,000 —/l
4,000,000
3,750,000 //
3,500,000 e
3,250,000 + = —
3,000,000 +— = —
e 2,750,000 - =3 = ) B
-~ 2,500,000 +—— — . —=—Budgeted
4 2,250,000 o
© e / —o—Actual
et 2,000,000 +— 7 - i
o 1,750,000 —
(m] L /4 .
1,500,000 5
1,250,000 =
1,000,000 +— A —
750,000 o
500,000 + -
250,000 '/ -
0 T 1
0 1 2 3 4
Quarter
Total Exp as | Totai Balance
D&M Routing Category Total Budget | 1st Quarter | 20d Quarter | 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Totat % of Bq_adﬂgﬂ Avail
Labor Hours 23,728 5,183 5,859 - - 11,042 4T%
Chetmnicals - Water Treatment Plant $ 438,496 | ¢ 149,755 | $ 131,331 | § - $ - $ 281,086 84% $ 57,412
Water Quality Testing - Treatment Plant 46,262 12,718 11,374 - $ 24092 52% 22,190
Electricity - Water Treatment Plant 295,445 94,582 81,708 - - $ 176,290 H0% 119,155
Al Other Costs - Water Treatment Plant 1,691,940 383,007 470,723 - - $ 853,730 50% 838,210
Terminal 272,343 18,567 49,052 - - $ 87,619 25% 204,724
Main Dam 357,313 44,832 47,261 $ 92,093 26% 265,220
Other 1,048,402 206,398 263,520 $ 469,918 45% 578,484
Expenses 809,860 1,054,969 1.964,!;28 4Th 2,185,395
Budget 4,150,223 1,037,556 1,037,556 1,037,556 1,637,556 311 2.6.57
Variance {overjyunder 127,696 {17,413) 1,037,556 1,037,556 2,0 57,(;99
% Variance 12%| -2% 100% 1005

11 of 25



Zone 3 Budget Status
2nd Quarter FY20/21

Non-Routine Operation and Maintenance

1,800,000 — —
1,700,000 |— )
1,600,000 +— 7
1,500,000 - — —
1,400,000 —
| 1,300,000
| 1,200,000 >
|
& 1,100,000
7)) 1 ,000 ,000 T / —m— Budgeted
o
© 900,000 - —— =3 =
— ——
° 800,000 - S————— /' _ Actual
o 700,000 +——— =
600,000 ﬁ/ — —~
500,000 +—— —_—
400,000 | 7; R
300,000 —_— —— ]
200,000 — —_——
100,000 {~——————* .
0 | |
Quarter
Total Exp as | Total Bajance
.O&M Non Routine Category Total Budget | 1stQuarter | 2nd Quarter | 3rd Quarter | 4th Quarter Total % of Budget Avail
Lopez Water Rights IHCP $ 415285 | § 16,750 | $ 17871 | $ - $ 34,621 8% $ 380,664
Cathodic Protection Repair Project 449,833 - - - - 0% 449,933
Geotech Test/Seismic At Study Terminal Dam 89,829 % 89,829
Safety Upgrades to WTP 53,282 - - - o% 53,282
_Replace Obsolete Hach Turbidimeters 53,100 - 59,695 59,695 112% {6,595)
Water Treatment Alternatives Study 35,000 - - 0% 35,000
Risk Assessment Fault Zone Left Abutment 40,000 . - % 40,000
‘Cloud Seeding Program 350,672 15,872 2,585 - 18,557 5% 332,115
‘'Domestic Tank Repair 10,674 - - - 0% 10,674
Spitiway Physical investigation 190,282 - 2,584 2,584 % 187,698
Expenses 32,722 82,735 115457 ™ 1,572,600
Budget 1,588,057 422,014 422,014 422,014 422,014 1,688,057
‘variance {overjunder 389,292 339,280 422,014 422,014 1,572,600
‘% Variance 92% 80% 100%| 100%

12 of 25



Zone 3 Budget Status
2nd Quarter FY20/21

Capital Outlay
600,000
/ l
500,000 7
/
N
400,000 » —
o, Vi ’
& P
e ’,/
7)) / —a— Budgeted
o
& 300,000 +— - - —
— —o— Actual
o | S— N—
(]
200,000 — //
100,000 2 —
0 T
Quarter
Total Exp as | Total Balance
Capital Outiny Projacts Totai Budget | 1stQuarter | 2nd Quarter | 3rd Omarter | 4th Quarter Total % of Budget Avail
mproved Boat Access at Term Res $ 50,000 - | $ - s - $ - $ 50,000
Equip Storage Garage Design 89,849 - - - - 0% 89,848
Fireflow Tank Repair 85,000 - - - - - 0% 85,000
-Mini Excavator 45,700 50,092 - - - 50,092 107% {3,392)
‘Dump Traser 9,500 - 10,960 - - 10,960 115% {1.,460)
ATV, Polaris 15,000 - 15403 - - 15403 103% {403)
New Water Treatment Barge 50,000 - - . - . % 50,000
Upgrade EQ Pump 17,623 - - - o% 17,623
Carbon Dioxide Injection System 160,000 - - - - 0% 460,000
Various Equipment Replacement 55,000 - - - % 55,000
Expenses 50,092 26,363 - - 76456 13% 502,216
Budget 578,672 144,668 144,668 144,668 444,668 578,672
Variance (overjunder 94,576 118,305 144,668 144,668 502,216
% Variance 65%) B2%. 100% 100%

13 0f 25




Attachment 5

North American Weather Consultants, Inc.
Applied Meteorology, Meteorological Research, Weather Modification
Nch I N C TELEPHONE: 801-942-8005 E-MAIL: NAWC@NAWCINC.COM

8180 SOUTH HIGHLAND DRIVE, SUITE B2, BANDY, UT B4093

SEEDING INCREASE ESTIMATES
FOR THE LOPEZ LAKE WATERSHED CLOUD SEEDING PROGRAM
OPERATED
DURING THE 2020 WATER YEAR

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
Table 1.
Summary of Results
Measure Total for Seedable Period | Increase Attributed to Seeding Cost per AF
(AF) (AF) (s)
Runoff 3,098 468 353
Precipitation 30,000 3,200 52

The 2020 Water Year was characterized by long dry spells resulting from persistent high-pressure
systems above the central coast. With contracts formalized near the end of December the
commencement of operations was delayed until the first part of January. The first seeding opportunity
came in March of 2020. Though still below average, the earlier start in operations during the current
season has yielded far more seeding opportunities. NAWC has already performed more seeding for the
2021 Water Year than was performed during the entirety of the 2020 Water Year.

The Cloud Seeding program performed by NAWC for the 2020 Water Year cost a total of $165,525
and resulted in a calculated inflow (runoff captured by Lake Lopez) increase of an estimated 468 acre-feet
(AF) of water. This equates to a cost per acre-foot of $353, which is substantially less than other sources
of water in the region. For the 2021 Water Year, NAWC recommended the transition to a “ground-only”
seeding program to increase the overall program efficiency. Ground based programs in California’s Central
Coast have been the topic of numerous studies over the course of the last 50 years, and have been found
to yield similar results to aircraft programs when seeding “convective” storms, particularly “convective

bands.”

LOPEZ LAKE WATERSHED
Updating the Target Area and Watershed Maps

In order to provide an accurate estimate of the total rainfall and runoff that benefitted Lopez
Lake, NAWC undertook a topographical review of the Lopez Lake Watershed. NAWC reviewed the KMZ
files of the watershed internally, then compared our findings to the Basin maps provided by the California
Nevada River Forecast Center (CNRFC). Updating the boundary map of the watershed was critical to
ensuring an accurate estimate of the 2019-2020 program benefits.

14 of 25



The current map was defined in the original Feasibility and Design Study (Figure 1.) and represents
a land area of roughly 61,285 acres. After thorough topographical review, NAWC determined that roughly
19,000 acres of the defined area drained into Huasna Creek, not into Lopez Lake. Comparison with CNRFC
basin boundaries confirmed NAWC's findings.

Figure 1. Lake Lopez Watershed as defined in the original feasibility and design study.

The updated watershed map is provided (Figure 2.) for visual reference, and a KMZ files is
available upon request.

Figure 2. Updated map of the Lake Lopez Watershed.

15 of 25



Watershed Runoff Patterns

For evaluation purposes, NAWC has divided the watershed into three drainage zones based on
significant topographical features and runoff patterns (Figure 3.). The primary boundary for the three
zones is defined by a mountainous barrier that runs east/northeast across the central portions of the
watershed. This geographical boundary extends from Lake Lopez to the northeastern boundary of the
watershed, and is responsible for the lakes horseshoe-like appearance. Zones 1 and 2 produce runoff that
enters the northern portion of Lake Lopez while zone 3 produces inflow into the southern portions of the
lake. Zone 1 is the only source of metered inflow into Lake Lopez through Lopez Creek. The other 2 zones
produce runoff through various unmetered and unregulated canyons, channels and creek beds.

Figure 3. Drainage zones for the Lake Lopez Watershed.

ESTIMATING RUNOFF AND RAINFALL

Lopez Creek Inflow Estimates

During a typical year, total inflow numbers for Lopez Lake from Lopez Creek can be estimated
using stream gage data. For the 2020 Water Year NAWC has been unable to locate data sufficient for
determining seasonal stream flow totals from the USGS. Daily data is charted online but is insufficient for
a reliable seasonal estimate. Using Total inflow estimates provided by SLO County, and a regression
derived from a multi-year evaluation NAWC estimates that 1452 AF of inflow occurred through Lopez
Creek.

Though the Lopez Creek Drainage only accounts for roughly 1/3 of the Lopez Lake Watershed (by
areal representation), historical records indicate that this creek is responsible for just shy of 50% of the
total inflow into Lopez Lake.

16 of 25



During the design and feasibility study, it was determined that the average inflow from Lopez
Creek into Lopez Lake (from 1969 through 2009) is 6,606 acre-feet, suggesting that runoff for the 2020
Water Year was only 22% of average. During the seeding period of January — April of 2020, rainfall at Lopez
Dam was measured at close to 80% of average, suggesting that precipitation fared far better than runoff
during this period. This is not unusual for watersheds experiencing below average precipitation, as dry soil
conditions can require substantial amounts of rainfall before measurable runoff occurs.

Additional Inflow

Depending on weather patterns and soil conditions Zones 2 and 3 have historically accounted for
50-60% of the inflow into Lake Lopez. Given the soil conditions that permeated that the watershed last
year NAWC would predict that contributions from Zone 3 (particularly from the more southerly portions
of Zone 3) represented a smaller percentage of total inflow into Lake Lopez. This correlates well with our
estimates for Lopez Creek runoff of roughly 1500 AF and SLO Counties estimates for total inflow equaling

just over 3,000 AF.

Determining the source of inflow isn’t critical to NAWC's calculations for total increase estimates.
This information does, however, play a role in our planning and operations.

RUNOFF AND RAINFALL INCREASE ESTIMATES

Runoff and Inflow Increase Estimates

Two precipitation gauges (Lopez Dam and Lopez Recreation Area) were correlated with runoff
from Lopez Creek. Precipitation data were available online for these sites going back to the 2008 Water
Year. Another gauge (Upper Lopez) which is located further inside the target area, was established more
recently in early 2020. Rainfall data was compared to radar derived rainfall estimates for one seeding
event in March 2020 to help verify the representativeness of these gauge sites to the target area as a

whole.

Regressions conducted using recent precipitation data from the Lopez Dam and the Recreation
Area sites concluded that a 10% seasonal increase in precipitation {due to seeding operations) would
produce runoff increases of 13-17% with the more correlated of the gauges (Lopez Dam) indicating a 17%
increase in runoff. In the original SLO program feasibility study, a 9% precipitation increase resulted in a
roughly 13% increase in Lopez Creek runoff and a roughly 18% increase in Lopez Lake inflow. From these
analyses NAWC determined that an overall 10% increase in precipitation in the watershed would yield a
15% to 18% increase in the total inflow to Lopez Lake for the 2020 water year.

Increases in runoff are generally higher (in terms of percentages) than increases in precipitation,
due to the fact some precipitation is usually lost to recharging soil moisture before runoff begins. Thus,
additional precipitation (due to seeding) tends to increase the overall efficiency of runoff a multiplicative

or even exponential rate, especially in dry years.

Under the right conditions, a 10% increase in individual storm productivity will be the difference
between little to no runoff and measurable runoff. During storms of sufficient magnitude, all or portions
of the 10% increase will fall after soil conditions have met saturation thresholds and runoff is occurring.
These storms result in a very high efficiency between storm seeding increases and runoff increases.

17 of 25



Using the total Lopez Lake inflow value of 3,098 AF in 2020 and applying the derived increase
estimates (based on multi-year historical data analysis) cloud seeding in the Lopez Lake Watershed
resulted in an estimated 468 AF inflow (to Lopez Lake) increase.

Note that the results of work performed most recently for the Santa Barbara cloud seeding
program suggest precipitation increases closer to 17% for convective storms, which would corelate to a
more than 25% increase in runoff. NAWC used a significantly more conservative value of just over 10% for
the purpose of this study as portions of the 2020 water year relied on 1 AHOGS installation for seeding.
With the establishment of a 2" AHOGS installation for the 2021 water year, NAWC predicts a significant
improvement in seeding efficiency.

Rainfall Increase Estimates

In addition to calculating runoff increases, NAWC also considered the total precipitation that
occurred during the program’s operational period to estimate the increase in rainfall (Table 1).
Precipitation totals for each of the seeded storms can be found below in Table 2.

Table 1
Seasonal Rainfall Estimates
March — April 2020 Total rainfall at Upper Lopez 8.54 inches
Estimated natural (non-seeded) rainfall based on a 7.76 inches
10% increase assumed due to seeding
Difference {(assumed seeding increase) 0.78 inches
representative of target area
Table 2
Seeded Storm Period Rainfall
Storm period Upper Lopez rainfall Lopez Rec Area rainfall
(inches) {inches)
March 9-11 1.45 1.68
March 15-16 1.81 1.65
March 22-23 0.99 0.75
April 5-6 1.63 1.76

NAWC determined that the Upper Lopez Rain Gauge would be most representative of the
watershed, given its elevation and geographic location. Using the precipitation totals from this gauge
NAWC estimated that a total of 30,000 AF of precipitation occurred over the watershed during the
storms that were seeded for rain enhancement. With a minimum expected increase of 10% and a
maximum expected increase of 17% we estimate a total increase in rainfall of 3,200 AF.

From NAWC’s inflow estimates and runoff calculations, NAWC estimates that 15% of the
augmented rainfall contributed directly to Lopez Lake inflow, with the remaining portion being absorbed
by the pervasively dry soil. Though we do not ascribe a dollar value to water that is absorbed by the soil,

18 of 25



this water does play a significant role in recharging ground water and in supporting vegetation and
numerous animal species in the area.

To validate our rainfall estimates, NAWC performed a High-Resolution Radar analysis for the
storm that occurred from March 15-16. This HRR analysis uses radar data to recreate the storm events
that occurred during that calendar period, calculating estimated precipitation durations and intensities
across the watershed and the surrounding areas. The results of this analysis are represented in a rainfall

contour map (see Figure 4.).

35 L . e Ll
-120.7 -120.6 -120.5 -120.4 -120.3
Figure 4. Total precipitation contour map for the series of rainfall events that occurred beginning on

March 15t 2020.

Using the KMZ output file type, spatial representations for each rainfall contour can be ascribed,
and a weighted average for total rainfall in the watershed can then be derived. This process is recorded
in Table 3. The results of the HRR analysis suggest an average precipitation value of 2.3" across the
watershed, occurring between the 15" and 16" of March 2020. This number is slightly higher than the
rainfall that was measured at Upper Lopez Rainfall Gauge Site, suggesting that our total rainfall estimates
were likely conservative.

19 of 25



Table 3.

Derivation Data for Total Precipitation from March 15" to March 16" 2020

Contour | Areal Area 2 Total Percentage Avg Precip Weighted Average
Line (AF) (AF) (AF) (Inches) (Inches)
1.5 6608 3187 9795 23.77% 1.75 2.32
2 16491 16491 40.02% 2.25
2.5 5629 7882 13511 32.79% 2.75
3 1406 1406 3.41% 3
Total 41203

Stream flow and runoff calculations were derived independently of rainfal! estimates and are not
dependent on these calculations. NAWC asserts that the estimated increase of 468 AF of inflow into Lake

Lopez is as accurate as the somewhat limited data sources in the region permit.

20 of 25




Attachment 6

ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

TO: Zone 3 Advisory Committee
FROM: David Spiegel, PE

DATE: March 18, 2021

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update
Project Updates:

TESLA Battery Storage

o}
O

(¢]

50% plans are being developed.
Electricraft reviewed the proposal and did not see any issues with the

process
District met with Tesla Engineering to confirm all questions related to
operation

Budget - Free

Spillway Assessment and Investigation
o DSOD has reviewed the responses by the District and its consultant and

O

o

has requested a conference call to go over the items to facilitate any
questions or comments by either side. A conference call has not been
scheduled at this time. The District is still preparing a work plan for the
items associated with DSOD’s comments.

DSOD has requested review and approval during all phases of the
Spillway Assessment.

Underdrain video assessment is being quoted (DSOD required as part of
the above comments)

Budget ~$190,000

Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam

o

e}
e}

Working with Department of Safety of Dams to determine the scope of the
Geotech testing such that it can be put out to bid. Results from the Geotech
testing of the Terminal Dam will help determine whether to seismically
retrofit or de-commission the Terminal Reservoir. TAC supported
proceeding with this work at their October 2020 meeting.

Overall Budget Needed $500,000

Budget available this fiscal year ~$30,000 to begin project

Fault Zone Risk Assessment for Dam Left Abutment (No Change)

(¢]

(o}

Above the left abutment is a fault that was classified as a slow-moving
landslide with potential for material to slough off and become located on

the downstream side of the dam.
A risk assessment has been requested by the TAC to determine the

probability of such an event.

21 of 25



ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

o Additional quotes are needed at this time.
o Budget ~$40,000

e Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (No Change
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within
the membrane building.
o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.
o Budget ~$53,000

e Cathodic Protection Repair Project (No Change)
o This is the result of the Cathodic Protection Survey completed in 2019
o Estimate is $848,000 to completely repair the system
o This will be a 3 - 4 year phased project to begin this year

e Equipment Storage Building

o Anew site has been chosen for the location of a storage building. Previous
sites were too expensive, or their location proved problematic with
uncertain future outcomes of the terminal reservoir.

o A consultant has been chosen to perform the structural calculations and
construction package for the new building’s location over the existing
flocculation basin.

o Budget ~$90,000

¢ CO?2 (Chlorine Dioxide) Injection System

o Our CIP division is currently preparing a Request For Proposal for the CO2
system and will be out to bid soon. CO2 will replace the Mineral Acid
injection process at the plant that was added several years ago to combat
scaling of equipment that was occurring and causing problems for the Pall
membrane racks and other treatment processes.

o Current budget $160,000.

Unbudgeted O&M Projects

» Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation

o One sludge bed has developed a leak through the adjacent hillside that
leads down to the terminal reservoir's spillway. This bed had an existing
underground curtain wall poured in the 90’s to fix this issue.

o Quotes are being received to pressure grout in front of the underground
curtain wall to re-seal any cracks that have developed over the last 30
years.

o ~$50,000 per initial quote

22 0of 25



ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

o Leak at Main Dam outlet works building

o Staff has determined that the source of the leak is dissimilar metals
corrosion, a plan is being prepared for the removal, repair, and
replacement of the flanges that connect to a 20" valve that have corroded.

o Isolating flange kits will be installed to prevent future corrosion.

o Creek releases will be provided by the 42" emergency valve while during
construction.

o No estimate of cost currently

Upcoming Projects for 20/21:

¢ Replacement of Hach Turbidimeter

o EQ Pump Upgrade

Completed Projects
e Repairs to Terminal Dam Spillway

¢ Lopez Terminal Dam Monument Survey

¢ Domestic Tank Repairs

23 0of 25



Attachment 7

| SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION

DISTRICT

Department of Public Works
John Diodati, /nterim Director

TO: Zone 3 Advisory Committee

FROM: David Spiegel, Utilities Senior Engineer

VIA: Mark Chiaramonte, Utilities Division Manager
DATE: March 18, 2021

SUBJECT: Declaration of Surplus Water for Water Year 2020-21

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that your committee recommend that the Board of Supervisors, acting as the Board
of Supervisors for the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District),
declare surplus water as described in Article 4, Sections (C) and (D) of the Lopez Water Supply
Contracts, in the estimated amount of 1476 acre feet (AF) or as amended after actual end of water
year accounting is completed.

DISCUSSION

Declaration of Surplus Water

Every year the District declares surplus water per the water supply contracts for Zone 3 (Lopez Water
System) of the District. The Zone 3 water supply contracts define surplus water as, “The portion of
the Safe Yield for Project water remaining after distributions of water during the said previous Water Year”
(Article 4 (D)). The declaration of surplus water does NOT mean that there is an amount of “excess”
water in the reservoir; in short, surplus water is water that was saved from the previous year's
municipal entitlements and downstream releases. The water supply contracts specify that surplus
water is offered to the Zone 3 contractors in proportion to their participation in the project; this year's
estimated surplus is 1476 AF as shown in the table below.

24 of 25



Table: Zone 3 2019-20 Estimated Surplus Water (as of Mar 1, 2021)

Surplus Surplus
Entitlement|Entitlement| Generated Available
Acre-Ft Delivered (Unused | Entitlement Cost Total
Contractor (AF) AF Entitlement) % % (x 1476) | per AF Cost
Arroyo Grande 2290 2239 51 50.55% 746| $42.25 | $31,523.49
Pismo Beach 892 1135 0 19.69% 201|$42.25 | $12,278.88
Grover Beach 800 785 15 17.66% 261|$42.25| $11,012.95
Oceano CSD 303 663 0 6.69% 99| $42.25 | $4,171.95
CSA 12 (Avila) 245 125 120 5.41% 80| $42.25 | $3,373.73
Sub Totals 4530 4947 186 100% $62,361.00|
Downstream Releases 4200 2910 1290
Total 8730 7857 1476

(All amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole number)

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Today's item has no financial impact to the Zone 3 Lopez Water System. The contracts provide that
surplus water be offered at the cost of treatment and delivery only (not including capital costs of the
system). This year's surplus water cost was calculated based on estimates of the cost to treat and
deliver water in Lopez water year 21/22 and is offered at $42.25 per acre foot. Agencies request a
quantity of their available share of surplus water in June and must pay for the requested surplus water
whether they use it or not. If there is remaining surplus water that an agency has not requested, then
it is re-offered to the Contractors should anyone want additional water. All revenues from the sales
of surplus water are proportionately credited back to the Zone 3 agencies.

25 of 25



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1EE5A7A4-BAEA-4C16-8EAB-A7F1CA3DC3A9

State of California DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES California Natural Resources Agency

Date:
Number:

Subject:

From:

CALIFORNIA STATE WATER PROJECT

NOTICE TO STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS

/;_‘.a-;' wa’rﬁ»\

3/23/2021

21-06

2021 State Water Project Allocation Decrease — 5 Percent

LG LN
6“& ) A\ AD & Jatl_
Ted Craddock
Deputy Director, State Water Project

Department of Water Resources

Due to the persistent dry conditions, the Department of Water Resources
(DWR) is decreasing the allocation of 2021 State Water Project (SWP) water
for long-term contractors from 422,848 acre-feet to 210,266 acre-feet. Based
on the recent low amount of precipitation and runoff, and an assessment of
overall water supply conditions, SWP supplies are projected to be 5 percent of
most SWP contractors’ 2021 requested Table A amounts, which totals
4,172,786 AF. Attached is the revised 2021 SWP 5 percent allocation table.

This allocation is made consistent with the long-term water supply contracts and
public policy. DWR's approval considered several factors including existing storage
in SWP conservation reservoirs, SWP operational constraints such as the conditions
of the 2019 Biological Opinions for federally listed species, the 2020 Incidental Take
Permit for State listed species and the 2021 SWP contractors’ demands. DWR may
revise this and any subsequent allocations if warranted by the developing hydrologic

and water supply conditions.

To develop the 5 percent schedule, DWR will scale down the current long-term SWP
contractors’ 15 percent schedules that were submitted in October 2020 (as part of the
initial requests), unless SWP contractors submit updated schedules. DWR will send
the approved monthly water delivery schedules to the long-term SWP contractors.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact
John Leahigh, Water Operations Executive Manager, at (916) 651-2447.

Attachment

DWR 9625 (Rev. 3/12) Page1ofl






FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937344

March 2, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: FEBRUARY 2021 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The Chlorine
Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on the effluent
quality leaving the facility.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as needed basis.

Staff replaced a leaking hose bibb at the Booster Station site.
COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Staff compiled the data to complete and submit the annual Emissions Inventory Report per Air Pollution Control District Requirements.
Staff compiled the data to update and submit the Hazardous Material Business Plan for the facility per County Requirements.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

A

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow {(2019-2021)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2018-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2019-2021)

S’

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




California Regional Water

Quality Control Board,
Central Coast Region

Monthly report due last day of following month

Annual report due January 30

Avila Beach CSD
Wastewater Treatment
Facility

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

ORDER R3-2017-0025
NPDES CA0047830
WDID 3 400101001

Month: FEBRUARY 2021

Effluent and Influent Monitoring

Daily Flow {MGD}

Effluent Monitoring

N
oliform | Coliform | Residual

1 |0.044969 80 31 <0.02
2 |0.037122 75 26 7 <2 <0.02
3 |0.036678 74 26 <0.02
4 |0.039853 72 28 2 <2 <0.02
5 |0.047484 81 33 <0.02
6 |0.055042 86 38 <0.02
7 |0.054602 88 38 <0.02
8 |0.046370 83 32 <0.02
9 |0.040078 79 28 <2 <2 <0.02
10 |0.041761 81 29 <0.02
11 |0.037273 76 26 2 <2 <0.02
12 |0.050658 86 25 <0.02
13 |0.060453 91 42 <0.02
14 |0.064472 94 33 <0.02
15 |0.058454 92 41 <0.02
16 |0.044759 96 3 <0.02
17 |0.042808 95 30 <2 <2 <0.02
18 |0.047351 81 33 2 <2 <0.02
19 |0.056066 86 39 <0.02
20 |0.062057 84 a4 <0.02
21 |0.060345 91 42 <0.02
22 |0.044327 86 31 <0.02
23 |0.042120 82 29 <2 <2 <0.02
24 |0.037983 83 27 <0.02
25 |0.042918 81 30 2 <2 <0.02
26 |0.044203 88 31 <0.02
27 |0.055228 88 39 <0.02
28 |0.057063 88 40 <0.02
29
30
31

Min |0.036678 72 25 <2 <2 <0.02

Mean |0.048303 85 33 <2 <2 <0.02

Max |0.064472 96 44 7 <2 <0.02

Total |1.352497| Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean).

Influent Brine Received

Date

Volume (Gallons)

N/A

I,
SIGNATURE: .

Sludge Removal

Date Gallons

Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
Date Effluent Effluent Influent Influent Effluent
BOD TSS BOD TSS Oil & Grease
(24 HC) (24 HC) {24 HC) (24 HC) (Grab)
2/4/21 29 8 274 173
217121 26 17 316 200
2/11/21 21 12 208 168 2.5DNQ
214121 38 23 325 274
2118/21 43 29 402 306
2i21/214 38 30 327 281
2{25/21 32 18 322 258
2128/21 39 31 407 327
Min 21 9 208 168 2.5DNQ
Mean 33 21 323 248 2.5 DNQ
Max 43 31 407 327 2.5 DNQ
BOD Removal: 89.7% TSS Removal: 91.5%
Effluent Monitoring
Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
{Grab) {Grab) {Grab) (Grab)
2/4721 <0.1 18.8 6.7 61
211/21 <0.1 14.4 6.8 63
21821 <0.1 50.7 741 63
2/25/20 <0.1 22.7 6.7 63
Min <0.1 14.4 6.7 61.0
Mean <0.1 26.7 6.8 62.5
Max <0.1 50.7 71 63.0
Effluent Limits
Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
BOD mg/L 40 60 90
Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
Oil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
7 Sample Median: 23
Total Coliform MPN/ More than once in 30 days: 240
100 mL
Daily Maximum: 2,400
Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 12
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% s il

2116/21 4,800

1 certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility.

PRINTED NAME: Michael White

DATE: March 12, 2021

TITLE: CPO




HLNOW

ane NOr

03a AON 100 d3s onv AVIN ydv dYIN 434 Nvr

| 1z0zm ozoz= 6l0z= |

(1z0zZ - 6102)
MO14 LNIN1443 dLMM ATIVA IOVHIAY asogV

0

0oo‘olL

00002

000°0€

0000

000°05

00009

000°'02

Avad d3d SNOT1IVO




HLNOW

o3a AON 100 d3S onv ne NAr AV ddv YN 934 NvT

| 120zm 0z02= 61028 |

(1202 - 6102)
MO14d LNIN1443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogyv

0

000008

000°000'4

000'00S°}

000'000'2

000°'005'2

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNONW
o3a AON 100 d3s onv nr NP AVW ¥dY UV a3d Nvr

| Lzoz= 0Z0z= 6L0Z= |

(120Z - 6102)
MO14 TV.LOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS L30d

000°0S

000'00}

000°0S4

000°002

000'05¢2

000'00€

SNOT1VO




HLNOW

anr HvW a34 NV

03ad NAON 100 d3s onv NOr AVIA ddv

| ublseQ dIMM~—— LZ0Zmmm (Z0zwsm 6|07w=m |

(Lz0Z - 6102)
aod LNINT4ANI 39VHIAVY ATHLNOW asoHgv

oot

00z

ooe

(004

00S

009

/6w




HLINOW

o3a AON 100 d3s onv anr NAr AVIA ddv dYIN 834 Nvr

| Mwr eBesAy Aeq g  |g0Zmm=  (Z0gmem  6LOZmSm |

(LzozZ - 6102)
aod IN3INT443 39VHIAVY ATHLNOW asogav

0

S

ol

Sl

0¢

14

0e

Ge

or

Gy

/6w




HLNOW

anr NP

03a AON 100 d3s onvy AVIA Adv dvN g3d Nvf

| 120z 0zoz® 6l0z= |

(120Z - 6102)
Z3d01 NO¥d AIaSVYHIUNC ¥31LVM ATHLNOW asogv

000°00S

000000}

000'00S'L

000°000°2

000°005°2

000'000°¢

SNOT1VO




HLNONW

anr NP

a3d NvF

03a AON 100 d3S onvy AVIN ddv dviN

| 1zoz= 0zozw 6L0Z= |

(Lzo0zZ - 6102)
a10S ¥31VM ATHLNOW asogv

000005

000°000°L

000°00S'L

000°000°2

000°005°C

000°000°€

000'00S'E

SNOT1VO







FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

April 7, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: MARCH 2021 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The Chlorine
Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on the effluent
quality leaving the facility.

Secondary sed pump 2 was not operating. Staff diagnosed the failure as a loose connection on an electrical terminal block.

The Primary Clarifier was drained to allow replacement of the sludge pump feed and scum valve. While the clarifier was drained, the unit
was inspected and cleaned. Corrosion was noted and minor touch-up to the coating was performed.

Communications with the I/0 board at the First Street Lift Station was lost. Staff found the antenna facing down and pointing incorrectly.
This was likely due to a bird landing on the antenna coupled with dry rot on the eves that the antenna mount is screwed into. A new mount
was fabricated onsite and installed.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as needed basis.

COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

A0

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2019-2021)

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | B805.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,

Avila Beach CSD

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING
ORDER R3-2017-0025
NPDES CA0047830

Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001
poel ot il Facility Month: MARCH 2021
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
T Swantly - o ‘Euent | Effwert | nfluont | et | Efuent
Date | Total | ;‘::‘) (:",':‘ , B':;:',dy B':;;':IV c,',’.;','i’:,e Date | “pop 1SS BOD TSS | Oil & Grease
Coliform_|_Cofiform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 |o0.040700| 77 28 <0.02 341 37 21 240 169
2 |0.038008| 79 27 2 <2 <0.02 3721 23 31 259 190
3 |0.035368| 77 27 <0.02 31M1/21 38 20 256 174 2.4 DNQ
4 |0.037053 77 26 <2 <2 <0.02 3114121 52 37 385 284
5 ]0.046620| 86 33 <0.02 3/18/21 34 24 315 141
6 |0.055234 86 39 <0.02 321721 49 32 352 315
7 |0.063%08| 109 45 <0.02 3/25/21 38 32 451 394
8 0.063355| 114 44 <0.02 3/28/21 45 44 384 288
9 |0.043967 85 31 <0.02
10 |0.043896| 82 31 7 <2 <0.02
11 |0.022649 102 16 <2 <2 <0.02 Min 23 20 240 141 2.4 DNQ
12 |0.035028 84 24 <0.02 Mean 39.5 30.1 3303 2444 2.4 DNQ
13 |0.056332 89 39 <0.02 Max 52 44 451 394 2.4 DNQ
14 |0.058789| 89 32 <0.02 BOD Removal: 88.0% TSS Removal: 87.7%
15 |0.046511 83 32 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
16 |0.041812| 74 32 <2 <2 <0.02 Weekly | Weekly | Weekly | Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
17 |0.043589 73 30 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) {Grab)
18 |0.042232| 68 29 <2 <2 <0.02 3/4i121 <0.1 33.3 7.0 61
19 |0.049807 77 35 <0.02 12 <0.1 19.2 6.7 61
20 |0.060228 80 43 <0.02 3/18/21 <0.1 17.8 6.7 63
21 |0.058742| 84 33 <0.02 3/25/121 <0.1 359 7.0 64
22 |0.046957| 83 33 <0.02
23 ]0.043795 97 33 <2 <2 <0.02 Min <0.1 17.8 6.7 61
24 10.045112| 73 31 <0.02 Mean <0.1 26.6 6.9 62
25 0.048441 84 34 <2 <2 <0.02 Max <0.1 35.9 7.0 64
26 |0.052567| 93 37 <0.02 Effluent Limits
27 |0.065102 97 45 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
28 |0.067315 95 47 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
29 ]0.059360 20 41 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
30 |0.054882 86 38 2 <2 <0.02 Oil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
31 |0.060794 90 42 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Min |0.022649 68 16 <2 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Mean [0.049295 86 34 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1':: :’L More than once in 30 days: 240
Max [0.067315 114 47 7 <2 <0.02 Daily Maximum: 2,400
Total |1.528154| Effluent daily (dry weather} flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Influent Brine Received Sludge Removal Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% Sk =
N/A 3/9121 4,800
3/30/21 4,800 1 certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




HLNOW

anr N

o3a AON 120 d3S ony AV ddv gV g34 NVl

| 120z o0zoz= 6lLoz= |

(Lzoz - 61L02)
MO14 ININ1443 dLMM ATIVa 3OVHIAY asSogV

0

000’04

000°02

0co'oe

000'o¥

00005

00009

00004

AVAd d3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

034 AON 100 d3s ony ng NN AVIN Hdv HYN 934 NVF

| 1zoz= ozoz= 6LOZm |

(LzozZ - 6102)
MOT4 ININT443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogav

000°00S

000°'000°L

000'005" L

000°000°2

0000052

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

mnr NOP

33d AON 100 d3s onv AVIA Hdv v 934 NVl

| Lzoz= ozozs eL0Zw |

(Lzoz - 6102)
MOT4 TVLOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS L30d

00008

000°001

000°0S+

000°00¢

000°0SZ

000'00€

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

ane

03a AON 100 d3s onv NAr AVIA ddv HYN g34 Nvr

| uBlsaQ diMM—— |Z0Zmmsm QZOZmmm  §LOZmmm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
aosd LN3IN14NI 39VIIAY ATHLNOW asogav

00l

00¢

ooe

00v

00s

009

/6w




HLNOW

03ada AON 100 d3s ony anr NAr AVIN ddv HVYN 934 Nvr

| WWI] 9BeIOAY ABQ Of === |Z0Zmmm  (ZOZWmm 6107 mm

(Lzoz - 6102)
aod LN3aN1443 39vY3IAVY ATHLNOW asoHav

0

g

oL

Sl

474

14

o€

S¢

oy

114

/6w




HLNON

J3a AON 100 d3s onvy anr NP AVIA Hdv HvA 934 Nvr

| 1zoz= o0zozs 6L0Z= |

(1zoz - 6102)
Z3dO1 NOY4 A3ISVHOUNd ¥31VM ATHLNOW asogv

0

000°00S

000°000°L

000'005°L

000°000°C

000'005'2

© 000'000°€

SNOT1VO




HLNOW

anr NP

03d AON 1200 d3s onvy AVIN ddv HYN a34d NV

| 1zZoz= 0zoz= 6L0zm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
al10s ¥31VM ATHLNOW asogv

000°005

000'000°L

000'005°L

000°000°'C

000'005°2

000°000°¢

000'00G°¢

SNOTIVO







AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager@
DATE: April 13,2021

SUBJECT: Results of 2021 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) Audit and Update

Recommendation:
Receive this Staff Report and direct staff to implement the updated SSMP

Discussion:

In 2006 the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted Water Quality Order No.
2006-0003-DWQ, requiring all public wastewater collection system agencies in California with
greater than one mile of sewers to be regulated under General Waste Discharge Requirements
(WDR). The SWRCB action mandated the development of a Sewer System Management Plan
(SSMP) and the reporting of Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO) using an electronic reporting
system. On February 20, 2008 the SWRCB Adopted Order No. WQ 2008-0002-EXEC which
revised the monitoring, reporting, and records keeping requirements for SSOs.

The District adopted its first SSMP on September 14, 2010. The current SSMP and subject of
this Audit, was last reviewed and audited in June, 2017. SSMPs inform and direct the operation
and maintenance of the sanitary sewer system and documents plans to conduct long-term capital
improvement projects. These plans are “living documents” that require regular review and
update to ensure they document the current practices of operations and management staff.

SSMP Audit Results and Updates

District staff collaborated with Fluid Resource Management staff to conduct the SSMP audit.
The SSMP Audit findings and recommendations have been incorporated into 2021 SSMP. Staff
recommends that the Board receive the updated SSMP and direct staff to post the updated SSMP
on the District’s website and certify the updated SSMP with the State Water Board.



Sewer System
Management Plan

(SSMP)

Final

2021

Prepared by:

Avila Beach
Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

Wastewater Treatment Plant
2850 Avila Beach Drive
Avila Beach, CA 93424



Table of Contents

List of Acronyms and AbBreviations .........c...ccoieinmininnr s s 4
INtrodUCtion ANA OVEIrVIEW......cuivieieieereenmmmimierirrreessiassasssassasassssastsessissssmssantennsssesasssssnssssassstsassnssne 5
0.1 Regulatory Background............cccueeiiiiiiiiciiiiiie e 5
0.2 SYSIEIM OVEIVIEW ....oeeietiieiieeeieese e e it e s e e s s as et s hern e s e s e s s s s r e s e b s s 5
Figure 0-1: Avila Beach Community Services District Topographic Map...............cccovcvvniiniinnnn 6
Element 1 = GOalS .......coeeeiiiiiiciiierirsisessssisissinssnnnss e s asass s s s s s sa s s s s s s e nansnssssssasssasastnssannmssssnenans 7
1.1 Regulatory REQUIFEMENLES.........cccoiiiiiiiir e s 7
1.2 GOAIS DISCUSSION ...oceiieieiiiieieeiirereresieeseeeeeretnsne i eraaereareserasasia bR E et et e rre et s ne s s es s e s e s s s e s aaaraeeannaaaessa s 7
Element 2 - Organization.......c...ccommineeiminiinseninesinieems s sss e sss s s ssms s assss nsssnsasanass 8
2.1 Regulatory REQUITEMENTS. ........ovciiiiii it 8
2.2 Organization DISCUSSION. .......c.ccveriiiiii it ittt sn e r e sn e 8
2.4 Description of General Responsibilities .............coooviieiicii 13
Element 3 - Legal AUthOrity........c.ccimimimiinieiniiien s e 14
3.1 Regulatory REQUIFEMENTS. ......coocciiiieiiiiiiiee et 14
3.2 Avila Beach Community Services District Ordinance No. 2012-013.2 ... 14
3.3 INSPECONS ANA ACCESS.....coceiireiiiiicciiitt et et e et e ste et s n et e e E e s s e as b ot e b sane e eaa 14
3.4 Design and CONStIUCHON ..........vciiiiiiiei i 14
R R IO LT 07o1 1) (1= | PP UUTUUUUP PRI 14
Element 4 — Operation and Maintenance ............ccvvrmrr s e 16
4.1 Regulatory REQUITEMENES. ......c.euiiiiiiii ettt s 16
4.2 Collection System Map (ALAs) ......ccccevrrieriieoiiir e 16
4.3 Preventative MaintenanCe . .......oooviiiieeeiirie ettt e e e e e s e st 16
4.4 Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan............ccccooiiiiiiiii 17
T I = 111 T PP PP PRSPPI 17
T V=101 (e PP PP PPN 17
Element 5 — Design & Performance Standards ............c.occovcmnrnnncrncncis e 18
5.1 Regulatory ReqUIFEMENES. ........o.oeiieiriieiieeiit e 18
5.2 Design and Construction Standards...............oooieiiiienenee s 18
5.3 INSPeCtion STANAAIS ..........oociiiiiiii e e 18
Element 6 - Overflow Emergency Response Plan (OERP) ... 19
6.1 Regulatory ReqUIrEMENES..........cociiiiiiiiiiee e s 19
5.2 SSO RESPONSE .....uvieeiiiieeeiieeeie e itee s aeaa bt e e e e e e e s bae st ae e s e e e e e e b b s e e s e s rre e e s st e st ee s s e bR a e s s 19
Figure 6-1 SSO Reporting Chain of COMMANG.............cccooveiiiiiriiniiiiane e 20
Figure 6-2 Response/Notification Procedure for SSOS ... 21

S SO NOTICAHON PrOCEOAUIE ........cvivviiiiiiveeeeeeeeeiieseeeaeemeeeseee e asssatsassssbras b nease s sss s e s ssssssssanaassbnaaasassnne 21

6.3 SSO Categories and Reporting TImeframes ..o, 24
6.4 SSO IMPact MIIGAtioN .........oecier e e 25
6.5 Emergency Operating Procedures ...............oooviimiiiiinniinne s 26
5.6 OERP TraiNING....ccuveeeiiieireeieiee e e ese s ar e e s s e s s s e e s a e e e e e e s e e s s bR e bhe e e s ae b a e e st 27
Element 7 - Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) Control Program..........ccccevreimrcncniincinicsncsnnnnicennnns 28
7.1 Regulatory ReqUIremMeENts...........oooiiiiiiieii e 28
7.2 FOG Control Program DiSCUSSION ...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiii it 28
Figure 7-1 TYPICAI BMPS ...........occoiimiiitiiiiii sttt sttt e st 28

7.3 Identification of Grease Problem Areas and Sewer Cleaning ........cccooevimvenimeiinnennniccciii e 29
7.4 Legal AUTNOTILY .....eeeieieiieee ittt e 29
Element 8 —System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan ........cccoereorciiininicniinnnnen, 31
8.1 Regulatory REQUITEMENTES...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiir it e 31

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan



8.2 System Hydraulic Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan ..., 31

oI T 0 1= 0 LU (= T TP 31
Element 9 - Monitoring, Measuring and Program Modifications .........ccccoiicciiiiicnnininennns 33
9.1 Regulatory REQUITEMENTS. ........ccoo ittt ian e e 33
9.2 Monitoring, Measurement and Modification Program ... 33
oG A e =1 (=Y O PSP PSP PP PPN PP PRSPPI 35
0.4 1dentifying TrENAS. ... ceiieerie et 35
Element 10 — SSMP AUAItS......cccvricenimmecseinunninrrsinnannsssnnss st senssss s essannsatsiessssssssasassansannssssssen 36
10.1 Regulatory REQUIFEMENLES.........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine e e a e 36
10.2 SSMP Program AUGIES .......cc.eeeceerieriiiic i be e e s 36
Element 11 —CommMUNICAtIONS .....cuerrieicriiciniriisicesssmr s niin s s ss s s s s s san e s s ssasn s nas s s sssasannans 37
11.1 Regulatory REQUIFEMENES. .......cocuriiiiiiite e s 37
11.2 District CommuNiCation PrOgram..........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiinie e e s 37
Table 11-1 Communication Program PIan ............cccccoeeiiriiiiiiiieieeeccisits s sstscssiassrn e 37
Element 12 —SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program ...........ccccermmmrermicsmnncniissnnnincssssnnssens 39
12.1 Regulatory REQUIFEMENTS. ..........cciiiiiiiiiii et e 39
12.2 Water Quality Monitoring Program ...........c.cceoieiiiie i e 39
13.0 SSMP Completion and Certification.........ccccoveinieinnc e 40

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan



List of Acronyms and Abbreviations

APCD
BMP
CalEMA
CCTV
CDF
CDFG
CIP
CIwWQs
CRWA
CWEA
District
EH
FLSA
FOG
FSE
GWDR
HMA

i

LRO
mgd
NPDES
OERP
OES
O&M
PM
RWQCB
SCADA
SCSMP
SSMP
SSOR
SSO
SWMP
SWRCB
UPC
WDR
WRPI
WWTP

Air Pollution Control District

Best Management Practices

California Emergency Management Agency (formerly OES)
Closed Circuit Television

California Department of Forestry

California Department of Fish and Game
Capital Improvement Plan

California Integrated Water Quality System
California Rural Water Association

California Water Environment Association
Avila Beach Community Services District
San Luis Obispo County Environmental Health Department
Fair Labor Standards Act

Fats, Qils and Grease

Food Services Establishment

General Waste Discharge Requirement

High Maintenance Area

Inflow & Infiltration

Legally Responsible Official

Million Gallons per Day

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
Overflow Emergency Response Plan

Office of Emergency Services (county)
Operations and Maintenance

Preventative Maintenance

Regional Water Quality Control Board
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
Sewer Collections System Management Plan
Sewer System Management Plan

Sewer System Overflow Report

Sanitary Sewer Overflow

Storm Water Management Plan

State Water Resource Control Board

Uniform Plumbing Code

Waste Discharge Requirement

Water Resources Plan Integration
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan




l[ltroduction and Overview

0.1 Requlatory Background

On May 2, 2006, The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted Water Quality Order No. 2006-
0003-DWQ, requiring all public wastewater collection system agencies in California with greater than one mile
of sewers to be regulated under General Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR). The SWRCB action mandates
the development of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) and the reporting of Sanitary Sewer Overflows
(SS0) using an electronic reporting system. On September 9, 2013, the SWRCB Adopted Order No. WQ 2013-
0058-EXEC which revises the monitoring and reporting requirements.

The intent of this SSMP is to satisfy the requirements of both the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB)
and SWRCB Waste Discharge Requirements. The organization of this document is consistent with RWQCB and
SWRCB guidelines. Many of the requirements are currently in practice by the Avila Beach Community Services
District (District) due to years of taking a proactive approach to sewer system management.

The SSMP includes the following twelve elements:

Goals

Organization

Overflow Emergency Response Plan

Fats, Oils & Grease Control Program

Legal Authority

Measures and Activities

Design and Construction Standards

System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Management
. Monitoring, Measurement and Program Modifications
10. SSMP Audits

11. Communication Plan

12. SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program

CoOoNOORWN=

0.2 System Overview

Established in 1997, the Avila Beach Community Services District (District) encompasses one-hundred-fifty (150)
acres located in San Luis Obispo County. The mean elevation is 26 feet above sea level with latitude of
35°10'55.86”N and longitude of 120°43'58.88"W. The District is located one-hundred-sixty (160) miles north of
Los Angeles in the Central Coast Region. The District provides sewer service to approximately 380 connections.
Approximately 360 of the connections are residential and the remaining connections are restaurants and retail
commercial accounts. There are no industrial connections in the District service area.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 5



Figure 0-1: Avila Beach Community Services District Topographic Map

MANNEL ¥~ 0 A i TR e TR LR T I T e Ty W TR T B T VY ) L Al e ke
INSTHTL:

RAE o
? ) 3

---'_.,;ff{kf

': (B ":“uplmﬂ e
L WV, e s
Lo o 2T

g
T COUMYRRR 347 lminmousean
7 neamtikesomr;

Pacific Ocean

The District provides its customers with wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal services. The District's
collection system currently serves the town of Avila Beach and conveys raw wastewater to the District's
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). The Districts WWTP serves the town of Avila Beach and the Port San Luis
Harbor District;

The District’s treated municipal wastewater is discharged to the Pacific Ocean through a 2,240 ft outfall. The
outfall is terminated in the San Luis Bay at 35°10'25” N latitude and 120°44’01” W longitude in approximately 29
feet of water, 540 feet beyond the Avila Pier. The District's WWTP is designed for an average dry weather
maximum monthly flow of 0.2 million gallons per day (MGD).

The District also maintains:

9,346 Feet of Gravity Sewer
40 manholes

1 lift station

Wastewater Treatment Plant
12" Gravity ocean outfall

®» ¢ ¢ o o

The Wastewater Treatment Plant is regulated by the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board via
Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. R3-2017-0025, NPDES No. CA0047830. The Order was adopted at
a public hearing in September 2017.

Through an agreement that was originally adopted in 1961 and updated in October 2016, the Port San Luis
Harbor District is entitled to 35% of the wastewater treatment facility capacity. The Harbor District owns and
maintains their sewage collection system up to the point of discharge into the WWTP influent wet-well. It is also
incumbent upon the Port San Luis Harbor District to protect the environment to the greatest degree possible and
ensure their collection system is protected and utilized properly. The responsibility also includes preventing
overflows which may include restricting or prohibiting the volume, type, or concentration of wastes added to the
system.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 6



Element 1 — Goals

The main goal of the SSMP is to prevent SSOs and to provide a plan and schedule for measures to be
implemented to prevent SSOs. This is accomplished through the implementation and policies of the subsequent
elements. This SSMP element identifies the goals for management, operations and maintenance of the sewer
system and discusses the role of the SSMP in supporting these goals so that the occurrence of SSOs can be
reduced. These goals provide focus for the District Staff to continue high-quality work and implement
improvements in the management of the District's sewer collection system. This section fulfills the Goals
requirements of both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

1.1 Regulatory Reguirements

The summarized requirements for the Goals element of the SSMP are as follows:

The collection system agency shall develop goals to manage, operate, and maintain all parts of the collection
system. The goals shall address the provisions of adequate capacity to convey peak wastewater flows, as well
as a reduction in the frequency of SSO and the mitigation of their impacts.

1.2 Goals Discussion

The District has developed the following SSMP goals which will contribute to the proper management of the
system and will assist in minimizing the frequency and impacts of SSOs. This task will be accomplished through
providing proper guidance for appropriate maintenance, District management, and emergency response.

The District's SSMP goals are as follows:

1. Continue to conduct regularly planned maintenance activities and inspections to minimize SSOs to less
than 2 dry weather SSOs over the next two years.

2. Continue to formalize operations, maintenance, and record keeping through the ongoing development,
implementation, and updates to District's standard operating procedures to reflect current practices.

3. Maintain the Computerized Work Order System to document and improve system maintenance and
record keeping.

4. Conduct an inflow and infiltration analysis of the collection system in the vicinity of First and San Miguel
streets, including flow monitoring, smoke testing and modeling to determine if the San Miguel Street
sewer line should be enlarged.

The SSMP supplements and supports the District's existing Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Program and
goals by providing high level, consolidated guidelines, and procedures for all aspects of the District's sewer
system management.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 7



Element 2 - Organization

This section of the SSMP identifies District Staff that are responsible for implementing the SSMP, responding to
SSO events and meeting the SSO reporting requirements. This section also includes the designation of the
Authorized Representatives to meet the SWRCB requirements for completing and certifying spill reports
electronically. This section fulfills the Organization requirement of both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

2.1 Regulatory Requirements

The summarized requirements for the Organization element of the SSMP are as follows.

The collection system agency’s SSMP shall identify the following:

¢ Staff responsible for implementing measures outlined in the SSMP, including the names of those
responsible and the authorized representative,

e The names and telephone numbers for management, administrative and maintenance positions
responsible for implementing specific measures in the SSMP, including lines of authority as shown in an
organization chart or similar documents with a narrative explanation; and

e The chain of communication for reporting SSOs from receipt of a complaint or other information, including
persons responsible for reporting SSOs to the SWRCB and RWQCB and other agencies if applicable
(such as County Health Officers, County Environmental Health Agency, California Office of Emergency
Services (CalOES), California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), Coast Guard and/or County Office
of Emergency Services (OES).

Section J of the SSSWDR requires that all applications, reports or information shall be signed and certified as
follows:
 All reports required by this Order and other information required by the State or Regional Water Board
shall be signed and certified by a person designated, or a municipality, state, federal, or other public
agency, as either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official, or by a duly authorized
representative of that person, as described in paragraph (ii) of this provision. (For purposes of electronic
reporting, an electronic signature and accompanying certification, which is in compliance with the Online
SSO database procedures, meet this certification requirement.)
¢ Anindividual is a duly authorized representative only if:
o The authorization is made in writing by a person described in paragraph (i) of this provision; and
o The authorization specifies either an. individual or a position having responsibility for the overall
operation of the regulated facility or activity.

Supporting information for Element 2 is provided in the following sections.

2.2 Organization Discussion

The following section outlines the District organization and SSMP responsibilities of personnel, authorized
representatives, and chains of communication for SSO response and reporting. Key Staff are responsible for
implementing and maintaining the SSMP.

The names of the authorized representatives are.
Name Title CIWQS SSO Database

Brad Hagemann General Manager, ABCSD Legally Responsible Official
Michael White Chief Plant Operator, FRM Legally Responsible Official
Carinna Butler Operations Manager, FRM Legally Responsible Official
Michael Wentzel Field Systems Supervisor, FRM | Legally Responsible Official

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 8



The names, phone numbers, and SSMP implementation responsibilities for the management, administrative,
and maintenance positions are:

Name and Title SSMP Responsibilities Contact numbers

Brad Hagemann s The General Manager is responsible for Office: (805) 595-2994
General Manager directing the management and Cell: (805) 835-3163
and District implementation of all eleven elements of the

Engineer SSMP. Fluid Resource Management staff

members identified below are responsible to

Avila Beach CSD provide supporting roles for the management
and implementation of the Elements in the
SSMP identified below.

e The General Manager is responsible for
implementing Element 9: Communication
Plan.

e The District Engineer, under the direction of
the District's General Manager is responsible
for directing the management and
implementation of all eleven elements of the

SSMP.
Michael White » The Chief Plant Operator is responsible for Office: (805) 597-7100
Chief Plant the implementation of Element 4, Operation | Cell: (805) 431-3673
Operator and Maintenance Program, Element 7, After Hours Dispatch:
Overflow Emergency Response Plan, (805) 546-3618
Fluid Resource Element 9, Monitoring Measurement and
Management Program Modifications, and Element 10,
SSMP Audits.
o Ensures FRM maintenance staff is trained
and follows required SOPs and EOPs.
+ Delivers FOG or other SSS notices or door
hangers.
Mike Ellison + The Maintenance Manager, along with the Office: (805) 597-7100
Maintenance Operations Manager, is responsible for After Hours Dispatch:
Manager managing the Chief Plant Operator and for (805) 546-3618
the implementation of Element 4, Operation
Fluid Resource and Maintenance Program, Element 7,
Management Overflow Emergency Response Plan,

Element 9, Monitoring Measurement and
Program Modifications, and Element 10,
SSMP Audits.

¢ The Maintenance Manager, along with the
Operations Manager, ensures FRM
maintenance and operations staff is trained
and follows required Management
Procedures, Operation and Maintenance
Procedures, and Emergency Operating
Procedures.

+ Performs inspections, maintenance, cleaning
of the SSS and relays critical information to
the Chief Plant Operator.

« Maintains SSS facilities (First Street Lift
Station) and provides recommendations to
the Chief Plant Operator.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan



Name and Title

SSMP Responsibilities

Respond to SSOs with FRM Vactor Truck
and other cleanup tools, documents
response activities using District EOPs,
assists in determining cause of SSO, and
assists in implementing corrective actions to
prevent recurrence of future SSOs.
Ensures FRM maintenance staff is trained
and follows required Management
Procedures, Operation and Maintenance
Procedures, and Emergency Operating
Procedures.

Carinna Butler

Operations
Manager

Fluid Resource
Management

The Operations Manager, along with the
Maintenance Manager, is responsible for
managing the Chief Plant Operator and for
the implementation of Element 4, Operation
and Maintenance Program, Element 7,
Overflow Emergency Response Plan,
Element 9, Monitoring Measurement and
Program Modifications, and Element 10,
SSMP Audits.

The Operations Manager, along with the
Maintenance Manager, ensures FRM
maintenance and operations staff is trained
and follows required Management
Procedures, Operation and Maintenance
Procedures, and Emergency Operating
Procedures.

Directs or conducts required Pacific Ocean
and/or San Luis Obispo Creek water quality
sampling in the event of an SSO to those
surface water bodies.

Coordinates with San Luis Obispo County
Environmental Health on posting the Beach
and/or Beach next to SLO Creek and works
with SLO County Environmental Health
Department to test and re-open the Beach
when SLO County gives permission.
Ensures FRM operations staff is trained and
follows required Management Procedures,
Operation and Maintenance Procedures, and
Emergency Operating Procedures.

Office: (805) 597-7100
After Hours Dispatch:
(805) 546-3618

Tim Cary
District Counsel

Price, Pastel, and
Parma LLP

District Counsel is responsible for ensuring
that Element 3, Legal Authority, meets the
requirements of the GWDR.

Office: (805) 962-0011

Kristi Dibbern
Admin Secretary
Avila Beach CSD

Responsible for administrative functions in
the office.

Receives customer phone calls and
maintains a log of complaints and calls.

Office: (805) 595-2664

Avila Beach CSD

Sewer System Management Plan

10



Name and Title SSMP Responsibilities Contact numbers

« In an emergency, could provide a standard
carefully pre-scripted message for customers
who call with general questions.

Organization Contact Person Phone Number
Cal OES (Contact within 2 hours if Dispatch 1-800-852-7550
Category 1 SSO and obtain notification
control number)

California Regional Water Quality Office (805) 549-3147
Control Board (Confirm within 3

business days via e-mail SSO (805) 549-3892
notification was received from OES. Katie DiSimone (805) 788-3588 F

kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov

Addifional Contact Info (not mandatory but may be necessary per RWQCB

direction)

San Luis Obispo County Office of On-Call/Duty OES (805) 781-5011
Emergency Services Coordinator

San Luis Obispo County Health Office (805) 781-5544
Department (Contact immediately if (805) 781-4211 F
public contact)

CA Department of Fish & Game Central Dispatch (831) 649-2810
(Contact within 2 hours if spill affects

fish and/or wildlife) On-Call (805) 489-7355

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan



2.3 District Organization

The Organization chart for the general management, operation, and maintenance of the District's wastewater
collection system is illustrated in Figure 2-1.

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

GENERAL MANAGER
BRAD HAGEMANN

(CONTRACT)

| DISTRICT COUNSEL
DISTRICT ENGINEER T. CARY
BRAD HAGEMANN
(CONTRACT)

OFFICE MANAGER
K. DIBBERN

UTILITIES DEPARTMENT STREET LIGHTING

FIRE DEPARTMENT
(WATER/SANITARY)

CALFire CONTRACT
OPERATIONS MANAGER

C.BUTLER
(CONTRACT STAFF)

WW OPERATOR Il
M. WHITE
(CONTRACT STAFF)

Figure 2-1: Avila Beach Community Services District Organizational Chart

The General Manager, and specific members of the Utilities Department are the authorized representatives
who are responsible for implementation of the SSMP and CIWQS reporting.

The Utilities Department will be responsible for, and has the authority for, maintenance and operations of the
sewer system. Maintenance and Operations Staff are on-call twenty-four (24) hours per day.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 12



2.4 Description of General Responsibilities

This section includes a brief description of the job title, authority and respective responsibilities associated with
each position.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors creates policy for the Community Services District. They receive recommendations from
the General Manager and District Counsel. There are 5 members that comprise the Board of Directors. Each
member is elected for a 4-year term.

General Manager

This position serves as the General Manager and liaison between Board of Directors and Staff. He/she carries
out policies developed by the Board of Directors. The position also serves as Public Information Officer (PlO) for
the District.

District Engineer

The District Engineer is responsible for engineering plans of all facilities, plans strategy, and oversees outside
contractors performing services.

District Counsel

District Counsel provides legal advice to the District. He/she attends Board of Directors meetings when reporting
on legal matters.

Admin Secretary

This position provides administrative support for the District and manages the Utility Billing system. The Admin
Secretary reports directly to the General Manager. This individual works with Field Crews for daily
operations/maintenance issues and provides verbal and written reports to the General Manager and District
Engineer.

Utilities Department

The Utilities Department provides support to all facets of operation and is presently an operations company
under contract to the District. The Department reports directly to the General Manager and Accounting Clerk.
Field Crews handle all sanitary sewer/water emergencies and daily operations. The department provides verbal
and written reports to the General Manager, evaluates situations & plans strategy with the General Manager and
District Engineer. The department also implements/initiates an emergency response for sewer related
emergencies.

Fire Department

CAL FIRE provides fire suppression and medical aid for the District and the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Office & 24 Hr. Emergency

This District telephone contact number is answered twenty-four (24) hours per day by the Utilities Department
Staff, Fire Department or a contracted answering service.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 13



Element 3 - Legal Authority

This section of the SSMP shall describe legal authority, through sewer use Ordinances, service agreements or
other legally binding procedures, to properly run the District’s sanitary sewer system. This section fulfills the
Legal Authority requirements for both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

3.1 Regulatory Requirements

The District will demonstrate, through its sanitary sewer system use Ordinances, service agreements, or other
legally binding procedures, that it possesses the necessary legal authority to:
Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system (examples may include Inflow & Infiltration (/1),
storm water, chemical dumping, unauthorized debris and cut roots, etc.);
2. Require that sewers and connections be properly designed and constructed;
3. Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, or repairs for portions of the lateral owned or maintained by
the Public Agency, and
4. Limit the discharge of fats, oils, and grease and other debris that may cause blockages.

Supporting information for Element 3 is described below:

3.2 Avila Beach Community Services District Ordinance No. 2012-013.2

In Avila Beach Community Services District Ordinance No. 2012-01, illicit discharges are discussed in Article 3
— Discharges, Section 3.01.020 Specific Prohibitions. This section prohibits illicit discharges such as storm water,
chemical dumping, unauthorized debris, and floatable grease, among others. Additionally, Section 3.03
Pretreatment Program, regulates any potential discharges for Industrial Sewer Users.

3.3 Inspections and Access

Article 2 - Connections, Section 2.05 Inspection Provisions of the Ordinance provides for the inspection of the
sewer system and give rights of entry to authorized staff for the purpose of inspection. All Staff conducting
inspections and maintenance to the sewer system is trained, either through a formal or in-house program. The
work of all contractors performing work on the sewer system is monitored, reviewed, and inspected by the
General Manager and/or District and Operations Staff.

3.4 Design and Construction

Article 2 - Connections, Section 2.04 Construction Provisions states: All improvements shall be constructed in
accordance with the current version of the San Luis Obispo County Department of Public Works Standard
Improvement Specifications and Drawings or the Standards and Specifications of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, whichever is more stringent.

The District utilizes the District Engineer to provide support in engineering and inspections to ensure proper
installation, testing and inspection of sewer line completion. The engineers are trained and well experienced in
pipeline design and construction. The engineers routinely attend professional conferences and educational
seminars to remain familiar with advancements in the industry. The engineers use the Standards and Design
Specifications designated by the District for the construction of all new and rehabilitated sewer related projects.
www.slocounty.ca.gov/PW/DevServ/PublicimprovementStandards.htm

3.5 FOG Control

The District Ordinance No. 2012-01 Article 3 - Discharges has provisions for the control of FOG in the Sewer
System.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 14



FOG limited:
Section 3.01.020, Specific Prohibitions, E, 4, prohibits discharges which may contain more than one
hundred (100) parts per million, by weight, of fats, oil, grease, or wax. Section 3.04 Fats, Oils, and Grease
(FOG) Program: makes it unlawful for any discharger to discharge FOG or cause FOG to be discharged
into the sanitary sewer system.

Grease Control Device:
Section 3.04.010 Grease Control Device — Installation: requires all food service establishments (FSEs)
to install, operate, and maintain an approved type and adequately sized grease control device (GCD).
GCDs must be sized and installed per the Uniform Plumbing Code or California Plumbing Code,
whichever is more stringent.

Maintenance of Grease Control Devices:
Section 3.04.020 Grease Control Device — Maintenance: requires all GCDs to be cleaned on a regular
basis to ensure efficient operation. Gravity grease interceptors are required to be cleaned no less than
every ninety (90) days and hydromechanical grease interceptors be cleaned no less than once every
seven (7) days. Maintenance of below ground gravity grease interceptors must be performed by a
licensed cleaning service. Smaller hydromechanical grease interceptors may be cleaned by Food Service
Establishment (FSE) staff.

Inspections:
Article 2 — Connections, Section 2.05.030 Right of Entry: gives authorized representatives of the District
permission to enter in and upon all buildings and premises within the District at reasonable hours for
purposes of inspection, sampling, observation, measurement, testing, or otherwise performing such
duties as may be necessary.

Article 3 — Discharges, Sections 3.04.040 — 3.04.080: requires FSEs discharging FOG to the sanitary
sewer to obtain a FOG permit which specifies conditions for; proper installation, operation, maintenance,
best management practices, and record keeping demonstrating cleaning and maintenance activities.
Noncompliance with these conditions may lead to revocation of the FSEs FOG permit.

Enforcement:
Article 5 — Charges and Fees, Section 5.03.010 Noncompliance Fees: gives the District to assess a fee
for dischargers found to be noncompliant with the terms and conditions of the District Ordinance.

Additionally, Article 6 — Violations: gives the District the authority to enforce any violation of its sewer
ordinance. This authority can be found in the following sections of the ordinance:

e 6.01.010 Civil Action

e 6.01.020 Criminal Prosecution

s 6.02 Liability for Damages for Violation

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 15



Element 4 — Operation and Maintenance

This section of the SSMP discusses the Operation and Maintenance (O&M) measures employed by the District
in identifying problem areas, developing cleaning schedules, and maintenance projects for the overall
improvement of the collection system. This section fulfills the Operation and Maintenance requirements for both
the RWQCB and SWRCB.

4.1 Requlatory Requirements

The SSMP must include those elements listed below that are appropriate and applicable to the Agency’s system:

a. Collection System Map - Each wastewater collection system agency shall maintain up-to-date maps of

its wastewater collection system facilities, showing all gravity line segments and manholes, pumping
facilities, pressure pipes and valves, and applicable stormwater pumping and piping facilities.

b. Preventive Operation and Maintenance - Describe routine preventive operation and maintenance
activities by staff and contractors, including a system for scheduling regular maintenance and cleaning
of the sanitary sewer system with more frequent cleaning and maintenance targeted at known problem
areas. The Preventive Maintenance (PM) program should have a system to document scheduled and
conducted activities, such as work orders.

¢. Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan - Develop a rehabilitation and replacement plan to identify and
prioritize system deficiencies and implement short-term and long-term rehabilitation actions to address
each deficiency. The program should include regular visual and TV inspections of manholes and sewer
pipes, and system of ranking the conditions of sewer pipes and scheduling rehabilitation. Rehabilitation
and replacement should focus on sewer pipes that are at risk of collapse or prone to more frequent
blockages die to pipe defects. Finally, the rehabilitation and replacement plan should include a capital
improvement plan that addresses proper management and protection of the infrastructure assets. The
plan shall include a time schedule for implementing the short- and long-term plans plus a schedule for
developing the funds needed for the capital improvement plan.

d. Training - Provide training on a regular basis for staff in sanitary sewer system operations and
maintenance and require contractors to be appropriately trained.

e. Inventory - Provide equipment and replacement part inventories, including identification of critical
replacement parts.

4.2 Collection System Map (Atlas)

The District maintains an up to date collection system atlas showing all gravity line segments, force mains, the
lift station and manholes. The Atlas was initially completed in 2009 and it is updated periodically to include new
system improvements, connections, etc.

The District has recently developed a storm water atlas map to complement the sewerage collection system
atlas. This information can now be used to direct staff to stormwater inlet and outlet points in event there is a
SSO0 that may discharge to a storm drain.

These maps are updated as changes in the system occur. They are also revised if discrepancies are found.

4.3 Preventative Maintenance

The District recognizes the importance of preventative operation and maintenance activities performed by District
and outside contractors. Such preventative activities include regular collection system maintenance and frequent
cleanings targeted at known problem areas. A work order system has been developed to identify and schedule
routine maintenance activities throughout the system. This system includes all collection and conveyance system
assets owned by the District. Work orders for sewer line cleaning, lift station maintenance, and manhole
inspections are scheduled on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis. Work Orders/Work History are currently
tracked in a maintenance calendar and associated maintenance logs and workbooks.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 16



The District contractors clean the collection system annually. Areas presenting a need for additional cleanings —
known as “hot spots” or High Maintenance Areas (HMA) are cleaned on an as-needed basis, at least quarterly.
The results of these activities are documented in the District file system as they are completed.

4.4 Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan

Inspection of the collection system is performed while regular cleaning and other maintenance is taking place.
The manholes and cleanouts are visually inspected for damage, deterioration, or defects in the cover and interior.
The pipe connections to the manholes are also observed at this time. Further inspection, if needed, is
accomplished via Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) which is performed by a contractor under the direction of the
District Engineer. Recommendations are made for rehabilitation or replacement as needed.

The District completes the majority of routine repairs, maintenance, and emergency response utilizing the
contract maintenance crews. Capital Improvement Projects, as determined in the District's Fiscal Year Budget,
are accomplished as funding permits and in accordance with need. One of the contractor’s responsibilities is to
“develop recommendations, cost estimates, and justification regarding needed projects for inclusion in future

budgets.”

4.5 Training

The District Operation & Maintenance (O&M) is performed by the District's O&M contractor (currently Fluid
Resource Management). The O&M contract stipulates: “...will continue to staff the District in accordance with
State Certification regulations and provide qualified staff members..." as such, the staff members are required
to be kept up-to-date in their certification and qualifications. Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the
operation and maintenance of the District's sanitary sewer system have been developed to provide a
standardized approach to SSO response and other Collection System activities. These SOPs were completed
in September of 2013. Initial training on these procedures was conducted in April 2014. Annual training on these
SOPs will occur each year unless additional training is proven to be warranted. New staff members will be trained
on these procedures based on their job description and responsibilities.

4.6 Inventory

The Avila Beach collection system includes one lift station and a relatively short section of force main. The District
maintains sufficient quantities of replacement parts onsite. Acquisition of large items such as replacement pumps
are requested from the Board of Directors by written Staff Report.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer Systemn Management Plan 17



Element 5 — Design & Performance Standards

The District is responsible for reviewing design and construction documents to ensure that all construction
projects meet the District standards. The District is responsible for updating standards for installation,
rehabilitation, and repair, as needed. The District retains the responsibility for inspection of construction projects
to ensure District standards have been followed. This section fulfills the Design and Construction requirements
for both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

5.1 Requlatory Requirements

The SSMP must identify design and construction standards and specifications for the installation of new sanitary
sewer systems, pump stations, other appurtenances, and for the rehabilitation and repair of existing sanitary

sewer systems.

The SSMP must also identify the procedures and standards for inspecting and testing the installation of new
sewers, pumps, and other appurtenances and for rehabilitation and repair projects.

Supporting information for Element 5 is described below:

5.2 Design and Construction Standards

San Luis Obispo County Design and Performance Standards

Avila Beach Community Services District Ordinance No. 2012-01 Regulating the Administration, Operation, Use,
and Maintenance of the Sanitary Sewer System, Article 2 — Connections, Sections 2.01 - 2.04 and 2.06 provides
for the proper design and construction of sewer lines and connections to the existing sewer system.

Article 2, Section 2.04.010 Standard Specifications and Details specifies: All improvements shall be constructed

in accordance with the current version of San Luis Obispo County Department of Public Works Standard
Improvement Specifications and Drawings or the Standard Specifications of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, whichever is more stringent. Specific Design Standards and testing procedures for sewer lift
stations and other appurtenances are developed on a case by case basis to address the specific conditions of

each project.

The District uses San Luis Obispo County Public Improvement Standards, or as approved by the General
Manager/District Engineer. Standards and Specifications can be found on the San Luis Obispo County Website:
www.slocounty.ca.gov/PW/DevServ/PublicimprovementStandards.htm

5.3 Inspection Standards

The District Engineer provides support in engineering and inspections to ensure proper installation, testing, and
inspection of sewer line completion. The engineers are trained and experienced in sewer system design and
construction. The engineers routinely attend professional conferences and educational seminars to remain
familiar with advancements in the industry. The engineers use the San Luis Obispo County Public Improvement
Standards and Design Specifications designated by the District for the construction and testing of all new and
rehabilitated sewer related projects. Inspection Standards can be found on the San Luis Obispo County Website:
www.slocounty.ca.gov/PW/DevServ/PublicimprovementStandards.htm

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 18



Element 6 - Overflow Emergency Response Plan (OERP)

The District has integrated portions of its pre-existing Emergency Plans and Policies and has developed and
implemented an overflow emergency response plan that identifies measures to protect public health and the
environment, and includes, at a minimum, the following found in subsections 6.1 — 6.6:

6.1 Regulatory Requirements

The summarized requirements for the OERP element of the SSMP are as follows:

The District will implement an OERP that identities measures to protect public health and the environment. At a
minimum, the plan will include the following:

» Proper notification procedures so that the primary responders and regulatory agencies are informed of
all SSO in a timely manner;

e A program to ensure appropriate response to all overflows;

» Procedures to ensure prompt notification to appropriate regulatory agencies and other potentially affected
entities (e.g. health agencies, regional water boards, water suppliers, etc.) of all SSO that potentially
affect public health or reach the waters of the State. All SSO shall be reported in accordance with the
California Water Code, other State Laws, and other applicable RWQCB WDR or permit requirements.
The SSMP identifies the officials who will receive immediate notification;

e Procedures to ensure that appropriate Staff and contractor personnel are aware of and follow the OERP
and are appropriately trained;

e Procedures to address emergency operations, such as traffic and crowd control and other necessary
response activities; and

o A program to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to contain untreated wastewater and prevent
discharge of untreated wastewater to waters of the United States and minimize or correct any adverse
impact on the environment resulting from the SSO, including such accelerated or additional monitoring
as may be necessary to determine the nature and impact of the discharge.

Supporting information for Element 6 is described in the below documents:
SSO Response Field Checklist

SSO0 Spill Estimation Worksheets and Guides

Contact Report

ABCSD Emergency Operating Procedures (EOPs)

ABCSD Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

Cal Warn Mutual Aid Agreement calwarn.org

Public Works Mutual Aid Agreements pwmaa.org

® & ¢ o ¢ o o

6.2 SSO Response

Staff is on-call twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. The goal for responding to an SSO
during business hours is immediate from receipt of call. During non-business hours, the District’s goal for
responding to a SSO is 45 minutes. The District has invested in a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
(SCADA) system which allows for constant monitoring of the First Street Lift Station wet well. Amp meters have
been instailed on each of the lift station pumps that alarm when a pump begins to struggle. This feature alerts
maintenance staff to the problem before there is a high level in the well and the potential for a spill. Staff can
also review the performance of the facility via SCADA prior to responding to determine how serious the problem
is and how heavy the flow is, so that a vacuum truck can be dispatched if necessary.

ABCSD operations, maintenance, and emergency response activities are funded annually through an adopted
budget. Staff maintains all equipment necessary to maintain the sewer collection and conveyance system and
respond to SSOs. Examples of this equipment are: Vactor Truck, vacuum truck, sewer bypass pump, service
crane trucks, and spill containment materials. The District also installed a back-up generator and switch gear at

the pump station in 2018.

The District’s policy is to respond to all spills within the District service area boundary and provide mutual aid
outside the District boundary, whether on public or private property and to take all steps possible to prevent the

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 19



spills from reaching the storm drains, flood control channels, or waters of the State. In 2013 the District
enrolled in two mutual aid agreements for assistance with emergency response activities. The Cal-Warn and
Public Works Mutual Aid Agreements provide the opportunity for the District to provide and receive assistance

from other local agencies.

The District has established Emergency Operating Procedures (EOPs) for emergency response to SSOs to help
ensure appropriate response to all SSOs. Element 2 of this SSMP addresses the organizational structure and
responsibilities of District staff. District EOPs also discuss roles and responsibilities for SSO response activities.
The lines of authority during an emergency are shown in Figure 6-1.

Figure 6-1 SSO Reporting Chain of Command

OBSERVERS
|
CALL
|
| 1
FRM
ABCSD AFTER BUSINESS HOURS _ EMERGENCY
LINE
T
DURING
BUSINESS
HOURS DURING BUSINESS HOURS AFTER BUSINESS HOURS
1 |
CONTRACT
OPERATIONS ON-CALL
STAFF < STAFF
I ] ] [ | 1
CONTRACT SLO COUNTY
CHIEF PLANT SLO COUNTY CHIEF PLANT
Oslimgggs OPERATOR DISTRICT GM PUBLIC HEALTH OPERATOR .PUBLIC HEALTH
(if hazardous subtrances (if hazardous substances
are involved) J are involved)
1 |
S$SO DISTRICT e bl
NOTIFICATION MANAGER MANAGER
& REPORTING
AGENCIES
SSO
NOTIFICATION &
REPORTING
AGENCIES

Avila Beach CSD

Sewer System Management Plan

20




Figure 6-2 Response/Notification Procedure for SSOs

Procedures for Report of Wastewater Spill

In the event of a report of a possible wastewater spill, or when staff is contacted concerning odors, standing
water or an overflowing manhole, the following steps are taken to verify the report and ensure the safety of the
public.

1. The call receiver (Operations Manager, General Manager, Accounting Clerk, Answering Service, or 911
Operator) will obtain the location from the contact and any description they may have of the problem.
Additionally, they will obtain the contact’s name, phone number, and additional information as indicated
on the ABCSD Sewer Spill Contact Information Form for follow-up information.

2. The call receiver will contact the on-duty operator by phone immediately and direct the operator to the
described location.

3. Administrative Staff may proceed to the location to verify report and document appropriate spill
information if available.

4. The on-duty operator is to contact the supervisor and request appropriate support. The operator is to
keep the administrative staff informed of progress as necessary.

5. Administrative Staff to notify District Manager, Board President, and other District representatives as
necessary.

6. Systems Supervisor, Chief Plant Operator, Operations Manager, Maintenance Manager, On-Call Staff,
or District Staff to notify all appropriate public agencies as necessary.

SSO Notification Procedure

SSO notification procedures vary based on whether the SSO is classified as a Category 1, Category 2,
Category 3, or PLSD. After notifying the RWQCB of any SSO, the Chief Plant Operator or their designee
should email RWQCB Staff, Katie DiSimone (kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov) to confirm that the report
was submitted and received.

Category 1 SSOs

For any discharges of sewage that result in a discharge to a drainage channel or a surface water or to
the County storm drain system and is not fully captured and returned to the sewer system or disposed of
properly, the District shall, as soon as possible, but no later than two (2) hours after becoming aware of
the discharge, notify the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) at 1-800-852-

7550.
Category 2 SSOs

For a SSO 1,000 gallons or greater in volume that does not discharge to a drainage channel or surface
water, the Operations Manager or their designee may email RWQCB Staff, Katie DiSimone, at
kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov to notify her of the SSO within 3 business days after becoming aware
of the SSO.

Category 3 SSOs

If a SSO occurs due to a problem in the District's sanitary sewer collection system and does not reach
a drainage channel, surface water, the County storm drain system, or is fully captured from the County
storm drain system and returned to the sewer system or disposed of properly and is less than 1,000
gallons in volume, the Chief Plant Operator or their designee may email RWQCB Staff, Katie DiSimone,
at kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov to notify her of the SSO within 30 calendar days after the end of the
calendar month in which the SSO occurred.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 21



PLSDs

The District may voluntarily notify regulatory agencies, such as the RWQCB, of a private lateral sewage
discharge (PLSD). SWRCB encourages notifying Cal OES of a PLSD if the PLSD is greater than or equal
to 1,000 gallons with the potential to reach surface water.

SWRCB also encourages notifying the appropriate regulatory agencies (see list of potential agencies in
Element 2: Organization) or notifying the responsible party that notification and reporting should be
completed as required by Health and Safety Code Section 5410 et. seq. and Water Code Section 13271
if the PLSD is greater than or equal to 1,000 gallons regardiess of the SSO destination.

7. Upon completion of containment and clean-up, Chief Plant Operator or their designee to complete report,
as required, to RWQCB and any other required agencies (as described in Section 6 above).

8. Operators will fill out the SSO Response Field Checklist in its entirety and forward this document to the
Chief Plant Operator or their designee for submission into CIWQS database. Staff will upload data within
the required timeframes and assign an SSO event ID number. This ID number shall be placed on the
form and documented in the program files. Copies of this document/ID number shall be returned to the
District offices for record keeping along with all other spill documentation.

ABCSD SS-EOQOP-2: SSO Notification should be referred to for specific responsibilities and directions.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 22



Was there an SSO?

Was the SSO due to a problem or
blockage within a privately owned

sewer lateral?

This is a
PLSD

Notification is voluntary.
SWRCB encourages calling
Cal OES at (805) 852-7550

and notifying them of PLSDs 2
1,000 gallons with the potential
to reach a surface water.

Reporting is voluntary.
SWRCD encourages reporting
PLSDS 2 1,000 gallons in
CIWQS. Certification is not
required.

1

Did any volume of the SSO reach a
surface water or drainage channel?}

l

Did the SSO reach the City storm
drain system, and was it not fully
captured and returned to the sewer|
system or disposed of properly?

|

This is a
No Spill

Certify No Spills in CIWQS within
30 days of the end of the month.

1

See SS-EOP-03 Attachment 1 for
instructions for CIWQS reporting.

Was the SSO 2 1,000
gallons?

NO

Must call Cal OES at (805) 852-7550

and notify them as soon as possible,

but no later than 2 hours after being
notified of the SSO.

See SS-EOP-03 Attachment 1 for

instructions for CIWQS reporting
if the City chooses to do so.

Must confirm that Katie DiSimone
at the RWQCB recievd the SSO
notification by emailing her at
kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov
iwithin 3 bsuiness days of becoming
aware of the SSO.

Draft Reports must be submitted to|
CIWQS within 3 business days
after becoming aware of the SSO.

Final Reports must be certified
through CIWQS within 15 calendar
days of the end date of the SSO.

This is a
Category 2

SSO

May notify Katie DiSimone at the
RWQCB by email
(kdisimone@waterboards.ca.gov)
within 3 business days after
becoming aware of the SSO.

Draft reports must be submitted to
CIWQS within 3 business days
after becoming aware of the SSO.

This is a
Category 3

§S0O

May notify Katie DiSimone at the
RWQCB by email
(kdisimone@waterboard.ca.gov)
within 30 calendar days after the
end of the month in which the SSO
occured.

Must be reported in CIWQS and
certified within 30 calendar days
after the end of the calendar month
in which the SSO occured.

Final reports must be submitted to
CIWQS within 3 business days
after becoming aware of the SSO.

See SS-EOP-03 Attachment 1 for
instructions for CIWQS reporting.

Final Reports must be certified
through CIWQS within 15 calendar
days of the end date of the SSO.

Figure 6-3 Plan for Reporting in CINQS

Avila Beach CSD

See SS-EOP-03 Attachment 1 for

instructions for CIWQS reporting.

reporting.

See SS-EQP-03 Attachment 1
for instructions for CIWQS

Sewer System Management Plan

23



6.3 SSO Categories and Reporting Timeframes

S$S0 Reporting Procedure

SSO0 reporting procedures vary based on whether the SSO is classified as a Category 1, Category 2, Category
3, or PLSD.

Category 1 SSOs

Draft reports for Category 1 SSOs shall be submitted in CIWQS within three (3) business days of the District
becoming aware of the SSO. Final reports for Category 1 SSOs shall be certified in CIWQS within fifteen (15)
calendar days of the end date of the SSO. If CIWQS is not available for the submission of the Draft or Final SSO
report, the required information must be faxed to RWQCB at (805) 543-0397.

The details of Category 1 SSO reports and their content and how to complete and submit the report in CIWQS
is included as an attachment to SS-EOP-03: SSO Reporting.

For all Category 1 SSOs greater than or equal to 50,000 gallons, the District must also submit a Technical Report
within 45 calendar days of the end date of the SSO. The Technical Report must include the information described
in SS-EOP-03: SSO Reporting. The required information is outlined below and includes descriptions, diagrams,
other documents and information, which outline the causes and circumstances of the SSO, the District's
response to the SSO, and the water quality monitoring performed to evaluation the impact of the SSO:

Causes and Circumstances of the SSO:
1. Complete and detailed explanation of how and when the SSO was discovered.
2. Diagram showing the SSO failure point, appearance point(s), and final destination(s).
3. Detailed description of the methodology employed, available data used to calculate the volume of the
SSO0 and, if applicable, the SSO volume recovered.
4. Detailed description of the cause(s) of the SSO.
5. Copies of original field crew records used to document the SSO.
6. Historical maintenance records for the failure location.
Enrollee’'s Response to SSO:
1. Chronological narrative description of all actions taken by enrollee to terminate the spill.
2. Explanation of how the SSMP Overflow Emergency Response Plan was implemented to respond to and
mitigate the SSO.
3. Final corrective action(s) completed and/or planned to be completed, including a schedule for actions not
yet completed.
Water Quality Monitoring:
1. Description of all water quality sampling activities conducted including analytical results and evaluation
of the results.
2. Detailed location map illustrating all water quality sampling points.

Category 2 SSOs

Draft reports for Category 2 SSOs shall be submitted in CIWQS within three (3) business days of the District
becoming aware of the SSO. Final reports for Category 2 SSOs shall be certified in CIWQS within fifteen (15)
calendar days of the end date of the SSO. If CIWQS is not available for the submission of the Draft or Final SSO
report, the required information must be faxed to RWQCB at (805) 543-0397.

The details of Category 2 SSO reports and their content and how to complete and submit the report in CIWQS
is included as an attachment to SS-EOP-03: SSO Reporting.

Category 3 SSOs
Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 24



Report and certify all Category 3 SSOs in CIWQS within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the calendar
month in which the SSO occurs. If CIWQS is not available, the required information must be faxed to RWQCB

at (805) 543-0397.

The details of this report and its content and how to complete and submit the report in CIWQS is included as an
attachment to SS-EOP-03: SSO Reporting.

PLSDs

PLSDs may be voluntarily reported in CIWQS. SWRCB encourages reporting a PLSD in CIWQS or notifying the
responsible party that notification and reporting should be completed as required by Health and Safety Code
Section 5410 et. seq. and Water Code Section 13271 if the PLSD is greater than or equal to 1,000 gallons
regardless of the SSO destination.

If a PLSD is reported in CIWQS, the District must identify the SSO as occurring and caused by a private lateral,
and a responsible party, who is not the District, should be identified, if known. Certification of PLSD reports is
not required.

No Spill Certification

If there are no SSOs during a calendar month, the District must certify a “No Spill” certification in CIWQS within
thirty (30) calendar days after the end the calendar month in which no SSO occurred. If CIWQS is not available,
the required information must be faxed to RWQCB at (805) 543-0397.

If there are no SSOs during a calendar month, but the District reported a PLSD, the District shall certify a “No
Spill” certification statement for that month.

Amended SSO Reports

If the District wishes to update or add additional information to a certified SOS report, the District must complete
this update or addition by amending the SSO report or adding an attachment to the SSO report in CIWQS within
120 calendar days after the SSO end date.

If a SSO report needs to be amended after this 120-calendar day deadline, the District may contact the SSO
Program Manager, Russell Norman, at Russell.Norman@waterboards.ca.gov and request to amend the SSO

report. The District is required to submit justification for why the additional information was not available prior to
the end of the 120-calendar day deadline with this request.

SS-EOP-3: Reporting Requirements should be referred to for specific responsibilities and directions.

6.4 SSO Impact Mitigation

The initial response to an SSO includes a service truck with traffic control equipment as well as equipment to
cordon off the site from the public. The Sherriff department is available as needed for site security. (SS-EOP-5:
Traffic and Crowd Control should be referred to for specific details and direction.)

Operations Staff takes all reasonable steps to contain sewage and to prevent sewage discharges to surface
waters. Upon arrival Operations Staff will determine the cause of the SSO and, utilizing the spill kit, will dike or
sandbag off any drain inlets that flow to surface water bodies or to gutters. The District may use the storm drain
system as a containment device if needed. The outlet to the storm drain is blocked and the spill and wash down
water are then vacuumed from the line. (SS-EOP-7: SSO Mitigation and Cleanup should be referred to for
specific details and direction.) In the event that the SSO comes into contact with surface water bodies, testing of
those bodies will be completed to determine the level of contamination and the appropriate method of clean up.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 25



Based upon the location and type of overflow, operations Staff respond with appropriate equipment. On
observation of the spill an estimate of gallons per minute will be made and documented. Equipment used may
include a Vactor truck, a service truck equipped with traffic control devices, and the necessary containment tools.
Containment tools include a spill kit, sandbags, and plastic tarps. All drain inlets shall be covered with visqueen
or other barriers. Additional resources are available locally from other jurisdictions or through equipment rental
agencies as the situation warrants.

After the spill is contained, staff will then work to begin removing the main stoppage with the Vactor and return
normal flow to the system. Cleanup of raw sewage is begun at the same time with vacuuming up the water and
any solid material. Containment is followed by fresh water wash down (per San Luis Obispo County request).
The General Manager and Chief Plant Operator are responsible for mitigation, documentation, most reporting,
and follow-up.

District EOPs cover spill mitigation and cleanup including procedures for handling a prolonged SSO situation.
These procedures cover SSO responses for different situations, including wet weather overflows, pump station
failures, and force main breaks. Mitigation efforts include instructions for setting up barriers to contain SSOs and
prevent sewage from reaching surface waters, storm drains, or other sensitive environments. District EOPs also
include direction regarding public notification procedures when an SSO has the potential to endanger public
health. The District currently takes all reasonable steps to contain sewage and prevent sewage discharges to
surface waters and minimize or correct any adverse impacts on the environment resulting from the SSO,
including accelerated or additional monitoring as may be necessary to determine the nature and impact of the
discharge.

For mitigation purposes the Environmental Health (EH) Department provides District assistance in post-SSO
monitoring. In the event of a spill, the EH Department is notified immediately along with other applicable
agencies. The District then utilizes the EH Department for the service of monitoring water quality post-SSO. The
District will also provide any necessary support, equipment, or Staff as requested to assist in the water quality
monitoring.

The following District Emergency Operating Procedures (EOPs) apply to SSO Impact Mitigation as described
above:

SS-EOP-5:  SSO Traffic and Crowd Control

SS-EOP-6: SSO Volume Estimation

SS-EOP-7:  SSO Mitigation and Cleanup

SS-EOP-10: SSO Waterbody Closure

6.5 Emergency Operating Procedures

Emergency Operating Procedures (EOPs) are being developed in 2013 as part of the District's Overflow
Emergency Response Plan (OERP). These procedures are developed to establish a standardized and
appropriate response to SSOs within the District and establish compliance with the SSWDRs and will be
completed May 2013. The following EOPs will be included with this OERP:

SS-EOP-1:  Emergency Overflow Response Plan

SS-EOP-2:  SSO Regulatory Notification Requirements

SS-EOP-3: SSO Reporting Requirements

SS-EOP-4;:  SSO Response Documentation

SS-EOP-5:  8SO Traffic and Crowd Control

SS-EOP-6: SSO Volume Estimation

SS-EQP-7:  SSO Mitigation and Cleanup

SS-EOP-8:  SSO Water Quality Monitoring — Pacific Ocean & San Luis Obispo Creek

SS-EOP-10: SSO Records Requirements

SS-EOP-11: SSO Training Requirements

SS-EOP-12: SSO Records Requirements

SS-EOP-13: SSO Training Requirements

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 26



SS-EOP-9: SSO Waterbody Closure was combined with SS-EOP-11: SSO Training Records.

6.6 OERP Training

The District's training plan requires staff to be trained on these procedures and the Overflow Emergency
Response Plan annually. Additional training is conducted as necessary when; new staff is introduced to the
District’s system, when changes are made to EOPs or the OERP, and when new equipment impacts the
performance of these procedures

The District's authorized representatives in wastewater operations and collection system matters are the Legally
Responsible Officials (LRO's) identified in Section 2.2 of this SSMP.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 27



Element 7 - Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) Control Program

This section of the SSMP describes the FOG Control Program, including identification of problem areas, focused
cleaning, and source control. This fulfills the FOG Control Program requirement for both the RWQCB and

SWRCB.

7.1 Regulatory Requirements
The requirements for the FOG Control Program element of the SSMP are summarized below.

Each Agency shall evaluate its service area to determine whether a FOG control program is needed. If an Agency
determines that a FOG program is not needed the Agency must provide justification as to why it is not needed.
If FOG is found to be a problem, the Agency must prepare and implement a FOG source control program to
reduce the amount of these substances discharged to the sanitary sewer system. This plan shall include the
following as appropriate:

a. Animplementation pian and schedule for a public education outreach program that promotes proper
disposal of FOG;

b. A plan and schedule for the disposal of FOG generated within the sanitary sewer system service
area. This may include a list of acceptable disposal facilities and/or additional facilities needed to
adequately dispose of FOG generated within a sanitary sewer system service area;

c. The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and identify measures to prevent SSO’s and
blockages caused by FOG;

d. Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps or interceptors), design standards for
the removal devices, maintenance requirements, BMP requirements, record keeping and reporting
requirements;

e. Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement authorities, and whether the Agency has
sufficient staff to inspect and enforce the FOG ordinance;

f. An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to FOG blockages and establishment of a
cleaning maintenance schedule for each section; and

g. Development and implementation of source control measures for all sources of FOG discharged to
the sanitary sewer system for each section identified in (f) above.

Supporting information for Element 7 is attached to this Element described in the below documents:
1. List of Food Service Establishments (FSE)
2. FOG inspection form
3. Public Outreach Material
4. CalFOG List of Grease Haulers

7.2 FOG Control Program Discussion

The District initially established a FOG control program in August 2008. The FOG Program requires Food Service
Establishments (FSEs) be inspected and permitted annually for a properly functioning grease trap and/or
interceptor. The District provided an initial public outreach program and continues to provide outreach during
inspections, new service installations and on their webpage. At this time the District has 100% compliance with
the program. Three FSEs have installed grease removal devices and the remaining FSEs have been granted
variances based on the menu and Best Management Practices (BMPs) being used. Inspections of the FSEs are
performed two times a year for the FSEs that have grease removal devices and annually for those with variances.
Inspections are performed to ensure maintenance of grease removal devices and use of BMPs are occurring on

a regular basis.

Figure 7-1 Typical BMPs
M Train kitchen Staff and other employees about how they can help ensure BMP are implemented
M Post "No Grease" signs above all sinks and on the front of dishwashers
M Use water temperatures less than 140° F in all sinks, especially the pre-rinse sink before the
mechanical dishwasher
M Recycle waste cooking oil
M "Dry wipe" pots, pans, and dishware prior to dishwashing

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 28



Dispose of food waste by recycling and/or solid waste removal

Properly maintain grease trap/interceptors

Witness all grease trap or interceptor cleaning/maintenance activities to ensure the device is
properly operating

Clean under-the-sink grease traps weekly, or more frequently, if needed

Clean grease interceptors routinely, at least quarterly.

Keep a maintenance log

Cover outdoor grease and oil storage containers

Locate grease dumpsters and storage containers away from storm drain catch basins

Use absorbent pads or other material in the storm drain catch basins if grease dumpsters and
containers must be located nearby (absorbent pads may be required if the basin is within 20 feet
of grease dumpsters or containers or if there are signs of grease in the catch basin at any
distance)

M Routinely clean kitchen exhaust system filters

NEENEEN HRAHA

7.3 Identification of Grease Problem Areas and Sewer Cleaning

One objective of a FOG control program is the identification of High Maintenance Areas (HMA) that are likely or
prove to have grease accumulation. The District has identified potential grease problem areas by tracking
locations and causes of dry weather blockages and SSOs and during sewer cleaning and video inspection.

As a preventative measure, the District has developed an annual routine cleaning schedule for the sanitary sewer
system. In addition to these cleanings, the District will focus on identified HMA. Identified HMA are cleaned

quarterly.

The District maintains a GIS sewer atlas depicting each manhole location. This data will be used in conjunction
with cleaning logs, for which Staff will note the date and time of flushing as well as debris type and severity.
The District performs video inspection via CCTV to troubled areas. If a source of grease in a lateral can be
identified, the District will contact the restaurant or source of the grease to ensure mitigation. Additional
information about cleaning and maintenance is included in Element 4 - Operation and Maintenance.

7.4 Legal Authority

District Ordinance No. 2012-01 has provisions for the control of FOG in the Sewer System.

FOG limited:
Section 3.01.020, Specific Prohibitions, E, 4, prohibits discharges which may contain more than one
hundred (100) parts per million, by weight, of fats, oil, grease or wax. Section 3.04 Fats, Oils, and Grease
(FOG) Program: makes it unlawful for any discharger to discharge FOG or cause FOG to be discharged
into the sanitary sewer system.

Grease Control Device:
Section 3.04.010 Grease Control Device — Installation: requires all food service establishments (FSEs)

to install, operate, and maintain an approved type and adequate sized grease control device (GCD).
GCDs must be sized and installed per the Uniform Plumbing Code or California Plumbing Code,
whichever is more stringent.

Maintenance of Grease Control Devices:
Section 3.04.020 Grease Control Device — Maintenance: requires all GCDs to be cleaned on a regular
basis to ensure efficient operation. Gravity grease interceptors are required to be cleaned no less than
every ninety (90) days and hydro-mechanical grease interceptors be cleaned no less than once every
seven (7) days. Maintenance of below ground gravity grease interceptors must be performed by a
licensed cleaning service. Smaller hydro-mechanical grease interceptors may be cleaned by Food
Service Establishment (FSE) staff.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 29



Inspections:

Article 2 — Connections, Section 2.05.030 Right of Entry: gives authorized representatives of the District
permission to enter in and upon all buildings and premises within the District at reasonable hours for
purposes of inspection, sampling, observation, measurement, testing, or otherwise performing such
duties as may be necessary.

Article 3 — Discharges, Sections 3.04.040 — 3.04.080: requires FSEs discharging FOG to the sanitary
sewer to obtain a FOG permit which specifies conditions for; proper installation, operation, maintenance,
best management practices, and record keeping demonstrating cleaning and maintenance activities.
Noncompliance with these conditions may lead to revocation of the FSEs FOG permit.

Enforcement:

Article 5 — Charges and Fees, Section 5.03.010 Noncompliance Fees: gives the District to assess a fee
for dischargers found to be noncompliant with the terms and conditions of the District Ordinance.
Additionally, Article 6 — Violations: gives the District the authority to enforce any violation of its sewer
ordinance. This authority can be found in the following sections of the ordinance:

e 6.01.010 Civil Action

e 6.01.020 Criminal Prosecution

e 6.02 Liability for Damages for Violation

Legal Authority for the control of FOG is also discussed in Element 3, section 3.5.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 30



Element 8 —-System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan

The District shall continue to update and evaluate its CIP plan that provides for the System Evaluation and
Capacity Assurance regarding key sanitary sewer system elements for dry weather peak flow conditions, as well
as the appropriate design storm or wet weather event. This section fulfills the District Management requirements
for both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

8.1 Regulatory Requirements

The District shall develop a System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan which will provide sanitary sewer
system elements for dry weather peak flow conditions, as well as the appropriate design storm or wet weather
event. The requirements for the System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance element of the SSMP are
summarized below.

A. Evaluation: Actions needed to evaluate those portions of the sanitary sewer system that are
experiencing or contributing to a SSO discharge deficiency. The evaluation should provide
estimates of peak flows associated with conditions similar to those causing overflow events,
estimates of the treatment plant's key system components, hydraulic deficiencies (including
components of the system with limiting capacity) and the major sources that contribute to the
peak flows associated with overflow events;

B. Design Criteria: Where design criteria do not exist or are deficient, undertake the evaluation
identified above to establish appropriate design criteria; and

C. Capacity Enhancement Measures: The steps needed to establish a short- and long-term CIP to
address identified hydraulic deficiencies, including prioritization, alternatives analysis, and
schedules. The CIP may include increases in pipe size, I/l reduction programs, increases and
redundancy in pumping capacity, and storage facilities. The CIP may include an implementation
schedule and may identify sources of funding.

D. Schedule: The District will develop a schedule of completion dates for all portions of the capital
improvement program developed in (A)-(C) above. This schedule may be reviewed and updated
consistent with the SSMP requirements as described by the SWRCB GWDR.

Supporting information for Element 8 is described in the below documents:
» |Inflow & Infiltration (I/1) Plan (2006)
»  Wastewater Master Plan Update (2010)
»  Wastewater Collection System Master Plan (2010)

8.2 System Hydraulic Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan

The District evaluated the hydraulic capacity of major trunk sewers in 2010 as part of the Wastewater Collection
System Master Plan (Master Plan). The District has completed an update for the hydraulic analysis and
evaluation of the major trunk lines in the collection system.

The 2010 Master Plan identified potential Capital Improvement projects that need to be considered and
potentially implemented for future system expansion. If no improvements are required in the short-term, long-
term improvements will be planned according to build-out of the District. During the design of each project,
alternative designs will be considered. These recommendations will be incorporated into the District's Capital
Improvement Plan where appropriate. The Annual Capital Improvement Plan and Budget are on the District's

website.

8.3 Schedule

The District adopts a fiscal year budget document that includes a Capital Improvement Program for the water
and wastewater systems. The budget document contains a 5-year CIP that forecasts projects currently
scheduled for completion. The schedule is modified annually with each new fiscal year. Completed projects are
removed from the schedule and newly identified CIPs are placed in the document for completion in accordance

with priority and available funding levels.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 61110, adoption of operating budgets must be completed before
September 1 of each year in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles. The District’s operating

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 31



and CIP budgets outline anticipated revenue and expense for the fiscal year. The District Board typically adopts
a preliminary budget in May and a final budget at the regular meeting in June. The newly adopted fiscal year
budget then extends through June of the following year.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 32



Element 9 - Monitoring, Measuring and Program Modifications

This section of the SSMP discusses monitoring, measurement and program modifications employed by the
District. The District may prepare and implement program modifications as appropriate to address deficiencies,
or as a preventative measure for improving the overall collection system. This section fuffills the Monitoring,
Measurement and Program Modification requirements for both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

9.1 Regulatory Requirements

The District should develop a monitoring, measurement, and modifications program to maintain the relevant
information that can be used to establish and prioritize appropriate policies, procedures, processes, and
programs funding within the SSMP. These measurements shall include the following information:
1. How to maintain relevant information that can be used to establish and prioritize appropriate
processes within the SSMP;
2. When to monitor the implementation and, where appropriate, measure the effectiveness of each
element of the SSMP;
3. Assess the success of the preventative maintenance program;
4. Update program elements, as appropriate, based on monitoring or performance evaluations; and
5. ldentify and illustrate SSO trends, including: frequency, location, and volume.

Supporting information for Element 9 is described in the below document:
e SSO Logs and Trend Data

9.2 Monitoring, Measurement and Modification Program

The District will maintain relevant information to establish and prioritize appropriate SSMP activities (such as the
immediate elimination of dry weather overflows or overflows into sensitive waters, such as public drinking water
supplies and their source waters, swimming beaches and waters where swimming occurs, designated
Outstanding National Resource Waters or Areas of Special Biological Significance, National Marine Sanctuaries,
waters within Federal, State, or local parks, and water containing threatened or endangered species or their

habitat).

In the event of an SSO within the District, the data collected and relevant information shall be documented. The
Operations Manager shall keep an annual record of the incidents and assumed causes of the spills. This
information will be reported on a monthly basis to the RWQCB and electronically to the State CIWQS database.

This information will be used to assist in planning activities, programs and policies that help eliminate future
SSOs and their causes.

The SSMP will be reviewed periodically to ensure all the provisions are implemented and the effectiveness
discussed at monthly coordination meetings. Monthly coordination meetings consist of the administrative staff,
engineering staff, and operations staff. Any issues of concern generated by these monthly meetings will be
addressed in the work order program or by the identification of a special project to address issues outside the
scope of the work order system.

The District maintains an annual collection system cleaning schedule that will be routinely evaluated to determine

the current status, and/or deficiencies of the collection system. With this preventative measure in place, the
District will have the ability to assess the success with reduction in SSOs, maintenance and repairs.

Table 9-1 SSMP Performance Indicator Tracking (2011 - 2014)

INDICATOR [ 2011 [ 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of SSOs (by season)

Wet Season Sept 15 — March 15 0 0 0 0
Dry Season  March 16 — Sept 14 0 0 0 0

Number of $SOs (by volume)
< 10 Gallons 0 0 0 0
10 — 99 Gallons 0 0 0

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 33




100 — 999 Gallons 0 0 0 0
>1000 Gallons 0 0 0 0
SSO Volume

Total n/a n/a n/a n/a
Recovered n/a n/a n/a n/a
Total Volume Conveyed to the WWTP n/a n/a n/a n/a
Total Volume SSO/Total Volume Conveyed n/a n/a n/a n/a
Number of SSO (by cause)

Blockages n/a n/a n/a n/a
Roots n/a n/a n/a n/a
Grease n/a n/a n/a n/a
Debris n/a n/a n/a n/a
Debris from Laterals n/a n/a n/a n/a
Construction Debris n/a n/a n/a n/a
Multiple Causes n/a n/a n/a n/a

Infrastructure Failure n/a n/a n/a n/a

Inflow and Infiltration n/a n/a n/a n/a

Electrical Power Failure n/a n/a n/a n/a

Flow Capacity Deficiency n/a n/a n/a n/a

Natural Disaster n/a n/a n/a n/a

Bypass n/a n/a n/a n/a

Cause Unknown n/a n/a n/a n/a

Number of SSOs per mile of sewer per year 0 n/a n/a n/a
Volume of SSOs per mile of sewer per yvear 0 n/a n/a n/a
Average Emergency Response Time
Business Hours n/a n/a n/a n/a
Non-Business Hours n/a n/a n/a n/a
Maintenance Activities (linear ft/yr)
Televised Inspection 0 0 0 0
Regular Cleaning 10,100 10,100 | 10,100 10,100
HMA Cleaning NoRecord | 1,600 | 1,600 1,600
Extra Cleaning based on CCTV Inspection | No Record 0 0 0
Table 9-1 SSMP Performance Indicator Tracking (2009 — 2012)
INDICATOR 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012
Number of SSOs (by season)
Wet Season  Sept 15 — March 15 0 2* 0 0
Dry Season  March 16 — Sept 14 1 1 0
Number of SSOs (by volume)
< 10 Gallons 0 1 0 0
10 — 99 Gallons 0 2 0 0
100 — 999 Gallons 1 0 0 0
>1000 Gallons 0 0 0 0
SSO Volume
Total 250 301 n/a n/a
Recovered 250 291 n/a n/a
Total Volume Conveyed to the WWTP 250 291 n/a n/a
Total Volume SSO/Total Volume Conveyed 100% 97% n/a n/a
Number of SSO (by cause)

Blockages 1 2 n/a n/a
Roots X X n/a n/a
Grease n/a X n/a n/a
Debris n/a n/a n/a n/a
Debris from Laterals n/a n/a n/a n/a

Avila Beach CSD

Sewer System Management Plan

34



Construction Debris n/a n/a n/a n/a
Multiple Causes n/a n/a n/a n/a
Infrastructure Failure n/a n/a n/a n/a
Inflow and Infiltration n/a 1 n/a n/a
Electrical Power Failure n/a n/a n/a n/a
Flow Capacity Deficiency n/a n/a n/a n/a
Natural Disaster n/a n/a n/a n/a
Bypass n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cause Unknown n/a n/a n/a n/a
Number of SSOs per mile of sewer per year .0001 .0003 n/a n/a
Volume of SSOs per mile of sewer per year .0225 .0271 n/a n/a
Average Emergency Response Time
Business Hours 15 min 15 min n/a n/a
Non-Business Hours n/a n/a n/a n/a
Maintenance Activities (linear ft/yr)
Televised Inspection 7400 650 0 0
Regular Cleaning 9346 10100 10100 10,100
HMA Cleaning 1620.2 | NoRecord | No Record | 1,600
Extra Cleaning based on CCTV Inspection 832.7 | No Record | No Record 0

9.3 Updates

The District shall update program elements, as appropriate, based on monitoring of performance indicators as
shown in Table 9-1. The SSMP and its elements will be updated in accordance with the results of the monitoring
and Staff recommendations. Performance evaluations are ongoing because the daily operations of the District
include all the elements in this program.

9.4 Identifying Trends

The District shall identify and illustrate SSO trends including frequency, location, and volume as part of the SSMP
updates. A trend of either frequency or volume could indicate a chronic problem that could be specifically
identified within the collection system. Should the District identify an area prone to problems, known as “hot
spots” or HMA, maintenance and inspection services to these areas will be increased or
rehabilitation/replacement will be considered.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 35



Element 10 — SSMP Audits L

The District will conduct periodic internal audits, appropriate to the size of the system and the number of SSO.
This section fulfills the SSMP Audit requirements for both the RWQCB and SWRCB.

10.1 Requlatory Requirements

As part of the SSMP, the Agency shall conduct an internal audit, appropriate to the size of the system and the
number of overflows, and submit a report of such audit, evaluating the SSMP, and its compliance with the
SWRCB GWDR.

At a minimum, these audits should occur every two years and a report should be prepared and kept on file.
This audit may focus on evaluating the effectiveness of the SSMP and the District compliance with the SSMP
requirements identified in the SWRCB General Order 2006-0003-DWQ, including identification of any
deficiencies in the SSMP and steps to correct them.

Element 10 — Program Audits: Attachment

Supporting information for Element 10 is attached and includes the following document:
= Audit Report 2017 Audit Summary Table

10.2 SSMP Program Audits

The District shall perform an internal audit of its SSMP and its compliance with the SWRCB and RWQCB every
two (2) years following the final certification date. The Audit will be done under the direction of the District
Engineer. Updates for the District's SSMP will be completed as warranted.

Table 10-1 SSMP Audits

YEAR ENTITY

2012 Wallace Group

2014 Wallace Group

2017 Fluid Resource Management
2020 Fluid Resource Management

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 36



Element 11 —CommunicatioE

This section outlines a Communication Plan that allows interested parties to be involved in the preparation and
implementation of the SSMP. This section fulfills the Communications requirement for both the RWQCB and

SWRCB.

11.1 Regulatory Requirements

The Agency shall communicate on a regular basis with the public on the development, implementation, and
performance of its SSMP. The communication system shall provide the public the opportunity to provide input to
the Agency as the program is being developed and prior to implementation.

Element 11 - Communications Appendix
There is no appendix associated with Element 11. All pertinent information is included in the section.

11.2 District Communication Program

The purpose of this plan is communicating the effectiveness of the Districts SSMP and educating all
stakeholders and interested parties in the benefits to people and the environment of a properly designed,
constructed, operated, and maintained collection system. The District maintains regularly scheduled business
hours at the Avila Beach CSD office where the General Manager is able to address public comment or refer
comments to appropriate staff.

Table 11-1 Communication Program Plan

Implementation Year
Activity / Best Stakeholders Contact FY FY
Management to be Frequenc 13/14 18/19 Note
Practice contacted q y
Update District All As Needed s X y
Website
Present SSMP District Board | As Needed 2
Updates X
Promote SSO All Twice per 3
Awareness Year
Conduct FOG Local Ongoing
Education Restaurants & X X 4
Residents -
Distribute SSO All Ongoing
Prevention X
Materials
Communicate with | Port San Luis | Quarterly or
tributary/satellite Harbor District | as needed X
system (PSLHD)

Notes:

1. The 2014 SSMP and 2017 Audit Report are posted on the District's website. The updated SSMP will be
posted once the updates are finalized. The District may include a public comments section in the website.
The website may be updated as new information is available, such as revised procedures or new policies
are developed, or new regulatory information is received.

2. Presentation(s) to the District Board may be at regularly scheduled public meetings or through other
appropriate public venues that include the opportunity for public comment (in addition to the website).

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 37



Promotional opportunities include District staff attendance at community events such as the summertime
Farmer's Market.

. Development of appropriate FOG educational materials and/or modifications to existing programs and
materials began in 2008 with the initial local restaurant visits taking place in FY08/09. Inspections,
education, and outreach are continuing as part of the District's FOG Program.

Informational materials such as handouts, pampbhlets, utility bill inserts and public service announcements
may be produced and distributed at workshops, community events, handed-out with building/plumbing
permits, and/or posted on the website. Many of these have already been developed by the District and
other public agencies and would be modified or revised as appropriate. These materials are available at

the District office.

Monthly Avila Beach CSD Staff Coordination Meetings will be used as a venue to communicate with
PSLHD on a Quarterly basis or more frequently if necessary.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 38



Element 12 -SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program

This section outlines a SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program that the agency will use to assess impacts from
SSO to surface waters, in which 50,000 gallons or greater are spilled to surface waters.

412.1 Regulatory Requirements

To comply with subsection D.7(v) of the SSS WDRs, per the Monitoring and Reporting Program No. WQ 2013-
0058-EXEC, the Agency shall develop and implement an SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program. The program

must contain the following:

» Contain protocols for water quality monitoring.
» Account for spill travel time in the surface water and scenarios where monitoring may not be possible
(e.g. safety, access restrictions, etc.)
« Require water quality analyses for ammonia and bacterial indicators to be performed by an
accredited or certified laboratory.
¢ Require monitoring instruments and devices used to implement the SSO Water Quality Monitoring
Program to be properly maintained and calibrated, including any records to document maintenance
and calibration, as necessary, to ensure their continued accuracy.
« Within 48 hours of the enrollee becoming aware of the SSO, require water quality sampling for, at a
minimum, the following constituents:
o Ammonia
o Appropriate Bacterial indicator(s) per the applicable Basin Plan water quality objective or
Regional Board direction which may include total and fecal coliform, enterococcus, and E.coli.

12.2 Water Quality Monitoring Program

Avila Beach CSD staff plans to develop and implement an SSO Water Quality Monitoring Program.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 39



13.0 SSMP Completion and Certification

Both the SSMP and the Agency’s program to implement the SSMP must be certified by the Agency to be in
compliance with the requirements set forth in SWRCB General WDR Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ and Order
No. WQ 2013-0058-EXEC and must be presented to the Agency’s governing board for approval at a public
meeting. The Agency shall certify that the SSMP and subparts thereof, are in compliance with the general
WDR within the time frames identified. In order to complete this certification, the Agency's authorized
representative must complete the certification portion in the Online SSO Database Questionnaire by checking
the appropriate milestone box, printing and signing the automated form, and filing the signed form with the
approved SSMP. SSMP updates will require review and certification by the District Board of Directors.

Avila Beach CSD Sewer System Management Plan 40






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors —
€77/

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager.” "

DATE: April 13,2021

SUBJECT:  Options for providing Directors paperless agenda packets

Recommendation:
Receive staff report and provide direction to staff

Discussion:

In this time of virtual meetings, public agencies and commissions have been moving towards
paperless options within the office filing systems and with the production and management of
Board meeting agenda packets. The San Luis Harbor District Commission recently explored the
option of providing Commission Directors with tablets to use for Agency communications,
agenda packets and other related Agency business.

The tablets would be purchased by the Agency for use by the Directors during their term of
office and then returned to the District when the Director is no longer serving on the Board.
Having an updated and dedicated tablet device would ensure that Directors can efficiently log-in
and participate in virtual meetings. Directors would need to have Wi-Fi at their residence or
location where they are attending the meeting. In addition, it would save the District the costs
associated with copying and delivering the agenda packets and the subsequent disposal/recycle
costs when the agenda packet is no longer needed. The price of tablets that would be suitable for
this application have been coming down in price and range from $400 - $700 depending on the
screen size, processor etc.

The Board discussed this issue several years and at the time declined to move forward with
exploring further options. Board members would not be required to use the paperless, tablet
option, but we could make it available to Board members that would find easier and more
functional for them. We have several new Board members since we last discussed this issue, and
staff thought it would be appropriate to seek input and direction from the Board.



